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KEY HIGHLIGHTS

* Sports Retoil gross morgin incsensed by 170 bps to 44.6%

* Group underlying £BITDA increased by 15.7% to £383.2m ™
o Underlying profit before tox up 20.5% 1o £300.3m™

* Underlying free cash generation of £301.8m?

o Sparts Reioil like-forlike stores gross contribution increased
by 7.4% (FY14: 10.5%)*

« (ontinued roll-out of lorge format ¢ity centie stores
e Successful UK lounch of Click and Collect in FY15 K2
* Record EBITDA achieved v. 4th yeor Share Scheme fazget

o Net daht decrensed fo £59.7m™
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GROUP REVENUE

April 15

Aprit 14
Apri 13

Api{ 12

+4.7%

£2,832.6m

£2,706.0m

£2,185.6m

£1,867.2m

fprt 13 £1,599.7m

UNDERLYING EBITDA
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Apiil 14
Apiil 13

Apiil 12

REPORTED PBT
April 15
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UNDERLYING EPS
April 15
April 14

April 13
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pil 13

+15.7%

£383.7m
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£2357m
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+30.9%

£313.4m

£239.5m

£207 2m

£148.0m

2118.8m

+21.2%

38.9




“The Group has delivered another solid set of results n spite of challenging trading
condihons including the adverse impact on performance dunng the perod of
England's early departure from the FIFA World Cup in Brazil and unseasonably
mild weather duning autumn, reducing footfall

“However, with our engoing focus on providing customers with excephonal quality
and unbeotable volue, we hove continued fo grow Group revenues and EBITDA
and have succeeded in surpassing our fourth and final EBITDA target under the
2011 Share Scheme The first of these awards wll vest with parhcipants m
September 2015 and the second in September 2017 We owe our conhnued
success to the commutment and hard work of those parhaipants and we ore
dehghted that we are able to reward them in this way

“Trading since the penod end has been m line with management expeciations
and will confinue to be driven by improvements in product range and availability,
ophimisghion of both our in-store end web offerings, the infroduction of Click and
Collect i the UK and further imvestment in our store portfoho

Dave Forsey
Chiet Executive

16 luly 2015
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EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
SPORTS DIRECT NATIONAL DISTRIBUTION CENTRE, SHIREBROOK

Phase Thiee of the expansion of our Nahional Distmbution Centre in Shirebrook, the construchon of an edditonal ¢ 700,000 sq f
warehouse and office fachity, 1s now well underwoy, with completion scheduled for lote 2015

Wa have also commenced work on on addihonal retail unit and troming centre of our Shirebrook campus, with completion also anhcipated
for late 2015 These expansions will have a renge of benefits for the Group, ncluding an improved environment for staff franing

BUILDING ELECTRICAL DATA

29,000 m® Concrete 60 km Cable 28 km Fibre opnc coble

3,600 tonnes Steetwork 30 km Lighting bus-bor 750 km Category 6 data cable
68,000 m? Roof clodding 11,000 Light fitings 3,000 Informanon outlets
21,000 m? Wall cladding 7 km Cabling containment

8 km Pipework T4 km Fire olorm mpework

1 5 km Building permeter

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING...
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EVERYTHING 1S CHANGING
GROUP BRANDS

Kernmor lounched thesr new mulhichonnel rurning
tampaign, with predommont focus on T, digital, and
instare channels, to comoide with the world renowned
London Marathon The compargn focused on the latest
runming opparel and footwear but also contnbuted to the
lounch of the new Kornmor Ehte running app 2014 akso
sow Kammor expond thew ambassedor ineup by agreemg
o three year deo) with Countryfile presenter Helen Skelton
and resigning Olympic Gold Medolhst Jomes Cracknell for
a further twe years

IS

karrimor

Througheut the year Lonsdale hios contewed to go from
siength to strength, further establishing i positon m the
fight sports market The Lonsdale brand has been showtosed
of vanous events such os BAMMA and the Queensbury
Boxeng League 1t was also o man sponsor ot one of the
biggest fights of 2014 which sow Lensdole’s leoding brand
ombossador Cod Froch knock out George Groves in front of
80,000 ot Wembley Stadm The pay per view event was
wiewed by millians across the globe Furthermore, Lomsdale
signed bexer Nathan Clevery for o three yeer deal which wil
comy the partnership sto 2017

USA Fro lounched its new *Jomn Qur Movement” compoign
which focused on wibrant heso prints and demonstrated the
depth and breadth of the USA Pro collection The campaign
featured women o3 the top of thew game to show thar USA
Pro 15 not st g stylish fitness brond Launched i USC and
Sports Durect ocross a nuraber of chonnels ncluding TV,
retail and digtal, the ‘Join Gur Movement’ campoign 1 o
perfect reflecian of how USA Pro 15 confiauiag to expand
its product offenng ond increase s dommance i the
female fitmess morket

sa pR()

Slozenger and The Championships, Wimbledon agreed to
extend ther Iun?est sianding sporting sponsarshup in the
History of sport for o further three yeor term which will take
the overoll agreemest to 116 yeors The parmership 15 o
perfect reflection of the preshige and |ongewr§ of the brand
ond the extension will continue fo showcase Slozenger
worldwide on the biggest stage there &

3 VEARS
N A

e
T

Ako thes year, Slozenger's ccker ambossador, Englond

st bowles Jimmy Anderson, sumossed Sn ion Bothom os
Englond’s “ollime test wickettoker’ with hes 354th wicket in
his 100th motch




EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
PARTNER BRANDS

Following the successful lounch of Nike's MPT (market ploce
tronsformation) area in our Shirebrook siore in FY, we
decded to lead our new Oxford Street flagship store at the
beﬂ:nnmg of FY15 with an impressive Nike men's roining oreq
i the entmnce The Nike orea and overoll store merchandising
standards and customer service hove been maintoined 10 0
very hugh stondosd snce opening and both businesses ore
pleased with the feedback ond minial results We hove shared
plons 1o roll our further Nike bronded areas in our lasge format
aty cenire stores and wll continue to work closely wath our
Mike team m Shebrook in develol:mg product and retoil
soluhons to gve our customers enhanced shopping expenences
throughout owr store portfolio

We see the Under Armour brond os o signifecont
future gurrner tor the Sports Direct business ond
m FY15 committed to o long term jom1 business
ﬂlun In july 2015 we oﬁened 03,0005 &
nder Armour “shop i § nGu in oUr fecen
refurbished and extended Glosgow Crty Centre
store on Argyle Street We are plonming addinional
spoce for the Under Amour brond os # grows
m populanty i the new Iurge format city centre
stores o they roll out In addition to this, 200
stores will also feafure bespoke Under Armour
base Fayer fixtures by the end of the 2015
calengar year

The ndidas Geoup hos commigted to mveshing severol millan pounds with
Sports Direct across FY16 to build upon the reposinaning work started

i FY15 To dare ths hos included two all door (Sports Direct) window
murkenn% campaigns, o 170 door ol out of o new footboll Bootroom panel
concept, brended space n key locaton doors and continued markenhing
support {Ulixo Boast) for the Swearshop business In FY16 Sports Direct wil
be a key partner for their new foatball sdo lounch ‘Ace v X' meluding enother
oll door wandow campaiga ond Boorropm update There are also plans fo roll
out refreshad ftures for men’s ugpurel acioss the wider estote and g mare
focused Manchester United launch in appropriate stores The adidas Group

s also mv&snngl in a much larger showzoom space at our Shirebrook Head
Office which willfeature a staff raming foclity ond a dedicoted space for the
Reebok brond which we ore also plonrung to tnol with some branded oppere!
space i key doors n FYT4

Puma continue 1o be o key strategic partner for the Sports
Direct business ond in FY15 cemented then strategic
investments i the football cetegory by rolling our 150
Bootroom centre panals to showtose ther new boot
concepts which wos supported by an extensive peniod of
staff :rmnmg They ore akso takmg o segnsficontly larger
office and showsoom spoce m our Shirebrook Head

Dffice ond hove nvested i o dedicated setol specalst

to monage thewr bronded space rofl out and ossorment
planning process

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING .
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EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
SPORTS DIRECT FITNESS

SPORTSDIRECT

During the year, the Group entered the fitness industry with the development

of Spostsgirect Fiiness.com, compeising 25 stondalone gyems purchased from

LA Fiinass and an additicnal rero e build combined resall ond gym spoces. A
further 1o gyms in St Helzns and Oundee are plennzd for aoily muumn 2015,
{1embership continues 1o grow and we hove aeady surpassed aur full vaor
ioigars.

SPORTSDIRECT FITNESS.COM AINTREE




EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
MEGASTORES

W have vrorked haid 1o imprave ond invest in our store partfalio during the
year, wirh o porticulnr focus on lorger ¢ity cantre stores. During the yeor we
relocated our Oxford Streed siore i0 the ¢.50,000 sq. it former KMV siore and
hove completed o 30,000 sq. ft. extansion of our Glasgow store. We hove
recently ot ocquired the freehold of the former Primark store in Leeds. Viorks
are cureendly undarvray on this fous flagy, 50,600 sq. f. store vehich is due 1o
open this summer,

MEGASTORES OPEN

SHIREBROOK - .57,000 SO. F1.
(XFORD STREET - (50,000 5C. FI.
AINTREE - €.40,000 S0 F1.
GLASGOW ARGYLE - €.50,000 S0. F1.
LEEDS - €.50,000 S0. £1.

GLASGOW, ARGYLE STREET BEFORE AND AFTER

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING..

SPORTS DIRECT.com




SPORTS DIRECT AT A GLANCE

The Group cperates through three strafegic business segments Sports Retail, Premwnm Uifestyle and Brands

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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SPORTS RETAIL 85% TOTAL REVENUE

The Group's Sports Retall dwision supplies o wide range of sports and leisure equipment, across an omay of globol bronds,
incheding Group owned bronds such os Dunlop, Slozenger end Lonsdale, thrd porty and licensedin brands This wide
range of producis, combinied with extremely compehtive prang, atticis customers to bath our stores and website i ever
mereasing numbers

As at 26 Apnl 2015 Sports Retod opemted out of 661 stores i the UK and the rest of Europe texcluding Northem
treland) The majonty of stores trode under the SPORTSDIRECT com fascw

We continue to expand and develop our stores, with several relocatians toking place i the year into lorger and better
configured space, so that we are better able fo serve the needs of our austomers Investment has okso continued i
speculist performance areas, with visua merchandiseng improving across te whale of the drasion

In Europe, the Group’s growth hos confinued, with our products being offered vie wholly-owned retail outles, ot
ventures with ofher retuiders and stores wistun another refailer’s store We have contiued the infegranon of the recently
acquied Sport Eybl and Sparts Experts AG (EAG), ond over the coming year will re-hrond key Eybl Megastores fo the
Lillywhites fasin

Dunng the year, os part of our European growth progromme, we ncreased our European store portfolio by mine stores and
entered one new country, with the opening of our Bem stare m Swatzerlond Our strotegy remans to dentify partners in
pew lemnfories whife continung 1o expand our operahons m the counmes where we currently rode

Our online soles continue to tacrense, enhonced i the yeor by the successful mtroduchon of UK Chiek ond Collect and the
development of a streamlined checkout process

£2,398.6m Up 5.5%

PREMIUM LIFESTYLE 7% TOTAL REVENUE

Ratonaksation of the dwvision has aken place throughaut the yeor, induding the dosure of loss-moking stores, the
mitigztion of operohing costs and the relocation of bock-office funciions

The Premium Lifestyle division s a must for those fashian conscious shoppers who demand hghvend and on #rend appare)
The division centres on confemporary huxury with o brond focus, and leading stacked brands nclude Poul Smith, Fends
and Alexonder McQusen The division enables customers 1o express therr mdnduality, with new coflechons regularly being
odded Recent addihons nclude White Preminia, Cerven and Canoda Goose

BRANDS 8% TOTAL REVENUE

The Brands dwsian fcenses our brands to portvers across the world through o committed network of ficansing ond
thstebunion partriers The unique, mtegrated approach to brand managemens ensures consistency, and encourages
contnual myesiment ond global success for the brands

Fotus on our bronds s montmmned through sponsorstup of Seghprofite medio personaliies, events, reoms and venues
Bolddog, o motorcycle disploy teom made fomous in the 2014 senes of Bntam’s Got Talent, ore o ecent addihon to the
No Feos brand, and Sno Zone i Readng 15 o winter sports venue which 1s spoasored by our Newica brand The Slozenger
brond has recently signed a renewal sponsorship of The Chompionsheps, Wirmbledon Slazenger has sponsored fhe event
since 1902, making this one of the longest partmersheps 1n sporting hustory




SPORTS STORES ACROSS EUROPE

Note includes associates in lcelond, Republic of Ireland and Nosthern reland that trade under the SPORTSDIRECT com fastio

SPORTSDIRECTcow  EVERYTHING IS CHANGING..
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

| am pleased to report the Group has once again achieved another solid result, delivenng growth i both Group revenues and EBITDA

EXPANSION

The construction of Phase Three of our Shirebrook campus expansion 1s now well underway # consists of an oddiienol warehouse and office foclity, spanning o ¢ 700,000 sq fr
faotpnnt Occupaney of the first warehouse area & about fo comeence, with population of the remaining arens of the warehouse planned for later in 2015, on schedule We hove glso
commenced work on an addihonal retail unit oad troiming centre of our Shirebrook campus, with completion antipated for lote 2015 The expansions will have o range of benefits for the
Gioup, mctuding on 1mpioved envitonment for staff rmming

Qur Oxtord Steet store has now been open for over 17 months end has been weltrecewved by both customers and suppliers The property, which was the former HMV Flagship store,
allows us to trade over four floors, with ¢ 50,000 sq {t of retad space Gur Glasgow Cty Centre store hias undergone an extension of appromately 78,000 sg 1 , more than doubling
1ts previous footpnng and we hove collaboroted with Under Asmour to offer our customers on excephonal shopping eavironment We have also recently acquired the freshold of the
50,0005 fr former Pnmark store in Leeds, which & expacted to open this summer

We are confident 1n the success of the format used m the stores, which we ntend to roll out further

Qur Fitmess dwiston now has 27 fully operaional gyms ocross England Dunng the year the Group purchosed 25 former LA Fimess gyms, ond developed on additionel two gyms with
sepoiate refail premuses, ensunng that customers con purchase their everyday gym essentials on site

STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS

Strategic lavestments are an mtegral port of the Board strategy to explose new opportunmies to bring our product to morke!

The Group enhanced ts relohonshep with Debenhioms dunng the year with the purchase of an additional strotegic investment in the business, ncreasing our benefical mierest from 4 6%
10 15 0% ot the year end dute of 26 Apnl 2015, which has subsequently reduced since the year end o 10 5% We are cumently malling four concessions within Debenhams stores

SHARE SCHEMES

! am pleosed fo confirm that we have achieved the final Adjusted Underying EBITDA target under the 2011 Shore Scheme and Executve Shore Scheme We hope to reword
partrcipoting employees under the 2011 Shore Scheme for therr loyofty and mofwation by way of share awards The first oward under the 2011 Share Schame & due fo vest iater n
2015, which will distabute ¢ 5m shores to ¢ 2,000 parhapating employees The Group’s Share Schemes aze some of the most generous schemes i the country, and are key fools in
mefvation and retention

Ul £155m wil
2009 SCHEME

BGON £195m el
L8 £215m .

2009 & 2011 screme TARGETS [
2009 & 2011 SCHEME ACHIEVED ||
2015 SCHEME TARGETS [JJ]

2011 SCHEME

Ma .
B £300m
Y16 |

a4ve £570m
2015 SCHEME
R £650m
LA £750m

*Proposed revsed Y4 bosget under the 2015 Share Scheme Sharefiolder approval to amend thr inaget fiom £480m o £420m will be sought of the AGH on 9 September 2015




To the extent that o sigarficont number of partcipoting employees elect to sell some or all of thesr shares, whikr the Company has no obligahon o buy badk the shares, the Bogrd wl
consider o number of options open fo if, mduding whether to (1) implement an ormarkes buy back of shares pursuant to the aushonty given by shareholders et the Company’s AGM
m 2014, er (n} fund the Compony’s Employee Benefit Trust so as to allaw st to acquire shares n the market to replace those shores transfened to purhcipating employees pursuant to
the vesting

As part of our strotegy to dlosely align the interests of our team with those of ous shoreholders, the 2015 Shase Scheme was approved by shareholders ot o Generol Meefing in July
2014 The vesting of owards under the 2015 Shase Scheme is condinonal upo the achievement by the Group of four demonding EBITDA targets, which span between FY16 and FY19
The owards will vest 1n 2019 and 2021, subject fo successful completion of all four argets, and other specfic performance conditions The Executve Deputy Chairmon, Mdke Ashiey,
withdrew from the Scheme dunng FY15 Mike remaans fully committed 1o the achievement of the Scheme's forgets, but would like the facus 1o be on ensunng that the Scheme aligns
with the wider Spors Direct team, and therefore chose to withdrow from the Scheme

As we enter Y16 1t s clear, ond oo understood by the market, that planned acqusiions in FY15 did not fully matenalise Followng tts recent review, the Boord now recommends

to shoreholders o tevised FY16 Adusted Underlying EBITDA target of $420m, rather thon the exsting target of €480m which s now considered to be unreasonbly cheflenging Thus
rompares 1o the Underyimg EBITOA of $383m achieved in Y15 All other rorgers for the further three years of the Scheme cumently remanm the some The Board wall continue to review
the robustness of the 2015 Share Scheme on an annual basis

THE BOARD

Dunng Juy 2014, 1t wos announced that Chorles McCreevy,  Nor-Executive Birector of the Group, would not be standing for re-election at the 2014 AGH Chere, who hod spent over
theee years with the Group, had extensive olkound business knowledge, with pariiculor relevance o Compennon Regulahions | would like to thank hem for hrs valuable contributton to the
Board We are in the process of appomnng o replacement and hope fo make an announcement within the negr future

| om delighted fo welcome Matt Pearson fo the Board in the posinon of Acing Chief Finanaol Officer Mot jomed the business oves exght yeors ogo ond since then hos ganed an in depfh
knowledge of the finances of the Group Mott bas been leading owr Group Finonce Team for several years and s sherefore perfectly ploced to take on the addimonal responsibilives of the
role Further detals relafing to the recrutment of the Boord con be found on poges 37 ond 42

CASUAL WORKERS
Much of the comment regorcing the Group’s use of zero hour controcts has been unfounded and snaccuroze We comply fully with ol tegal requirements which relute to casunl warkes,
including sick pay, hoiiday pay, ond freedom to guin ather employment Cosuol workers olso participate 1n generol incentive schemes

DIVIDEND
The Baard hos decided not to propase a didend i relation to Y5 The Board remans of e opimion that it is in the best interests of the Group and its sharehalders to preserve finncial
ftexibilty, faciitanng the pursutt of potentiol acquisihon ond other growth opportunities The payment of dwidends remains under review n fuvre years

CONCLUSION
Despite ongoing chollenging morket conditions, ond the weunther, we yet again exceeded our torgels n FY15 Such success, vear on yeor, 1s a testament to the hard work ond dedicahon
of oll our workiaree for whuch the Board thonk ond cangrotulote them

Dr Keith Hellowell GPM
NonExecutive Choiman

16 July 2015

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Our business model 15 focused on long-term sustamable growth Whilst we confinue to grow our business in the UK, we are now keen to use
the skills and knowledge we have gamed to busld and expand our Sports Retal business across the rest of Europe

1. IDENTIFY

Brand ncquisitions & property
enhoncement

4. PROMOTE

Group-owned

ACHIEVE

Targets &
brands Group success

2. INVEST

Store porifolio &
workforce

3. DEVELOP

Wehsize & m{onimerce,
enhunced product ranges

Qur offenng has daveloped further i specialist sports categones and more foshionbased
reteihng We are constontly refurbishing and upgrading our stores, n order to provide our
customers wiih ¢ compelfing consumer expenence The continued development of our
dadicated speciclist orens and an-gaing collaborahon wath key supphiers such as Under
Amour end Eurepean brands such os Salomon on inkstore corceps are furthes examples
of this

Acquisthons ond strategi nvestments i related busmesses are an important part of our
stmtegy Opportunihes fo develop into new product categones or markets, or to srengihen
our postaon in exsting oreas, will continue fo be considered on a case by case bosis

We aim to mowmtain our pesthon os the morket leoger in the Sports Retod sector in the UK,
while alse gainmg momentum in our exponsion into Europe The business model prowdes
gudance for the Group to implement an effective growth strategy to maintoin and develop
the success achieved so far It compares our recent successes wath our future ombitions in
order that we can ssess how to progress in the future

The Groug has sigaificant momentum and we must ensure that our product offerng and
cusiomer proposition continue to grow and develop in ordes to retain our current customer
bose ond to attroct more customers in the future

Developing brand awazeness 1s a key facter n ensunng o sustoingble future, and the
appropnote level of investment in odvertising end technology ore Impartant components
in achieving this

Qur mtemanona! presence contiaues to grow through over 260 brond licensing partaers,
our onfine presence ong on-going European store openings The Group's appomiment of !
mternationallyrecognsed celebnhies and sporting professionals os key ombassadors lso
promotes our brands on 6 global basss '



OUR STRATEGY

OBJECTIVE

{50 FAR

WHAT REXT?

IN-STORE

Qur Oxford Street stare opened 1n May 2014, and aur Glosgow City Centre extension was
completed i sprng 2015

Across the UX ond Furope, we hove continued to mvest i specalst pedformance areos ond product
eoflechions, mcluding Kammor and Sendico Impioved wsuol merchandising hos enbionced the
customer shopping expenence We hove ongoing callaberanions with key brands such as Under
Armour, olong with Europeon brands such as Saloman, to deliver enhanced nstore merchandising

Due to the success of the Oxford Sireet and Glosgow Cty
Lentre stares, we ore now lookng o replicate the look and
feel n othes major morkets, starmng with our new Leeds
store, which 1s set to open in summer 2015

ACQUISITIONS

The Group hos acquired 25 former LA Fitness gyms, ofl of which ave focated in the UK

A mumber of other acquisinions hove token ploce n the year, including Gul Watersports, although
the number hos remowmed somewhat smaller than anhcipated

Acqusthons remain o high prionty, pamauiarly outside of
the UK, which wil brooden the customer offeang across the
Group We anhapate thot the number of acquisihons will
ncreqse over fe coming year

1. INVEST

STORE
PORTFOLIO

Dunng FY15, we opened 39 stores m the UX, closing 16, and opened o further 16 stores m
Europs, dlosing seven As ot 26 Apnl 2015, Sports Reiodt operated i 20 countnes in Europe, os
well as m the UK.

Otse Oxfond Street store and our newly expanded Glosgow City Centre store both now span
50,000 sq ft We endeavour o replicate thes i other majer ches

The construchon of a further retaft unit on our Shirebrook compus 15 cumently underwoy, with
complenon due m lote 2015

The Group nfends to continue fo enhance its staig porifolio
i both the UK ond internotionclly The Group will continue
with the stolegy to dentify sirategrc pariners i new
terniones while exponding operohons in these countries
where we currently have o presence Plons are in place to
expand Sports Retail opesanons wto olf the major countnes
i the Eyropesn Economic Are

PEOPLE

The efforts of our dedrcared steff have been instumental 1o the success of the Group

The Z011 Share Scheme has been o key ool used i motvation and refention The targets hove
been successfully achreved and the scheme vests for parhcipanis loter in 2015 ond m 2017

The 2015 Share Scheme was approved by shareholders dunng FY15 Mike Ashley hos withdrown

From the Scheme 1n order to ensure that the focws remais on ohgning targets with the wider
Sports Diract teom, ond not on his gotential persona! flecahon

Due to the success of the 2009 Share Scheme, partitipating
employees are further incentvsed by the 2011 ond 2015
Shore Schemes

WEBSITE

Foltowing successful tnals dunng the yeor, Chick and Collect hos now been launched w the UK n
both Sports Direct and USC and has proved very successful Over 20% of all UK Sports Retol online
orders ond oves 15% of USC online orders are now being delwvered by Chck and Collact

We e redesigned our checkout, ntroduang 0 quest checkout ppton and streamlning the
checkout process

Customers are now oke oble fo purchase ond redeem gift cords online

Porticulor attention has been paid to improwing the language and currency conversion on our siles
for nen€nglish speaking countnes The impravements have led 1o o sigrficant reducnon i dropped
boskets, most notobly in France and Germany

Following mvestment nto our sobde glotforms, mabile visits now equate to over 50% of wsits fo
SPORTSDIRECT corn

Our aim 15 to rof] out Click and Collect ocross ather UK
Group websifes

To improve the customer expenence 1n Europe, we plan to
introduce dedicated websites and offow customers to use
gdditional payment meshods whilg shopping onling, cluding
Ideal, Gro and Sofort

We will prowide continued ivestment in the onling business
Online wisits and sles have shown notable ncreases veor

on year

We plan to introduce o fast pay checkout selution, allowing
customers ta puschase o large number of products i o small
number of dicks

4. PROMOTE

BRANDS

The Graup hos continued to exploat ifs brands by offenng wholescle and heensing opportunshies,
in eddition to sefing brands i Group retal outlets Wholesale ond licensing enalles an ncrensed
ores of distribution, following which brands con reach oudiences which would otherwise

femoin untagped

The focus s fo remoin an intemanonal wholescle, incuding the USA, which cunently represents
¢A0% of the total wholescle revenue

Sports Direqr Retod licensing conimues 1o grow with 14 stores now open in Malaysio and 13 open
in the Middle Eost

Licentsing % & key driver of the Bronds dmision 58 new ficense agresments were signed dunng
FY15, quaronteeing o minimum of $25m in royalhes over the contract penods

The brand portfolio icreased during the yeor through the cquistnion of the Dualep and Slozenger
nghts n the Austrolasia regron

Expansion of the hentage brands, including Everlost, Ounlop
and Slazenges, & expected to conhaue

Dunlog remains @ key focus for expansion, particulardy nio
cotegories wiich have not previousty been explored by the
Group, meluding autornotive aceessories

Acquisihons of key brands will remaun o high proaty,
mcreosing our brond portfolio and weokening the positon of
compentors

Asia Poafic wilt remoin a main area of focus along with
Australosio, expanding the globol presence of the Group

Our well establshed brnds, including Slazenger and Bunlog,
will lead the woy m the region

Investment m key Group brands s expected to continue

m order to allow producis to reach new morkers

and ewstomers

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING...
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Board monitors the Group's performance by reference to o number of Key Perdormance indicators (KPls), which are discussed in this Chief Executive’s Report, and als i the Finanail
Review The most importent of these KPls ore

52 weks ended

26 April 2015 27 4pid 2014 26 Apid 2013
FINANCIAL KPIS
Group revenue £2,832.6m £2,706 Om £2,185 ém
Underying EBITDA £383.2m £330 im £287 9m
Sparis Retol gross morgin 44.6% 2% 40 3%
Sports Retuil ikeforike stores gross contribution +1.4% +10 5% +10 6%
Online revenue os o percentage of tatal Sports Retail revenue © 16.5% 151% 150%
Undedying eamings per share ' 38.9p 321p 26%
NON-FINANCIAL KPIS
No of Sports Retuif stores & 661 629 498
Waorkforce turmover 18.7% 19 2% 155%
Cardboord recycling 9,526 tonnes 9,230 tonnes 8,893 tonnes

{}) The method for cakulating underfying EBITDA t5 set out o the Finanoal Revew

{2) Sports Retod Ekerforike contiibubon 15 defined os she peicentoge chonge i grass contnbubion  the sixcesswe 12 month penod A ke forike store 1 one tha s been fioding for the full 12 months m both penods and has not been
aftected by o signicant change, such as o mojor refurbeshment Exchdes contiibunon in €A ond SIG s the prior year comparative 15 aot @ fl yesr

{3) Extludes wholesale revenue
{4) The method for cokulating underbyweg earmings per share s sef out in the Finoncl Review
{5} Exchuding nssocirtes aod stotes Jn the Balte states thet trode under fasors ether than SPORTLAND or SPORTSDIRECT.com



RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Boord hos 6 respomsibiity to govern the Group n the interest of the shorsholders
Comments and suggeshons of sharehelders are abwoys considered by the Boord
Whese the Boord considers that @ nsk hos not been fully mingated, follow-up meenngs
will be orronged to assess the msk gad formulgle mehgahon strotegies A speciadst
management team of Directors and senior monagess highlight risks as ond when they
become appoarent The team then n turn assists the Board m dewising contrals to
munimse the Group’s exposure

THE GROUP’S APPROACH TO RISK

The denncanon and monagement of nsk 5 o continuous process, and tha Group's System
of mternal contrels and the business continuity programmes are key elements of that The
Group maintoins a system of controls to manage the busmess and 1o protect s assets
with the development of coniingency plans and sapid response to changeng crcumstonces
and does much o mihigate the nsks faang the Group The Group conttnues fo invest in
people, systems and m IT to manage the Group’s operations ond 115 finances effectvely

O

1. RISKS ARE IDENTIHIED
2. RISKS ARE EVALUATED

3. ACTION IS TAKEN TO MANAGE THE RISKS
4. PRACTICES ARE REVIEWED AND MONITORED TO LIMIT THE RISK

The specialst manogement teams gre responsible for the Wentification, analyss,
evoluation ond minganon of the signficant nsks opphicabde to thew areas of husiness

The teams meet eqularly {0 discuss the idenhfied nsks, and bow shese sheuld be revewed
ond montored The Board ensures that the oppropniate arongements are in ploce under
whith staff con rase concerns obour possible finoncial or otker impropnety, which ore then
appiopnately inveshigated

The Boord 15 assssted by the Audit Commuttee in fuffilling its overview responsibilihes,
revgwing e repormng of finanaal and nondinonciol information to shareholders and
the qudit process, saisying itsef that eppropnate systems of mremal control and nsk
menogement are 7 place and ore serng ta idennify ond monege rsk

The Group operates o Retal Support Unit whuch provides strong operahonal stemal oudit
sences i the Retoil dwsion, and there are procedures i place m the Bronds dmsion to
montor ond control icensees The Audit Committes has olso appomted BDO as ntemol
oudit odwsers (see Audit Commttee repart on page 40)

The externol ouditors are imvited fo artend all meenings of the Audit Committes, save for
thosa ports of any meening when the Committee reviews the performanice of the ouditors

The Group's system of miemal conivol and sk management ond is effectveness 5
monstored ond rewiewed by the Boord, the Audit Committee and manogement, and the
Boord believes that the Group has mointoined throughout the yeor and up to the dote of
opproval of the Annuol Report ond accounts gn effechve embedded system of infemat
conteol and has complied with the FRC's Risk Guidonce

The systems of intemal control and sk monogement gre designed fo manage, rather than
efiminote, the msk of foring to achieve business objectves

RISK POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

Business plans ord budgets for each business include financial ond stratequc targers ogomst
which performance s monitored Momitarng ncludes the exarunation of and chonges

to solling annual and quarterty forecosts, monthly mensurement of octuat achievement
ogains! key performance targets and plans, ond weekly reviews of performance

The Group has clear procedures for the approval and control of expenditure Strategic
investment deasions mvohng both copitol and revenue expenditure ore subyect to formal
derodded approssal and review according to approval levels sef by the Board Operating
expenditure s contralled within each business with approval bevels for such expenditure
bewg determined by the indmdual businesses

There s an approved whistle-blowing policy within the Group The policy wos estoblished
to be utilised by staif who wish to rose any ssues or concems relafing to the Group's
octates, ond afl motters are dscussed on o confidenitol boss

KEY RISKS

CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

The Group's operating pracedures include @ comprehensive system for reporting
information to the Board mcluding

« assessment of threa years of strategy plans for business development,
* creotion ond ossessment of lego! policies, and

« review of the Group of each Boerd meating, focusing on potentinl new nsks (such as
key chonges 1n the market and succession plonning)

CONTROL PROCEDURES

Detaifed aperanienal procedures have been developed for each of ihe Group’s operafing
busingsses that embody key controls The implications of changes n law ond regulatrons
are taken into account wittin these proceduses

FINANCIAL REPORTING PROCESS

The Group hes 1n place mtemnol control and nsk monogement systems n +elation to

the Group's fingncial repasting process and the Group’s process for the preparetion of
consohdated occaunts These snchude clearly defined lines of occountability and deleganon
of authonty, pokoes ond procedures tat cover financiol planniag and reporting, preparnng
consolidated occounts, copital expenditwre, project governance end information secunty

The Audit Comrmitiee s responsible for overseeing ond momitonng these processes, which
ore designed fo ensure shat the Group comphies with relevant regulstory reporting oad
filng provsions As at the end of the perod covesed by this Repori, the Audit Commtree,
with the pariopanon of the Chief Executive, evaluated the effechveness of the design
and operation of disclosure controls and procedures designed fo ensure that informancn
required to be dsclosed in finoncial reports  recorded, processed, summansed and
reported wathin specfied time penods

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING...
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

(ONTINUED

PRINCIPAL RISKS AFFECTING THE GROUP

The Group hos dentfted the following foctors in the following table os patential rsks to, ond uncertainhies cancerning, the successful aperstion of its busmess The Group s, however,
exposed 10 0 wider range of nsks thon dscussed below but these are the prnipal nsks shot hove recently been discussed by the Board and Audit Committee and ore of pamary concern

AREA

RISK

MITIGATION

SUPPLY CHAIN

The Group opernies intemationally so 15
seliant on the successhul dishibution of
goods from when they are distnbuted by
the manufacturer to when they are sold
n ihe stores

The Gsoup & reliant on manufacturers in
developing countnes os the mojonty of
the Group’s products are sourced from
outside the UK

KEY SUPPLIERS

The Group e subject 1o the nsks associated with
internafonal trode and tanspont as welt as those
relatig to exposure to diferent legal and other
standards. Parhcular nsks induding worker strikes,
fmhure to meet rminmum code of conduct standards,
and transport defoys for products which could all
couse substannal difficutnes

Dssusters in o around the factones of our supphers
could bang negative medio ottention to the Group

The Group requures oll supplters to sign up o the Group’s Code of Ethics /Supply
Policy which enables the Group to monitor and benchmork the performance of
the suppler Iv allows the Group to cory out inspechions of premses fo ensure
complionce wath the Group's codes for contnuity ond quality of supply The Pohicy
extends throughout the durahon of the Group's contract with eodh supplier and
altows the Group to conduct inspections of suppher premises af random wtervals

Many nsks relating to the supply chom, relionce on nom-UK suppliers, ard to the
reputation of the Group’s brands are manoged ond mitigated by the implementotion
of these pofices Strong Serwce Level Agreements ond maintoming relotionshaps
with alt paries mvalved n the supply choin olso mngate these nsks

The Group 15 refiant on good
relatsonships with its mojor
manufacturers, key brands or
brand suppliers

A falure to reploce any of its major manufocturers

or supphers on commerciolly reasonable terms could
hove an odverse effect on the Group's business,
opesating profit ar overoll finoncial condition It may
meqn thet customers shep elsewhere ff sfores cannot
supply the required product

The Group follows policies of forging long-temn relanonships with supplters and
of utlsing two leading supply cham companees to procure much of the Group's
own branded goods This close reltionship brings o berter understonding of
the supplier’s resgurces enablng the Group to react quickly o changes in the
mterngtional supply market

Lengthy contracts are often used by the Group to ensure that key monufocturers are
aware of our commuiment tp them

TREASURY AND FINANCIAL RISK

The Group operates wnrernotionglly The
moyonty of foreign contracts relahing o
the sourcing of Group branded goods
ore denominoted in US Doflars and the
Euro, thys legving exposure fo foreign
exchonge risk

The Group has net bornowings, which
ore principally of #oating interest rofes
linked ta bank base rates or LIBOR

The Group 15 exposed 1o foreign exchange nsk onsing
from vanous currency exposures ond o strengthening

of the US Dallor or o wegkening of the Pound making
goods more expensive

Foreign exchanga sk anses when future commercial
transacttons of recognised assels of liabdities ore
denomimated n o currency that i not the enhiy’s
funcronal curency, as exchorge rates move This
could signdicantly reduce profiobilry

The Group seeks to mimgate she FX fluctuations by hedging via forward foreign
cursency controcts which ore designated os cash How hedges

The Group also holds ossets overseas i local currency, and these assets are
revalued 1 occosdonce wish currency movements This cumency aisk s aot hedged

The Group s cash generative and 15 now tasgeting its debt fevels fo mingate intersst
rate nisk ond currently has debt levls of less thon 1 x underfying EBITDA

CREDIT AND LJQUIDITY RISK

The Group, pramardy the Brands drsion,
growdes credit ro seme of 1S customers

Funding and baudsty for the Group’s
apesations ore provided thiough
henk loons, overdrafts and
shareholders’ funds

The Group could have o credit sk if credit evaluahons
were not performed on ol cstomers requinng credit
OVEI 0 Certain amount

The Group’s objectve 1 to mentom sufficient funding
ond kquigity for 155 requirsments, but #he ovarlability
of odequate cosh resources from bank faulities ond
achveving continuiry of funding 1n the current financral
chmate could be o nsk ta the Group i future years

The purchose of acqusstiions fo strengthen and
complment the Group oy be hindered

Relahonshigs with suppliers could breok down if
we gre unoble fo pay them in bae with our
contrachsl obligations

The Group’s key supphers also face credit nsk ond os such the Group regularly
essesses the viabiliry of its supphiers and ensures there are plans to source from
altemative businesses should key supplers fail

Rigorous procedures are i place to mihgote this credit sk The Group has o credit
policy in place and the expasure to nsk 1s monurored en an orgoing boss

Credit evaluations ore performed on all customers requinng credit aver o certon
amount, ond conceatrahon of credit nsk 1s manoged

Investment of cash surphus, borrowings and denvaive invesiments gre mode
through barks ond companies whech have credit ratings and investment cnteng
approved by the Boord

The Group misgotes hiquidity msk by keeping debt levels fow and the current finance
focdty i held with o club of 13 banks, thereby spreading the nsk




SUCCESSION PLANNING

Key ndmduals within the Group

hove such o kevel of knowledge and
expenence of the business which makes
them essentiol to confinue to further the
wterests of the business

Notural dwaster, llness, ingury, or the sudden
resignation of key indmduaks could change the
directron of the Group

Qur departments work together to develop their understending of eath department
ond of the Group Semor marngers work at ground level 1o help fo assess the
strengths wathin thewr teoms and o offer development opportunities where
oppropnate This can be of ossistance when considenng the suitahildy of mternol
tendidates for vacancees

Promation opporurihes, o competency fromewaork, and requlor eppraisals give stoff
£ voice, encourage o sense of responsibility end support corees progression

Qur structured falent monsgement progrommes, ond specialist mosterclosses,
encouroge interngl progression within the Group

Executive development is important fo us and we om fo promete internally mther
than recrutt external indnaduals whe are unknown to the Group This can be best
seen through the recent prometion of Matt Pearson to Acting Chief financial Officer

Qur Share Schemes seek o reward and retain our key members of staff

The Nomination Cornreattee regularly rewiews the Succession plan of the Group, ond
discusses who would toke over roles f key teem members were to feove

SPORTSDIRECY com

MARKET FORCES

The Sports Retart industry s highly
compentive and the Group currently
competes ot nohenal and local levels
with 0 wide vanety of ratmlers of
vorying sizes who may hove competiiwe
gdvantages New compenfors may enter
the market

The compehiion contimues to place pressure on the
Group’s picing strategy, margins ond profitability

The Group has a drscount pricing policy 1o hefp reduce the ask of incrensed
competition m the industry

The Group has a strang progerty portfolio, and continues fo strengthen this by
relocating and mproving stores to adopt fo market condrhions

A number of key brands are owned by the Group, reduang pressure on margins
The Group’s focus on owguiang competiiors enables us 1o retam our discounted
priong systems wathout prce mcreases from the brand ewners

OPERATIONAL

The Group 1s rehant on the Haod Gffice
gnd Neteonal Dismbution Centre af
Shirebrook operating without disruption,
clong weh the uninterrupted tunming of
the Group’s fleet of veludes

Tae majorty of the Graup’s reveaue 1s
derveg from the UK

Any disruphion fo the Head Office, Nahonol
Distmbution Centre of the fleet of vehicles mught
signiicantty impact the Groug's ohiliy fo manage
its operatians, distabute products to 1ts stores and
maintam its sugply chaim

Any fong-term intesruntion of the Group's 1T systems
would have o significant imgact on the Group's
aperation, particuiory in the Retoif division:

Terronst oftacks, armed conflicts, govemment ochions
or odverse weather offeching the rood nefworks
wittin the UK could result 1n o signiicant reduchion in
consumer cosfidence, which would i tum have an
odverse offect on soles i stores

The Group hos o smong business continusty plan thet is regularly reviewed to
tddress operahonal risks

The Board 15 confident that os fer o5 1 1s practical, the nsks and uncertamhies
that face the Group are beng monitored and managed and that, where required,
appropriate acton 15 beng faken

The Group constantly monitors the business environment ond the nature
of the business model allows for the Group to oct swiftty under
extraordinary crcumstances

The Group 15 extending the Heod Office ond Nanonal Dismbunon Centre so thar
there 1 additzonal raom for storage and workers, fos future business needs ond In
cose of disaster

CYBER FAILURES AND ATTACKS

Onling sales and odvernsing ave key
10 the Group’s saragy going forward
However cyber otfcks are becoming
moie sophistecoted and frequent,
commanding headlines and losing
customess” frust

Reputahonal implicahions if the atiack is reported
ta the media, ncluding & foss of sales whils! the
site ts down, and langer tarm loss of sales through
the detenarahon of customer confidence Possible
sanchons eng pengites from overseeing bodies,
and the loss of compeftive odvanfoge agaimst
mozket (ompetitors

The Group hos ¢ strategy and processes i place which relate o our 1T security
Working with internal and external parties, our colleagues conrnuously monifor
our systems fo ensure that they ere suffiiently strang to deal with ever incressing
tyber nsks

Dunng 2014, a review of the IF asks wos complated The review looked into the
restlience of the current systems, hrghlighting the major points of concern regarding
the Group IT systems The motters rawsed will be worked an aver the next two fo
thiee year penod m a follow up monttonng programme

Qur IT ond Rsks teams have held workshaps to assess the key technology threats
to the Group, ond look into where pofiaes require updaning and amending

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING ..
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

CONTINUED

HEALTH & SAFETY

Health ond sofety s key across oll orees
of the Group Policres are implemented,
i corgunchion with legal stondords, fo
protect our staff and customers

The Group’s trade marks, patents,
designs and other mrellectual property
nghts are central fo the value of the
Group’s bronds

Potentiol inunes, distress and fatalihes could

result from a folure to estoblish ond maitn sofe
emaronments Lack of competence m health ond
safety reporhing could leod to fegel cloims which ore
dificult fo defend

The Group beheves that 1is licensees, supphers,
agents and dstnbutors are in matenal comphance
with empleyment, emaronmental and other lows
The wiolaton, or allzgations of o wolation, of such
laws or requlatiens, by ony of the Group's licensess,
supphars, agents or dstnbutors, could lead to
adverse pubhcity ond o dachne m public demand for
the Group’s products, or require e Group to ncur
expenditure or make changes to s supply <hain and
other business arrangements to ensure complignce

The Group may need to resort fo lingation in the
future to enforce s infelfechual progenty nghts and
aay fingation coutd result n substanhaf costs and o
diversion of resources

Third porties moy fry fo challenge the ownership of or
counterfert the Group’s intellectuol property

We ensure thot ench Compony within the Group & fully trained fo the required
stondards opphcable in each requisite country

Trmning courses ore reqularly offered and staff are encouraged o leam essentiol
health and sofety techniques

The teom ot Head Office 15 alwoys on hond 1o visit and assist stores with heglth ond
safety ssues, assess mncidents ond refer reportable matters to RIDOR Dunng the
year the team has gomed another strond by creating o tegm of employees which s
dedicated fo solely deolng wath claums ond complamnts

The madents within the Group ore reported to the Board requlardy, s are the
legol claims thot anse from these The Boord consider ways to reduce the aumber
of daims

The Group hos an mhouse legal teom who hove knowledge of o vonety of
legol areos that apply to the Group This ivhouse expertse s wital in migahing
such sssues

The legal team work closely with external consultonts fo assist wath, ond gain
knowledge on, matters outside ther areas of experse

The Group’s legal feom ochvely monitar trode mark apphcaons by other
comparues, os well os the stock of mval retallers, o ensure that our nghts are not
infnaged and where these are infringed, to take oppropnate achion

The legal team corefully draft all correspondence to ensure that dorumentaton
 tlear ond legally binding Druffing templates and key points ore shared so ot
kowledge rs retaimed within the Group

SALES

The Group’s retall busimesses are subject
ta seosonak peaks The inadence of and
portiuipaian in Major sgoring events
wilt have o particulor impac on the
Sports Retail bustness

Prolonged unseosorat weother condinons or
temposary severe weather dung peck Irading
sensons cauld hove ¢ matenol adverse effect on the
Group’s businesses The Group 1s dependent upon the
store portfolio and consumers” spending habits

Customer tostes could chonge and stocked tems
could no longer be suthle for the market

Although unable to mibgate emvisonmental conditions, the Group s able to mfluence
the retail portfolio and therefore constontly manisoss development of stores and

the Geoup’s mm to increose the square footage through wiable new retol space By
manioring stack levels thiough sales forecasting the Group con manage the peaks
in demand aad fradiag profiles can be predicted

Buitding sales units at our Heod Offica ond National Distabution Centre allows us to
tnal end monttor differing sales techniques and products, before rolling these out o
the rest of the Group

Qur team keep ohead of the trends, canducking market ressaich on our customers
and monitonng our competitors Soghistcated ordenng systems ensure that items
which sll wall m porticular arens will be restocked Qur strong relahonshup with
suppliers ensures that we are able to source key ttems ot short natice, should this
be required




CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT & BUSINESS REVIEW

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

| am pleased fo report that, despite the odverse mpact on performance of England'’s early departure from lost year's FIFA World Cup n
Brazi and the unseasonably mild weather during autumn reducng footfall, the Group hos, yet agam, succeeded in delivenng another sofid

set of results

The Group has achieved another year of revenue and profit growth i a challenging refail
emvronment, drven by contnued exponsion both i the UK and ocross Europe Dunng
the yeor we hove ncreased our store partfolio i the UK by 23 stores ond hove added

o further mine stores fo our European store portfolio We hove also continued to develop
large city centre formet stores

We have akso eskoblished a Fimess dnasion in the yeor, Sportsdirect Frimess com,
comprsing 27 gyens including two combined gym ond retod sites

| am defighted to onnounce tho the Group has now met the final torget under the 207
Share Scheme The first aword under ths Scheme 15 due to vest later in 2015 and will
reward ¢ 2,000 partiapahng employees for their hard work ang dediconon The Group's
continued success Fruly reiterates how important the Share Schemes have been in
motating parmepants to work fowords o shored gool

GROUP

Group revenue ncreosed by 4 7% o £2,832 6m in the yeor This was pnmartly due fo
the Sports Retarl dwision, whare we grew revenues by 5 5%. Premum Ufestyle revenue
fell By 3 0%, largey due fo the closure of lossmaking stores in the penod

Group grass morgwn In the yest increased by 110 basis pomts from 42 7% t0 43 8%
Sports Retall dwvision gross margin incregsed by 170 basss points to 44 6% (FY14
42 9%), while Bronds drisior gross margin decreased to 40 3% (FY14 43 1%)

Group operaning costs mncreased 4 2% to £860 5m (FY14 £824 1m) We continug fo
Batance revenues and gross maigie, while moinaining o night focus an operating costs
and os a result grew Group underymg EBIFDA (prescheme costs) for the yearby 15 7%
10383 2m (FY14 £331 Tm) Within this undedying EBITDA, we scrensed the Retail
dresion EBITDA by 14 0% to £34% 1m (FYT4 £300 9m} whie the Bronds dwsian
EBITDA mcrsosed by 12 9% to €34 Tm (FY14 £30 2m)

Excluded from undertying £3ITDA s 0 £10 1m {FY14 §11 9m} chorge n respect of the
2009 ond 2011 Share Schemes Ths charge hos been token cenizaffy and, except n note
4 1o the Annuel Report, 15 rot reflected wn the dsional (Retoit and Bronds) numbers in
this taport

For the year, Group undertying profit befose tox increased 20 5% to £300 3m, prmanty
as 0 result of the €52 1m increase n EBTTDA (pre-scheme costs) Underying EPS for the
veor ncreased by 21 2% 10 38 9p {FY14 32 1g)

Net debt ot 26 Aprl 2015 was €59 7m (27 Apnl 2014 £212 Om), which 15 0 16 times
reponted EBITOA (27 Apnl 2034 0 86 tmes) Reported EBHTDA ncludes realssed forengn
exthange goins /losses in sefing ond odmenstrehion costs and the Share Scheme chaxges

REVIEW BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

RETAIL REVENUE:
52 woeks endad
26 4l 2015 27 i 2014
{€'m) T'm)
Sports Retait 23986 272744
Premiym Lifestyle 2076 2141
Total Retoll revenue 2.60672 24885
Cost of sales {1,456 6) (1,427 3)
Gross profl 11496 1,061 2
Gross margin perentoge 41% 42 6%
BRANDS REVENUE:
57 weeks ended
26 b 2015 27 hpil 2014
(&'m) {£'m)
Wholesalz 1933 1852
Licensmg 31 323
Total Bronds revenue 226 4 nrs
Cost of sales {1352 (123 8)
Gioss margin 92 937
(ioss margin percentage 40 3% 43 1%
SPORTS RETAIL

Sports Retal revenue has grown i the penod as we contenug o snvest i product range
and avallatility, wcreasing the proportion of ‘better” and “best” Group braaded products,
aptimise both our m-store ond web offenngs and further imvest in our store portfolio

Spors Retail soles grew 5 5% fo £2,398 6m (FY14 £2,274 4m), duoven largely by
growth i the UK, offset by a weak winter sports season across Eurepe and odverse
foreugn cursency movements Sports Retait gross masgn for the year increased by 170
basts pomnts to 44 6% (FY14 42/9%) This incrense s pnmanly attbutable o on-going
Javestment in our “befter ond best” product ranges, further enhonced by efficencies gained
by our stzong supply chain discphines

Sales in the second haf of the yeor were up 2 6% 10 £1,167 ém {FY14 12
£1,138 3m) Gross margmns for she second half of the year improved to 44 6% {FY14
H2 42 5%)

Sports Retuul likefor ke gross contnbuhan, which excludes ontne, ncreosed by 7 4%
marking the sixth comsecurve vear of growthin this KB (FYT4 +10 5% / FY13
+106% /P12 407% /11 +6 8% /FY10 +3 7%) Sports Refal hkeforlike
contnbuton s defmed as the percentage change in gross contbution in the successive
12-mpnsh peniod A ikefor-dike store 1 ane that has been froding for the full ¥2 months
n both peniods ond has not been effected by a signricant chenge, such os o major
refurbishment The number of stores included m ths year's KPl s 432 (FY14 339

{1} Exchuding ERG ond SI6 0 the priot yen: compartive ts not o full vea
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Sports Retail operaning costs mcreased by & 0% in the year to £715 2m (FY14

€656 3m) compored to 0 5 5% incrense m soles and o 9 7% mcreose i gross profit due
to the full yeor impact of propartionolly igher costs m our recently ocquired Europeon
businesses Operating costs n HZ increased by 4 6% to £341 4m (FY14 HZ £345 5m)
compared to o 2 6% mereose m soles ond o 7 7% incrense t gross profit

Store woges were up 13 1% in the yeor fo £239 Zm (FY14 £211 4m) butos o
percentage of sales incrensed only to 10 0% (FY14 9 3%) due to the ennualised

effect of new store openings combined wath the full year impact of proportionolly higher
costs in our recently ocquired European businesses and reduced sales due to o difficult
winter sports seoson m Eurape Sperts Retoil store prenuses costs mereosed by 9 5% to
£211 0m (FV14 €192 7m), due to mvestment in new stores ond the full yeor effect of
comparatvely hugher costs in aur new European businesses Other operating costs were
up 13 9% 10 €260 8m (FY14 £246 ém), increosing os o percentoge of salesto 11 7%
(FY14 10 8%) due to costs in our recently estoblshed Fitness divsion

The cutrency impact an opesating costs of the change in the Euro Sterling exchange in our
European businesses rote was a gam of €15 7m (FY14 o loss of €5 6m)

Undertying EBITDA for Sports Reroif was £356 8m (FY14 €321 3m), an increase of
11 0% for the year This mcrease wos dnven by o £94 2m increase i gross profit due
to the growth in store contnbution and online sales, offset by the €59 Om ncrease mn
operghing costs

The Group’s retall businesses performed strongly in o difficult economic envionment Qur
retad model, offering outstonding vetue to our customers, remarns resilient, both 1a the UK
and internatanally Throughout the yeor, we continued to focus on offenng our astomers
the most comprehensive product renge, the best ovailability and value while minimesing
operafing costs o5 @ percentage of gross soles

Online revenue hos ncregsed by 14 4% From £335 4m to €383 Bm m the yeor, daven
largely by the successful lounch of Click and Collect in the UK dunng the second half of
the year, which now aczounts for over 20% of aff X online orders This performance 15
excephonal considenng we charge £4 9% for this service Onling sales represented 16 5%
of Sporis Refod soles (FY14 15 1%), excluding wholesols soles

COur mobile site confinues to drve soles and the Group was secently ronked m the top four
retatlers n the FTSE 100 n terms of mobrle webstte performante, accordmg fo g recent
study released by The Search Agency*  Mobile troffic now accounts for aver 50% of oll
onling vistts We hove akso re-desrgned owr checkout, mtrodueing o guest checkout ophan
and smesmiining the checkaut pracess

We have worked hard to improve the customer expenence i Europe, widening the
language oné currency conversion aptions on our sites for nor-Enghsh speaking countres,
and gaing forward, plan to introduce dedicated websites for our Eusapean businesses ond
addihonal peyment methods induding ldeal, Giro and Sofors

Followsng successful tnals dunng the yeor, crstomers are naw able to purchase ond redeem
gift cards onhine We are olso warking towards she intrduction of o “fost poy™ checkout
system, allowing customers to purchose o lorge number of produrcts in o smoll number of
thcks

The division has confinued fo expand, with the development of Spartsdirect Fitmess

com, comprsing 25 standalone former LA Fimess gyms and on additonal two new buld
combined retat and gym spaces A furthes two gyms in St Helens and Dundee ore planned
for early outumn 2015 Membership continues o grow ond we hove okeody sumpossed our
full yeos targets

= The Searth Agency UK s Mobids Expenesxe Scorecord FTSE 100 Comgazees - hitp://go thesearchagency tom,/
moble-expenence scorecord-ftse- 1002015

We hiove continued to 1mvest n staff trmining, with o key focus this yeor on our “Home
Grown™ Talent Monogement programme, Customer Senvice Trining and Manogement
Induction Bunng the year over 58,000 hours ware ivestad nto troning and develaing
our workforce A greot deal of #his traming ook place o our Traming Acodermy on our
Shirebrook compus, which 1s the only traming centre i the world supported by both

Nike and Pump We ase committed fo the coninued development of our stoff, olways
uiming to promote intemnlly wherever possible ond dunng the yeer ron ous first Groduate
Recrutment Progromme, “Talent Bonk”, where gradustes were placed m our Finance ond
Ecommerce teams fos erght-week summer placements and offered the opporturity fo
compete for o permanent role, with the best being rewarded

Phase Three of the development of our Notionol Dismbuten Centre m Shirebrook, the
construction of an addienal ¢ 700,000 sq ft footpnt worehouse and office fociy, s
now well underway, with complenon scheduled for late 2015

We have worked hord fo enhance and mwest in our store portfolio dunng the yeos, with o
particular focus on lorger city centre stores Dunag the year we relocated ous Oxford Street
store to the ¢ 50,000 sq ft former HMV store and hove completed o ¢ 28,000 5q i
extension of our Glosgow store which ndudes o store in store concept oreg wath Under
Armous We have recently also acquured the freehold of the former Pamark store i Leeds
Works ore currently undesway on thss four floar, ¢ 50,000 sg ft store which ts due to
open this summer

Dunng the yeor we opaned 39 stores in the UK, closing 16, and hove opened an oddimanol
16 stores n Eurape, dlosing seven 12 out of the 16 UK closures wese refocations

it lorger ond better confiqured space 428 of the UK store fascia are now branded
SPORTSDIRECT com, an inciease of 27 from lost yeor (FY14 401)

Penod end square-footage merensed te ¢ 4 75m sq fr ™ (FY14 ¢ 4 5m) @ the YK and
remained at ¢ 3 Omi s ft @ (FY14 ¢3 Omsq ft ) across the rest of Furope

[}) bue o differng methodokegres, this implies o tonge between 4 Smsg 5 Omsg ft
(2) Due fo difering methodologyes, this imphes o range between 2 Smsg ft 3 5msq ft

UK STORE PORTFOLIO™

26402015 27 dnl 2014
Stares ot Year End 440 417
Opened 39 32
(losed 14 Al
SPORTSDIRECT ¢om fascias 428 401
Other 13 17
Area {sq 1t) c475m ¢45m
(1) Extluding Northetn lielond

In ke 52 weaks to 26 Apn 2015, rent reviews have been agreed on 33 stores, of which
26 stores were agreed of ni ingrease Of the remoining seven stores the oversge increose
i rext was 13 B7%, gning a tofal average mcrease over the 33 stores of 2 88% (0 57%
annvl equivalent) Fhere ave currently 52 rent reviews outstanding with o funther 42
folng dug m FY16 Our lease expiry profile over ll leasehold stores (excluding Litywhiies
Ficcoddly) 1s now 4 6 yeors, mcluding 37 stores with contmaciual expies or break dates
within the next 12 months Thes significant amount of flexibility within our portfoio

allows us to connnue to merutor and adapt our fommat to the mpidly chonging mulk
thannef emvironment

In the current finonaol year, we ore torgehing #o open between 30 and 40 stores, ¢ 30%
of which are expected to be relocohons We org ko toigeting to refit ¢ 300,000 sq fr of
retal spoce ocross the UK




INTERNATIONAL STORE PORTFOLIO"

PREMIUM LIFESTYLE
Premum Lifestyle sales decrensed 3 0% 10 £207 6m (FY14 £214 1m), due to the

264pd 2015 27 hped 2004
- % 57 closure of lass-moking stores w the yeor Premwm Lifestyle gross margin for the year
decrensed by 150 boss pornts to 38 8% (FY14 40 3%) due to online cleorancs of legacy
Belgum 43 44 siock n the yeor
Estonia® 24 20 p
remum Lifestyla operoting costs decrensed by 17 3% to £88 Zm (FY14 €106 7m) due
Lowva™ 13 13 1o she confinued raonalisation of the USC and Repubhc busiesses and synergies goined
Lithoonig® 17 12 by the consohdation of key head office funchons in Flonnels, Cnuse and Von Mildert and
Poruga 7 T the mtegrotion of the dsmbunon funchon
Slavemo 15 15 The Underlying EBITDA loss for Premwm Lifestyle decreosed o €7 7m (FY14 £20 4m
Palond 10 7 loss) os we began fo see the benefit of the restructuang of Republic in the pnor year
ond rationalisanan of the ather businesses We will see furthes benefits of thrs m the
France 7 6 coming year
(zeth Republic b 4
i P (nhne revenue i the dvision increased m the year, dnven largely by improvements in
Hallond 8 8 stock availabity and system amgrovements We saw the beneht of the integionon of
Cyprs 6 5 thedwsion's eCommerce plofforms with the Group's IT systems and the lounch of the
Hungary g 4 Flonneks com and USC mobile plotforms in the pror year We also successfully launched
UK Click ond Collect 1n USC dunng the year and over 15% of oll USC onfine orders are
Slovokso 4 3 now dehvered vio Cick ond Collect
Gemony 3 3 W fh lationships wath key third I
uxembourg 2 7 & confinue 10 strengthen our relofionships with key furd porty suppliers
Spom ] 1 At the yeor end, the Premum Liestyle dwision troded from 103 stores under four
Switzerlond 1 e fesaos
Totol 221 212 26 Apel 2015 27 kel 2014
(1) Exchding Republic of Irefond R keelond us¢ 6 %0
(2} Inchodes ondy stores with SPORTSDIRECT com and Sporond fascas (ruse 10 10
All of the above stores are operated by comparues wholly owned by the Group, except Vlun i 10 :
Portugal, whete the Group owns 50 1% nd Estonia, Latvia and Lihuani where the Gioup - onnels com §
owns 60 0% Dusng the yeor we hove expanded our Furopeon stare portfolio by rne Other 9 9
stores and have entered 4na new country As o result we ore now achve in 201 countnes Totol 103 126

acress Europe including the Republic of refond and Icelond

In Austria, we have continued to efocote and upgrade the former Sposts Experts stoses
which hod been previously re-branded to the SPORTSDIRECT com foscia Over the coming
yeoi we will rebrand key Megastores to the Ullywhites fosao, replicating ous UK aty
centre store format across the re-branded stores i collobosotion with key mterngfiona)
bronds such as Salomen

In the Balne stotes we hove olrendy opened two stores n Estonia under the

SPORTSDIRECT com fascic and plan o open two further stores i Lithuonis ond one stere in
Lotvo undes the SPORTSDIRECT com fesain W have also cantinued o invest t refocating
ond refitting the stores trading under the SPORTLAND fosca

Qur strotegy remaxs 1o entify partners in new temiones wile continuing fo expand our
oparetions in the countnies where we currently fode For FY16, we are toigefing fo open
between 20 and 30 new siores across seven countries

The Group hos o 50% shareholding 1n the Heatons chom which operates 15 Sports Direct
siores n Norther Ireland aad 27 sparts stores i the Republic of Irefand We ofso own o
40% shoreholding in the Sports Direct busimess n Icelond

Local management cantinue fo work hard to ensure thot oll new ond exssting stores In
Eurpe ore committed to stivang towords the operahiona efficiencies and standards tho
exist geross our UK spors siores

BRANDS

The Group’s brand portfoho includes & wide vanety of word-fomous spast, foshion and
Iifestyle bronds The Group’s Retgd dansion sells producrs under these Group brsnds 1n

its stores, ond the Brands dwasion exploiss the brands through is wholesals end bcensing
acthes The Brands dwision confnues 10 sponsor o vaniety of presngious events and
retmins o vanety of glabafly recogmised, hugfrprofile sponsmen and women os

brasd ombossadors

Brands draston total revenue increased by 4 1% to £226 4m {FY14 £217 Sm}
Wholesale revenues were up 4 4% to 193 3m (FY14 €185 2m), mcluding growth n
the challenging UK market Troding m the US market wos n line with expectotions ond
confinues fo represent ¢ 40% of foral wholesale sales

Brands giess margen decreased by 280 basss points to 40 3% (FY14 43 1%) Wholesole
gross margins fell 310 basss pownis to 30 1% (FY14 33 2%) lorgely due to o shit n the
sales mux townrds lower margin lines

Licentsing revenues i the yeor were up 2 5% to £33 Im (FY14 £32 3m)

Bunng the yeor we signed 58 new ficence ogreements, covenng multiple bronds, product
categanes ond geogrophies, with mummurm contracted values of $25m over the lite of
the agreements At 26 April 2015, the Group has 407 Fcense ogreements workdwide™,
auass 264 hcensees, with contracted mimmuns of $305m over the remaining e of
the ogreements

£1) Inclodes consolidonon of agreements s:gred m paos years.

n
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Longer rerm, we shil regard hicensing os the key dnver of Brands dwsion profitabildy end
central to the oversll growth of the Bronds business The key growth areas are expected
to nclude Austrolosio and Asio Pacilic wath the ocqusition of the Dunlop and Slazenger
brands n the region dunng the yeor Fis combmed with growth i the Amencas should
compensate for o more challengng heensing londscape i the UX and Ewope, os Sports
Refoll connnues o expand in these femtones

Dperonng costs decreased by 9 7% to €57 Om (FY14 £63 1m) benefiing from the
consobdanon of pur buck office functions in the prior yeor As a result of cost savings,
underying EBITRA increased by 12 9% to €34 Tm (FY14 £30 2m)

Wa continue to focus on developing word-closs products that are endorsed by leding
athletes on the field of ploy We expect to spend between €10 ond £20m on odvertiing
ond promotonal costs in the cortung yeor

WORKFORCE

The success of the Group hos largely been created by our ¢ 27,000 stiong workforce,
whose dedicaon and commutment hos been sustained over mony years Their enthusiosm
and ‘one team’ ottitude has ossisted the Group o succeed where many other retarers
hove falled The Boord s extremely grateful for the hme that our workforce hos taken fo
develop their skills and expernse We promote stoff training wherever possible to enable
thern to be the best that they con be

The 2009 ond 2011 Share Schemes hove been fundomentat tools i the motvation and
incentvisation of porhicipating employees Under the 2009 Shore Scheme, ¢ 27m shares
vested with those poriopants Subect o sofisfactory personot peformance, o funther

¢ 21m shares are expected to vest under the 2011 Share Scheme

The 2011 Share Scheme Adwsted Underlying EBITDA torgets (before scheme costs),
relnte to gerformonce between FY12 and FY15 All fous torgers hove now been mes, ond
subject to the indwdual employee’s sansfactory persanal performance, the shares ore
due to vest m 2015 and 2017 Under the 2011 Share Scheme participating employess
are eligible for owards on o prorata bosis depending on therr length of serce with the
Group Awards under the scheme ore gronted af exher 100%, 75%, 50% or 25% of the
pomaipent’s annval bose poy Subiect 1o the perfarmonce cteno being fuffiled, ¢ Sm
shares are due to vest in 2015 and ¢ 16m shores are due fo vest m 2017

An oddstional three millian sheres are due fo vest with on Executive Dusctor ond two
members of senior management in 2017 under the Executive Share Scheme, subject
to performance cntena bang fulfilled The Executve Share Scheme performance targess
mror those 1o be opplied to owards under the 2011 Share Scheme

As a result of the successes of previous schemes, the 2015 Share Scheme has been
devised fo encourage fusther outstanding empfoyee perdormance for those who ore
invited to parmopate The Scheme will provide for the gront of nibcost ophons aver up

i0 25m shares The vasangs are dependent on stretching performonce ¢nfeno sponning
between FY16 ond FY19 With onginal EBITDA rargers (before scheme costs) of £480m
for FY16, £570m for FY17, £650m for FY18 and £750m for FY15 when the Scheme
was approved, the Scheme hos the potennal fo not only mativate participants, but glso to
create a further substannal incrense in shoreholder value

The Group snfends fo propose an omendment to the FY16 Adusted Underlying EBITDA
target under the 2015 Share Scheme, which will be reduced from €480m to £420m
Al other targets for the further three yeors of the Stheme curvently remoin the some
Fhs change wall be put to shazeholders a5 an ordinary resolution ot the Company’s AGH
in September 2015

CONTRACTS ESSENTIAL TO THE BUSINESS

OF THE GROUP

The Group has long-establshed relaronships with Nike and odidas, the mojor supphiers
of thrdparty banded sporting goods, and considers that continued supplies from these
companses are eniical 1o the busingss of the Group

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS
The Corporate Responsibility Report is on poges 28 to 32 and o review of the assessment
of the Group’s mpact on the environment 15 ncluded n this repont

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group designs clothng and some footwear for sale wn stores and hos onoagements
with suppliers for the research and development of goods for the Brands divsion

OUTLOOK

Troding since the year end hos been n ling wish management’s expectanions, and
underpins the 2015 Shore Scheme’s proposed rewsed FY16 Undedying EBITDA target of
£420m The Group's performance continues fo benefit from o number of factors ncludimg
mvestment i product ronge and evailobildy, with on increased emphasss on “better

and “best’ Group branded products and the optimisation of our in-store and web offer,
enbonced by the introduction of Click and Coflect n the UK We also conhnue to mvest m
oue store portfokio, with the roll-out of further large format aty centre stores

Dave Forsey
(heef Exequtive

16y 2015



FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Financial Statements for the Group for the 52 weeks ended 26 Apnl 2015 are presented i accordance with Internghionol Finanaial

Reporting Standords (IFRS) os adopted by the £U

SUMMARY OF RESULTS
52 weeks ended
W 2005 27 A 2004
{&'m) {&'m)
Revenue 28326 27060
Undedying EBITDA 3832 331
Undedying Profit Before Tox 3003 2493
Reported Profit Before Taxanon 3134 2395
Pence pet share Pente pet thue
Reported EPS 406 308
Underlyng EPS 389 N

The Drrectors behieve that undedying EBITDA, undestying profit before: tax and underlying
egrmngs per share prowide more wseful mformanien for shareholdess on the underlyng
performance of the bsiness than the reported numbers and are consistent with how
business performance s measured miemally They are not recognsed profit medasures
under IFRS ond may not be diectly comparoble with “odjusted” profit measures used by
other companies

EBITDA 15 earmngs before wvestment tcome, finonce ncome ead finance costs, tox,
depreciohon and amornsation and, therefore, indudes the Group's share of profit from
gssoasted undertokings ond joint ventures Underdying EBITDA s colcislated os EBITDA
befors the impact of forexgn exchonge, any exceptional or other non-radsng sems and
€osts reloting to she Share Schemes

EBITDA AND PROFIT BEFORE TAX

EBITDA 5 m) PRI {'m)
Operating profit 795 6

Deprecienon, amorhisohion and impairment 67 8

Share of profit of essocted undertakings 30

{exd FV gdjusiments)

Reported 366 4 3134
Share Scheme 101

Exceptional ems 30 30
Prolit on disposal of investments {126)
Reofised FX loss 37 37
145 39 FX forr value adjustment on forwand 72
CLMeNcy controcts

Underlying 3832 3003

Undertying 52 week FY15 profir before tax exchdes

{1) exceptiong! irems which detreased profit by £3 Om,

(i profic on disposal of investments which increased proft by €12 ém,

(i) reglised foreign exchange losses which decreased profis by €3 7m, and

{v) IFRS revoluahon of Foreng curmancy contracts which increased profit by £7 2m

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The Graup manages the impact of currency mavements through the use of forword fixed
ote cuerency purchase and sales contracts The Group’s peficy s to hold or hedge between
zeso ond five years of anhapated purchases in fesengn currency

Thg regfised exchonge foss of €3 7m {FY14 £1 8m gan) nchuded in adminsivanon costs
has ansen from

0) accephing Bollors and Euros ot the controcted te, and

by the manslanon of Doflor and Euro denomnated assets and habilities of the penod
end rate or date of realisgnon

The exchange gan of €7 2m (FY14 £11 2m loss) included in finance ncome /costs
substantially represents the reduction in the morkto-market kobiity mode (under [FRS)

for the Group’s unhedged forward contracts os at 26 April 2015 A numbes of the forword
tonimacts outstonding at 26 Apnl 2015 quakfy far hedge accounting ond e forr velue
gam on these controcts hos been credited to equity through the Consolidoted Statement of
Campreliensive Income The Group hos sufficent USD/GBP comtracts to cover oll purchoses
in UK Retail for FY14 The Sterling exchonge rate with the US Dollor wos $1 680 ot 27
Apnl 2014 and $1 502 of 26 Apnl 2015

Gaven the potentiol smpact of commodity prces an ew matenial costs, the Group may
hedge certom input costs, including cotton, cude oil aad electniaty

FINANCE COSTS

52 weeks ended

4pA2015 2 A 2014

{i m} &'m)
Interes on hank loans ¢nd ovesdrafts 6N (75
Interest on other loans 02 (08)
Interest on retirement benefit oblganons 06 (08)
Fair volue odjusiment to forwaed foreign exchange i 12
contracts

{15) 199

The decreose in nterest poyable s o result of the dewrensed use of the revoling credit
fociity ond repoyment of debt inhented from acquired companies

The pnor year foss on the fow value of forward foreign exchange confracts arose under
IFRS os o result of marking to market ot the penod end those controcts that do #ot quoldy
for hedge accounting

5
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CONTINUED
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
52 weeks ended
Whpd 015 27 A 014
(T'm) 'm)
Profit on sale of freehiold properties 103
tmpoirment and occelerated depreantion ond
omortisation (133 (3]
30 (55

The imparment and accelerated degreachion and amentsahon selotes to o change in the
estmated useful bfe of certoin tangtble and ntongible assets and enpament agmnst
goodwidl in the yeor

The profit on sale of freehold property includes the sale of o freehald worehouse for
£21 2m, reqlising a profit of £17 3m

TAXATION

The effective tax rate on profit before tox m FY1S wos 23 0% (FY14 250%) The rate
reflects depreciahion on non-quakfying assets and oversens ermings being toxed ot 0
higher rate

EARNINGS
52 weeks ended
26 Apr 2015 27 gl 2014 (haoge
{pence per chore}  {pence pes share) 6]
Reported EPS {Busic) 406 308 318
Undedying EPS 389 321 212

Weighted average number

of shores (cctueh) 592,294,371 585,513,537

Bosic earmings per share (EPS) 15 calculated by diwiding the earnings attmbutable to
ordirary shareholders by the wexghred average number of ordinory shares outstending
dunng the actual financial penod Shares held in Treasury and the Employee Beneft Tt
are excluded from this figure

The undertying EPS reflets the undartymg performonce of the business compared wath

the prigr veor and is colculated wsing the weighted average number of shares It is not o
recognised profit measure under IFRS and may not be directly comporohla with “adpsted”
profit measures used by other companies

The irems odjusted for armvng or the undertying profit after tox and mnonity interests is
as follows

52 weeks ended
26 Apnl 2015 27 Ayl 2014
{Em) (&m)

Profit ofter fox 2404 1802
Post tax effect of adjustment irems
Profit on disposol of Iisted invesiments (28) {4 0)
Impairment of goodwill 03
Fair value adpstment to forward foresgn {125 84
exthange controcts
Reohsed foss,/ tgam) on forward foreign 2% 04
exthange contracts
Profit on dispossl of frehold praperties 79
Impaument ond accelernted deprecation and 102 il
amorsation

Underying profit after tax 2303 167 6

DIVIDENDS

The Boord hos decded not to propose o dnadend w relaton fo FY15 The Boord feels thot
it remams in the best interests of the Group to preserve financial flexibility, focilitgting the
purstat of potential ocquisitions and other growth oppostunities The payment of diwdends
remans under review i futwre years

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Dunng the yeas, copits! expenditure amounted to €100 3m (FYT4 £49 1m), which
includes expenditure on licences wthen mtangible assets and construchon of our
Shirebrook warehotse

ACQUISITIONS

The Geoup made o number of smaller acquisihons during the year including the purchose of
25 tormer LA Fitness gyms

STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS

bunng the year the Group disposed of ¢ 1 5m shares m D Sports Foshion plc but or
the year end continued fo hold an 11 09% stake m 1D Sports The far vohse of the
Group's holdings at 26 Apnl 2015 wos €140 Bm (27 Apnl 2014 £104 §m)

The movement in the fair value of the shares held has been recogased durectly n
Other Cortprehensive Income

In June 2014, the Group ocquired on mierest m ¢ 7m shores n MySale Group ple,
representing 4 8% of the ssued shore capitol of MySale

In September 2014, the Group entered into 0 dervofive agresment referenang
23,000,000 shares n Tesco Plc, representing 0 3% of the rssued share copial of Tesco

In October 2014 the Group ocgured ¢ 56m shases 1n Debenhams plc for £33 2m,
iepresenting 4 6% of the 1ssued shere capitat of Debenhams This stake was seld in
November 2014 and the Group entered into o denvative ogreement referenang ¢ 74m
Dehenhoms shores, equivolent 1o 6 1% of the ssued share copital of Debenhoms

On 23 Janwery 2015 the Group termuneted on exising Debenhams denvative agreement
entered wio n January 2014 ond af the same time, entered info o new denvative
ggreement referencing ¢ 128m ordingry shares of Debenhoms (repsesenting 10 5% of the
issugd share capita! of Debenhoms)

A5 a1 26 Apnl 2015 the Group had on interest n 15 0% interest n Debenhams’
ardinary shores

These stakes allow us to develop relafionships and commercial partmershups with the
selevant retailers and ossist in burlding relahioastups wath key suppliers and bronds

The faur value of equity denvatve ngreements t5 included within the denvative fingnciol
ossats balonce of £92 Zm




CASH FLOW AND NET DEBT
Net debt decrensed by €152 3m from £212 Om ot 27 Apnl 2014 to £59 7w ot 26 April
ms

The anlysis of debr ot 26 Aarl 2015 wos os follows

264l 2015 27 Apnl 2014

€ m} (Em)
(osh and cosh equvolents 783 1510
Borrgwings {1380) (363 0}
Net debt (59 7) 21200

0n 25 Novernber 2014 the Group utilsed the accordien optian under its £688m working
copdal fachty As g resulr, the working capital foality hos been mereased from £688m to
£738m The faality s avenlsble untd Seprembes 2018 and 15 not secured against any of

the Group’s fixed ossefs

The Group also has @ £250m working coprtol focdity with Mike Ashley which con be
drown down on request This facilty wos agreed of market ferms af ofs meeption aad 5
nat secured agomst any fxed assefs At fie year end no balance was due

The Group conhinues to operate well within its bonking covenants and the Board remains
comfortable with the Group’s avaitoble headroom

CASH FLOW
Total mevement & os follows
260 2015 27 Mpel 2014
(£'m) Em
Undertying EBITDA 3837 3311
Realised (loss) / profit on forword foseign exchange
contracts /? ’ ’ 7 18
Toes poid a7l 557
Undertying free cash flow 3018 772
Invested in
Working copital ong ather (64 8) (10mn
Purchase of own shores
Acqusimions (includiag debt) (38) (1442)
Net proceeds from / {purchase of) investments 41 (46)
Net copital expenditure (7% 1) (591
Finange costs and other hngnang octviiies (59 (72
Decrense / (Increase) in net debt 1523 (580

The mcreasa i working capitel s portly to support the growth of Sparts Retall and the
onlne busisess end partly due o the iming of payments around year end

PENSIONS

The Group operates & umber of dosed defined benefis schemes in the Dunlop Slazenger
compames The net defict n these schemes decregsed from €15 4m at 27 Apnt 2014 o
£14 9m ot 26 Aprl 2015

Mait Pearson
Acting Chief Financiol Officer

16 Juy 2015
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

(orporate Responsibility 15 centrol fo our wision fo be an mcustry leadsr Qur established Corporate Responsibility framework focuses

on five key areas People, Health and Safety, the Environment, Customers and the Community Sports Direct hos developed Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs) fo ensure we deliver on our commitments These KPls are further discussed n this report and in the Chief
Executve’s Report and Business Review, and are based solely on our UK operations, unless expressly stated

OUR PEOPLE

The Group employs over 27,000 peaple, across 19 countnes ond various sectors, from
Sport, Fashwan, Ufestyle, Gyms ond Brands, and our people are whot makes the Sporfs
Direct Group such o success

Our whale peaple ethos revolves around ‘Right Person, Right Place, Right Time’ and we
are committed fo the contnued development of our people to meet our future growth
plors Nurtunng our people to reach therr full potential and promoting intemally where
ever possthle have been tools thar have been used by the Group for over the lost 30
years and are fundomental o our continuing Success

ATTRACTION AND RETENTION

As a Group, we like to train and retain our staff to ensure thot valuable knowledge
remains within the business The Group wses o number of incentives to retam our
people, duding requlorty holding employse appraisals, o see the areas where we, os
on employer, con improve We find thot requlor appraisals elso ighhght the knowledge
gaps which our employees hove, and ollows us to offer staff trammg which will develop
their snderstondiag

Dunng FY15 18 7% of our UK soloned staff left the Group, a decrense from 19 2%
FY14 We eshmote that this figure will remain relately low dunng the 2011 Share
Scheme vesting perods

Qur Shore Schemes are utised to otroct, motwate and scentwise our people ond
patenhal futyre empioyees We have found that creaning a shared goal has improved
employes sonsfachion levels

Store Manager stabslity with Sports Direct 1s currently sitting at 92%, this 15 an ingrease
of 6% on the FY14 figure Assistant Manager and Footweor Manoger stobrlity currently

sit 0t 86 5% ond 90 3% respectively, which 15 an increcse of 6% ond 4% across
the posiians

SALARIED STAFF TURNOVER SINCE FY10

FYie
A
ma2
Fi3
4

ms

PERFORMANCE & REWARD

We reward the hard work of out partiapating emplovess with the Share Schemes The
Share Schemes are dependent on the achigvernent of pre-determuned undeehving £BITDA
targets, as well s sonsfoctory performance of the indimdual employee !

The targets for the 2011 Share Schemes were

2012 Underlying EBITDA of £215m - Achieved
2013 Underlying EBITOA of £250m - Achigved
2014 Underying EBITDA of £260m - Achieved
2015 Underying EBITDA of £300m - Achieved

All four of the 2011 Share Scheme turgets have now been ochieved Under the 2009
Shate Scheme ¢ 27m shores in totol vested, and o further ¢ 21m shares are expected
to vest under the 2017 Shore Scheme

The Group afso has several policies and systems s place to ensure stoff welfare 1s
mositored and maintaned These are loid out i the diagram below

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY
& DIVERSITY POLICY

.

TAILORED

RIGHT TO A
EMPLOYEE
HANDBOOK TRADE UNION
STAFF FORUM
GRADUATE RECRUITMENT

During 2014 we ran ous Greduate Recrustment Programme, ‘Taleat Bank’ The erght
waek programme offered groduates placements i our kcommerce and Fiagnce team
with the opportunity to complete projects within the Group and compete for rewards,
cnd the opportunity of a permonent role ot the end of the programme  The scheme s
poid, with iatemns working on projects simear to those i the work environment The
progromme ensures that we are briaging i new tolent and the Group 15 constantly
evolving wath new 1deas and ways of thinking



DIVERSITY

Drversity within the Group ss essenhal and we believe this ploys an imgortant role in
o successful business At all times we try fo ensure that our people meet the diversity,
cultures ond vatues of our vaned customer base

Our Board currently has o 14% femole representanan, with further detals beng

shown on poge 33 We are in the process of dooking to recrust another female for the
Board, afthough we consider that the necessary skills and expenence are of poramount
impertance, with diversity being of lesser significance

Females moke vp 32% of our semor monagement teom While we appreaate that
work could be dane fo ensure that the figure 1s mose bolanced, we are sotisfied shat the
Teom possesses the appropncte bolonce of skils ond knowledge As posions become
gvaloble the necessary level of consideration will b2 gven to ensurng dversity within
the tegm

Our overall UK workforce bose consists of 46 4% females, proving that discnminaton
for factors including gender wall not be tolerated within the Group The low 1s paromount
when we recant employees and we im to ensure thot both male ond femole
cendidates ore provided with equal opporturities to apply for and work in all posihons
ocross the Group

A BREAKDOWN OF GENDER DIVERSITY:

Male Female
Diettors [ i
Other senior managers 37 3
Al UK workforce 11,450 9,899

TALENT & CAPABILITY DEVELOPMENT

In the last yeor we sow the launch of our new competency framework, known os the
“Success Foctors * The seven Success Facters prowds the behaviours thot leod to great
performance in ndwidual (ob roles within Sports Direct ond nclude the qualihes oad
skalls thos help peaple fo be successful In short ir's what our “best performers do” and
they describe ‘how we need 1o he’

We hove worked an embedding the Success Factors in to ofl of our peopie practices
since lounch in November 2014 Fustly by mtroducing new recrudment tools and
providing our store manager population in the UK with competency based

THECEY II’GmIﬂQ

Secordly, we lounched our new annual appraisal across UK Retad, Heod Office,
Warehouse ond Transport Eoch devision hos o Success Facror framework of 11s very
own Our people review ond agree performance within their onnuad opprossol and set
development gools 1o ochigve i the coming year

With the miroducticn of the Success Fuctars we hove created a mechanism of
identifying ond developing mterrol talent across the Group to support our future
growth plors

Our teams have a vanety of development opporfunities using different methods

We encourage growing within one’s current sole or toking on new challenging fosks,
teamning from others, supportimg indmduals i rechising thew potenhol ond providing
formal training appartunities

KEY HIGHLIGHTS:
Total workforce (fotal Group) 27,207
Haours invested i trainang 58,000

DEVELOPING OUR PEOPLE — TRAINING PROGRAMMES

The aim of our Stoff Tramimg and Devefopment Depastment is fo use the Intemational
Trorung Centre to provide the best, siate of the art faclines for our team fo floueish
into champians Qur goal s to gve every member of our feam the opportumty fo be
inspired, shmulated, motvated, and empowered We know tho 1t takas every single
teom member to moke o difference and improve the perfermonce of the bysiness

We have confinued to focus on the need o proactvely develop our teom’s competence
hose ond leadership copobibities m order fo meet the romdly chonging requirements

of the Group Trommg 15 an aren m which we hove confinued to nvest, and in FY15
olone, over 58,000 hours were invested info fraining and developing the team at
Sports Direct

We are committed to confnue offerng o great portfolio of troming courses, the mojonty
of which ore housed i ur very own foclties The portfolio has continued fo grow os it
has year on year with three oreas recening more emphasis

 “Home Grown” Talent Management Progremme
» {ystomer Service Franing
* Management Induchon

We have on iternononal appeoack 1o ramng by adophing our principles o those
the countmes i which we trade Teams from Austri, Estonia, Czach Republic, Dubm,
Molaysio, France, Portugal, Hollond, Cyprus, Switzerlond, Kuwait, Belgium, Iceland,
Hungary, Sloventa, Slovakia, Polond have oll ottended sessians

“HOME GROWN” TALENT MANAGEMENT PROGRAMME

The Home Grown: Talen! Management Programme affows us to ploce the right

person in the right position af the right time. It 1s ¢ structured progromme which
shaws staff thot outstanding performence can lead to further opportunihes fo progress
within the Group It helps retoin tolented ond key indnaduals, which m turs reduces
recuitment costs

Our tglent monagement actmities are open fo the mayonty of our workforce, with o
focus on those who consistently shaw high-potental 1t 15 port of our cuttwe to develop
hrfrpotennial employees to grow into future Group feoders, and 1s a method which we
have used since day one We beheve that produang e cemmon standard of behoviour
for thase n leadership roles wall improve the likehhood of the Group achigwing future
goals, and enabie us to retom real tolent, by olfowiag it to flounsh

The Progromme encourages our warkforce fo better themsaives each and every day

& the end of the Programme, prowiding the indmiduel hos proved 1o be worthy of
opportunity, key positions will be offered to these who have shown that they ore ready
to take the next step in thexr careers

i)
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(ONTINUED

CUSTOMER SERVICE TRAINING

During the year our customer senvice programme has continued fo play a pvatal role
when working with Sports Retol stare stoff The troining modet hos continued to be
used by Store Managers, through a combination of seminars and eleaming

The ‘Sales through Service’ Model {STARS) remforces the key elements of suctesshul
customer service

* Smile

* Tok

* Ak

® Recommend
* Sole

The trmneng works s conjunchion with our *5 Stor Commussion Scheme”, ond oims
o assist growth expectations by showang staff how developing then behawours can
prowide o btter service o customers end drve sales

MANAGEMENT INDUCTION

New ond existing manogers have atfended the two week residentiol induchon
programme, whtch 1s based of our Shirebrook compus The programme consists of

o mixture of shop Eoor bosed troming and clossroom centred acmanies, with fypical
subjects ncuding merchondisig, admunsstronon, debvery processes, health and sefety,
shop closure processes, product training, and retail business sklls

HIGH PERFORMING MANAGERS

Qur elite group of high performing operational monagers ose offered traming wio work
based schemes which look to further develop therr skils The traiming schemes mclude
topics such os effective leadership, feom engagement, performonce enhancement ond
managing traugh change, with the ocmies bosed on zeal work stuahons We have
found that the training mokes an immediote difterence to the problem solving, analyrical
ond snéer persenal commuriconion skills of those who have been trained

INTERNAL PROMOTION REFRESH PROGRAMME

Membars of the retent team who are put forward for mternal pramotion are nvited fo
attend the Operatianal and Managenol Refresh Progromme This 15 o five doy residentinl
course that consists of shop floor aperanonal tramng cembined with style and behoviour
modisles covenng communication, leodership and deasion meking

BRAND TRAINING

Robust traiming progrommes to nform ond trom staff on product mnovation and brand
inhatives continue This ensures that the Inks between Sports Direct and the mejor
bronds are stronger than ever

Sports Dyect s stll o heovy user of Nike Spors Knowledge Underground (SKU) ond
continue to be one of the frant runners in terms of percentage completion worldwide
SKU provides another elecming opportunsty for the Sports Direct teom which cliows
staff 1 gonn essennal foundation knowledge on Nike Products This foundation
knowledge 1s then taken one step further on the Nike Troming doys held of the Sports
Durect Traming Acodemy The doys cre hosted by Nike Experts (EKINs) ond roke the
foundation knowledge from SKU to o higher level with mteraction end involvement
The Nike Graduate Scheme then encourages those who aitend the traming day fo
transfer their learmig 10 the team m-store By doing so they gamn the recogninon of
betoming o Nike Graduate within therr stose Sports Direct works excluswely with Nike
on this excephional trasning nianve

Sports Direct works wath adidas and Puma fo provide bespoke troiming imbafves to
support the contnued growth of adidas and Purma preducts Through 2014, mony team
members attended speriolist adidos sessions, which focused on product knowledge ond
selling skills More dotes ore w the diory for 2015 to support and capture the moin
product releases and new mnovations in sporting fechnologies

FOOTWEAR MASTERCLASS

Amed ar manogers responsile for the footwear deportment in thew branch, the
Footwear Mostesclass 1s o three doy residentiol course which focuses on one of the key
deportments in ¢ Sports Direct store Typical subjects covered include meschandising,
stoff efficsency, best pracitce, heglth and safety, poficies, ond procedures

E LEARNING

It 15 mportast that ol staff are engoged with who we ore and what message we went
to gwe to customers, ond we believe that delivenng effective nduchan training 1s key
to this Without o proper mduchion, there is the nsk of staff not understonding
compliance 1ssues or policies, iow productmity and poor motivation, poor customer
service and lost sules

Recently we implemented o new, inferactve induction programme that would creote
paie in Sports Drect and ensure consistency ond structure m foundation traming
The induction programme 15 ovailable to all UK Retail staff, aimed ot engoging new
starters and re-energising exishing colleagues

Spange UK, a specialst eLearning company, have been engaged by the Group to
davelop an oafing induchon thot complements the exishiag facetoface trammg thot the
Group offers The current modules focus on the four main oreas, being sales and service,
health gad sofety, merchandising, and day fo day operational mformation

These arens are the first n o plonned swite of courses that will cover all aspedts of the
Group's actvity

As 1t e mporant for stoff to be able to access the learning on the go, the course has
been designed to work on toblets ond smartphones, os well os desktap computers

The nducton progromme 1§ oae of the very first Adapt elearning courses, and we have
17,000 users who cursently feel the benefit of this

HEALTH AND SAFETY

As the Company confinues to grow there has been ncreased facus on Gegting o
consistent method of evaluating health and safety performence Going forword we cre
laoking to sef targets and meniter our performance

In relation to the UK workfarce we have colcolated the figures per 100,600 hours
workad vsng a 12 month roling averoge The rumber of acadents involving the
warehoase workferce os ot Apnl 2015 wos 5 9, compared to 2 8 at Aprl 2014
Increased footfall ond decreased workspace due to ongoing building works, have both
contmbuted fowords the increase The nuriber of ccoidents nvolving the store, office end
distnbistion workforce has remamned stonic with 2 5 as ot Aprl 2015 ond April 2014

It relatian to the general public we hove calculated the figures per €10m store rurnover
using a 12 month roling avaroge The number of acaidents mvolving the genero! public
hod decrensed over the course of the year ond was 3 9 as ot Apnt 2015, compared to

4 7 Apnl 2014

{ver the course of the yeor there hove been no environmental prosecutions or
workreloted fatolitees

ENVIRONMENT

We recognise thet we have o respensibdity fo manoge the impact our business has on
the environment, and we ore commitied to reducing this both now and m the futyre

We continue to comply with the Government's Casbon Reduction Commitment, end have
identfied key areas where we cen moke o déference, n porticulor energy soge in our
stores, transport and waste mancgement

We are continuowsly auming to reduce eur corbon footprint The smgle most signdicant
element s electneity, which makes up B4% of the footgrent The corbon footprnt spreod
neress oll UK sites 15 detoiled in the chort opposite




CARBON FOOTPRINT ANALYSIS 1 APRIL 2014 - 31 MARCH 2015

The growtk: of our Compony has increased the numbes of our stores and therefore the
absolute GHG emissions Our chosen intensity ratio of elecincity-related emissions per
£m revenue hos increased by 15 9%, 11 5% of which 1s due to o change in DEFRA's
conversion factor, the remaider due to the icluston of o number of newly ccquired
fitness cenires which ore more energy consuming and therefore hove thes effect

GREENHOUSE GAS (GHG) EMISSIONS REPORTING

Reporting period"* 1 Apnl 2014 31 March 2015

Boseline yeor 2

Consolidation Qperanional conirol

approach

Boundory All UK entines and focitmes either owned or under operasional

sumemary control were mchuded Emissions from aw condifioning and
sefngeration units ere excluded due to the cost of data
collecion Thase are expectad 0 be ¢ neghigible % of scops
i emissions

Consistency Other than the emissions declared for the penod 1 Apnl

with Finendial 2014 — 31 March 2015 to be in line with the CRC Energy

Statements Efficency Scheme, there are no inconsistencies with Finonaal

Statements

Emission factor DEFRA (May 2013)

dato source

Assessment The Greenhguse Gas Protocol and 150 14064 1 (2004) We

methodelogy have used the 2014 UK Government's GHG canversion faciors
Matenality Motenalty wos set of Group level at 5%, with oll UX facilihes

threshald estimated to contnbute >0 5% of toral emissians included

Intensity ratio Ermssions per Tm revenue

(1) The emesions decioed wre for the panod 1 Apak 2014 ~ 31 March 2015 1o ba m b wizh the {RC Enexgy
Py Scheme.

Scope 1 GHG emssions are colcutated bosed on the purchased quontmes of commerciot
fuels using published emussion factors Scope 2 GHG emussions are primcrly coleutated
from metered elecinaty consumption and published emission factors

07 equivalent factars are used which ensures we have reported on all of the emission
sovices requued undes the Companies Act 2006 Regulations

Group UK Only UK Only
Yoar 2015 2015 2014
Scope 1 (0% emissions 14,129 12,801 11,206
Scope 2 (0%e emissions 114,335 82 455 64,747
Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 130,464 95,256 15,953

0% emissions (Tonnes)

0% Emissions (Tonnes /£m) 461 423 368

Thes 15 the second year of mondatory reporting of thes dota To prowde analyss ogeinst
previous yeors we have shown comporotive dota for efectncityselored emussions, which
accounts for 64% of our GHG emissions n the current yeor

The table befow detaiks Electnaty vs Revenue and shows o pro rata increase of 15 9%
ocross the yeor

Year 2015 2014
(0% Emsssions from electnaty (Tonnes) 80,160 63,393
(0% Emsssians from electnaity (Tonnes /Sm)™ 356 307

Electnaty vs Sales Turnover Index (2012 100) 117 6 101 §

(1) ot inchuding non-UX revenve in line with the (0% emussions iepocted.

WASTE REDUCTION
We are actrvely reducing the omount of woste we send to londfil ond segregote waste fo
ensure that we recyde s much as possible

THIS YEAR WE RECYCLED:

» 6,127 unis of eleccal equepment (2014 7,099 units)
* 94 tonnes of woste paper (2014 78 tonnes)

* 9,526 fonnes of cordboord (2014 9,230 tonnes)

* 235 tonnes of metol (2014 147 tonnes)

o 618 tonnes of ploshc (2014 558 tonnes)

Al stores now use biodegrodsble comer bags and prowide the option of o “bag for fe”
Ths 15 actvely promoted wnstore through high levels of staff engagement

Loaking ohead, we will continug our commitment to minimise waste and improve energy
efficency ocross our stores

CUSTOMERS

Customer service 15 i the forefront of our business We aim to provide customers with
an erjoyable expenence both m-tore and onhine and ensure all our products are safe
and fit for pyrpose

Monironng customer sahsfachon and responding fo queres 15 0 continuous process
Al watten compleinss are recorded, weluding an analysis of the natwe of the complait
50 thot frends con be ossessed and appropnate action token

We have an online customer contact form that reduces the ume it takes for our
customers o contoct us ond ncreoses the volume of contoc Galine commumeation hes
reduced the amount of rme 1t rakes for us to sespond to quenes thereby increasing our
service levels, whie reduang the pnnt and postoge costs for bath the Group

ond customers

We are conswnuously working to improve customer senvice at oll fevels within the Group
from the setal stores, Head Office and thiough 1o otr website

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING...

SPORTSDIRECT com

3



ANNUAL REPORT 2015

SPORTS DIRECT com

32

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

CONTINUED

COMMUNITY

SUPPLY CHAIN

We are commutted to respansible busiass prachces n our own business and within our
supply cham We continue fo pracure merchanchse from manufacturers who hove proved
to uphold ethicol employment gad troding prachices, ond we have a stct Code of Ethics
that we require every supplier to adhere to The Code provides for the fair treatment of
workers, ensurmg o safe environment in accordonce with the locol and national lews
where workers are treated wath respect ond pud faiy for what they do The code

also ensures these 15 no ¢huld labour and no wse of illegal means or matenals in the
produchion of goods

We have longstanding relationships with our supphers who hove demonstroted that ther
work pracices are consistent with Sports Direct’s stondards Approximately 40% of our
current suppliers have been working with the Company for 10 yeors or more We have
worked with two leadng supply chain companres in Singapere and South Korea far o
number of years Usmg ihewr loco! knowledge and expenience helps benefit the business
ond the communies in which they operate Both busmesses have the highest socil
and business ethics code which ¢higns weth our own Code of Ethics, the BSCI Code of
Conduct (whach 15 based upon the United Nations Dacloration of Human Rights) ond the
Social Accountabulity 8OO0 (SABO0O) Code

Sports Direct relies on those supply chatn companies to inspect the premuses of oll
supphiers ond monufocturers Frequent inspectrons are carned out randomly to ensure
thot goods meet our quolify standords as well os assessing continued comphance with
SAB00O and our Code of Ethics We cease mmediately to work with supphers who do
not meet our cntena

We comply with on iatemationolly recognised list of chemrcals that are baaned for use
in fabnes The supply chom compames conduct rondom tests en fobng which arg then
token to a recogmised lobarctory for quokty testing aad to ensure that bonned chemicals
are nat being used

CHARITY

Yeor on year we dedicate maney, clothing and equipment to worthy chonties, to
ensure that spart can be enjoyed and apprecated by oll backgrounds Sport 1s not only
important to leading o fit end hecithy Ifestyle, but should also be seen os fun Qur
dedicasions ga some way towords allowing sports to ba enjoyad by 0 vonety of uniikely
sportsmen and women

KARRIMOR

Karnmor became the offiial lothing and equipment supplias to the charty team
‘Wavesdhope' The seven man squad successfully complered the chollenge of a fetme,
rowsng the English Channel for three great chantres, Smvng Faces, The Rayal Morsden
Concer Charity ond Sail4Cancer The novice team were fully equipped with Karnmar gear
to take on this gruelling venture, with the aim of rising £30,000 Congratulations to
the teom on therr outstanding acievement

SLAZENGER ‘CHANCE TO SHINE’

Slozenger 15 the exclusive cncket equipment supphier to the country’s most recognised
gressroois <ncket development progromme, ‘Chonce to Shine’ Eech project provides
stuctured ¢oaching ond o competition programme for a group of schoals who woutd nct
hove otherwise had the chance to parhapate n the spart

By 2013, the programme had reoched one third of olf primary ond setondary schools
omounting fo almost 7,000 schools ond hos supported twe mifion young people,
almost haff of whom are girls Over £600,000 wosth of encket equipment has been
suppleed by Slazenger to enable the programme fe run succasstully

DUNLOP

Bunlop wosks together with its spansored professional golfars Lee Westwood ond Dorren
(larke to supply clothing to thew ‘go schools’ These are yumor plaver development
schemes which prowde qualified coaching ong mentonng to youngsters

(ver £40,000 worth of clothing has been provided through sponsarship to the schemes
so far

LONSDALE

tonsdale 1s the Officiol Equipment and Fight Sports Apparet Supplier for the RAT and the
Royal Novy We are the proud sponsor of the RAF annual Nowice Championships, The
tord Wokefields

At  grossrouts level, bonsdale 15 ¢lso o sposor of the Englond Boxing Lonsdale Golden
Gloves School Championships and prowdes 50 paws of golden gioves, worth £2,000 1o
the finahists free of charge

EVERLAST

Everlust supports o vanety of orgunisations throughout the year, mcluding both
sports-onented and chantoble progiammes A long-stording supporter of the most
preshgious amateur boxing compenition i the US, the New York Golden Gloves,
Everlost 1s the officiol fight glove ond apparel sponsor The argomisanion celebrored
its 88th yeqr in Apnl

Since 2006, Everdast hos olso served os o proud supposter of The Bieast Cancer
Research Foundation® (BCRF) Each yvear, Everost donotes o porhian of the sale
proceeds from selected pink products o help the foundanon prowide funding for clinical
ond genenc research Lost year, Everlost donated $57,433 to BCRF's research efforts
to find 0 cure

ANTIGUA GROUP

Aahgua supports o wide variefy of sports related and chanty reloted svents hroughout
the year These nclude The Phoenix Children's Hospital Annuos Golf Classic, The
Scottsdnle Charros Foundation, The lerry Colangelo Prostote Cancer Event and The
Salvation Army

Antigua 15 also heavily imvalved 1n the promotion af Junior Golf in Anzong and aiound
the cogntry Anhgua has sponsored “The Annigua Junior Tour” in partnership with the
SWSPGA for over 20 yeers and olso supports Girls Golf, The First Tee and The Junior
Golf Assouianon of Anzona In recent years, Antigua hos helped to create the Anhigua
National High School Golf Imitghional which invites teoms from oll over the United
States to porficipote

The Strotegic Report was opproved by o duby asthonsed Committee of the Board of
Directors on 16 July 2015, ond signed on its behalf by

Dave Forsey
(href Executive

16 July 2015



THE BOARD

« AUDIT COMMITTEE = NOMINATION COMMITTEE

DR KEITH HELLAWELL QPM o=

NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN, CHAIRMAN OF NOMINATION
COMMITYEE

APPOINTED: 24 November 2009

COMMITTEES: Nomination and Remuneration Committees

PREVIOUS ROLES: Prior to joining the tearn ot Sports Durect Internaionl ple, Dr
Hellowell spent over 40 years in pubhic sector manegement being o formes Chief Constoble
of twa Brinsh police forces While working directly for the Prme Minister between 1998
ond 2002 he wrote and coordinated the United Kingdom national and mteranonal
antrdrugs pohcy Dr Hellawell hos been snvalved in the pvate sector since 1998 when
he jomed Evans of Leeds, o fully listed property compony Since then he hes served on
the Boards of borh Datkia ple and Stenence Limited, subsidianes of the French company
Veoho Env He wos Nor-Executive Chorman of Goldsheeld Group plc, 0 morkefinged
phormaceutecol ond consumer health company, from May 2006 to its sole m December
2009 He has held a number of ather Non-Execuinve Boord posthons in prvote companies
ncluding sectors such as vehede monutactunng and T

PRESENT ROLES: Dr Heligwell 1s currently o Nor-Executve Director of Mortyce ple, o
Singepore-based faclitles management company ond o Durector of the Super League teom
Huddersfield Giants He oo runs his own menagement and iraiming consultancy comporry

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: D; Hellowell hos worked m both the public
and private sector for over 50 years Throughout thes ime he hos buikt up o wealth of
expenence which he bings to the Group to ensuse the suceessiuf ond effective aperanion
of the Board

MIKE ASHLEY
EXECUTIVE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN
APPOINTED: 1982 (foundes)

PREVIOUS ROLES: Mike esichlished the business of the Group on leawing school in
1982 ond wos the sole owner untf the Sroup’s hsting m March 2007

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: Mike wos the founder of the Graup ond hos the
necessory skills for formulating the vision and commerainl stroregy of the Group With over
30 years in he sports refad basmess with Sports Divect he 5 mvaoluable to the Group

DAVE FORSEY
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
APPOINTED: 1984

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: Dave hos been with the business for over 30
years, dunng whch: time he hos acquired signicont nowledge and experence of the
sports retail business In conjurchion with the Exequve Deputy Chorman, he ogress
strategy, appropriata obyechives and pohicies for each of the busingsses Bave hos overcll
responsitility for the daily manogement of the Group

MATT PEARSON
ACTING CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
APPOINTED: 04 Juse 2015

PREVIOUS ROLES: A giaduate in Maths, he qualified with Tenon, now part of Boker
Tilly, m 2004 He subsequently goined Ermst and Young, now EY, in Nottinghom where fre
worked os on auditor before joming the Group

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: Matt jomed the Group in June 2007, shortly
after it isted on the London Stock Exchange, ond hos since worked closely with the
Exacutive teom and the Audit Commttee n his role as Group Financial Controller
Mart s o quolived Chortered Accountont, with substantiol knowledge of oll finoncia!
ospects of the Group

& REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

SIMON BENTLEY ® o

SENIOR INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, CHAIRMAN OF
AUDIT COMMITTEE

APPOINTED: 02 March 2007

COMMITTEES: fudit, Noricahon ond Remunesation Commuttees

PREVIOUS ROLES: Simon qualified os o Chartered Accountant in 1980 and m 1987
joned Blacks Lewure Group Plc where he wos Choman and Cheef Executive for 12 years

PRESENT ROLES: Simon chars ond 15 on the board of a range of companies and
orgonssations Ameng these, he 1s Charman of the haw brand Umberto Gianainy, 1 the
prncipat owner ond Chaiman of the leading mobife ATM operator Cash on the Mave,

% & Supenvsory Board Drector of Global Home, a designer and monufacturer of mdoor
furmiture for retaters, based in Viemom, and 15 Chaarman of Yod Vashem — UK Foundohon

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: He hos lengthy expenence of the sporfing goods
industry, and matntoins the recent and relevant expenence necessary to be Chaieman of
the Audst Committge

DAVE SINGLETON o = »

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, CHAIRMAN OF REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

APPOINTED: 27 Ociober 2007

COMMITTEES: Audst, Normnonon and Remuneranon Commuttees

PREVIOUS ROLES: Dave spent 25 yesss with Reehok International Limited He
steppad down n Apnl 2007 hoving ossisted wath the successful infegration of Reebok
following 1ts acquisinion by acidos Group i January 2064 For exght years he was Vice
President of Northern Europe Region & UK and then was Senior Vice President of Europs,
Middle Eost & Ao

PRESENT ROLES: Dave s Chaizmon of Bolten Lods & Girls Club, Chairmar of Bolton
Community Leisure Trust ond o Trustee af Bolton Wanderers Community Trust

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: Dove has an extensive semor monogement
record ond brings valucble expenence of intermahional sporfs brand operotions

CLAIRE JENKINS e 0 »
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
APPOINTED: 25 Moy 2011

COMMITTEES: Audst, Nomingnon and Remunerahon Committess

PREVIOUS ROLES: Clarre’s most recent Executive role wos os Group Director
Corporate Affoirs ond & member of the Executive Leadership Team, responisible for the
company’s sustanobikiy and communicahons actwinies, of Rexam ple, o feading globel
bevernge can maker Pror 1o that, she was o member of the Monogement Commitiee of
intemational tobocea company Galloher Group ple (ocquired by lapan Tobaceo 1n 2007)
where she was responsihle for mvestos refabans and Group plaaning Claire hos also
goined comarmte gxpenence in vanous consulhng rales and ot Laig & Crurckshank, and as
o NonExecwtve Director of Retre Clossics Fund

PRESENT ROLES: Clarre 5 Chawrmon of Amicus, and o Non-Executive Director of Media
For Development

KEY SKIELS AND EXPERIENCES: Claire hos excellent allround bustness expenence
and, in addinon, hos paricutor corporate govemance and communication skills
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of Sports Direct Infernanonal plc present thewr Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 26 Apnl 2015

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Chsef Exetuive’s Report on pages 21 fo 24 prowides o detaited raview of fhe Graup's
current achvines and potential future developments together with factors hkely to affect
future development, performance end condinons There & akso o table of the prncpol

isks and uncertaianes likely to offect the Group The financiol posihon of the Geoup, its
cash flow, liquidity posinon ard borrowing faclines are descnbed in the Financinl Review
on pages 25 1o 27 The Comorate Responsibility Repart on pages 28 to 32 reports on
enwronmanial matters, incuding the impact of the Group’s businesses on the enviranment,
the Groug's workioice, ond on sociol and community 15sues

The prncipal acrwines of the Group dunng the vear remained unchonged and were

* fatmifing of sports and leisure clothing, factwear and equipment;

* wholesale dsmbution aad sale of sposts and lewsure clothing, footwear and equipment
under Group-owned or licensed bronds, and

* |icensing of Group brands

Further mformaton of the Group’s panaipal actvines 1 sef out In the front of this
docurnent aad n the Chief Executive’s Report an poges 21t tp 24

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR AND DIVIDENDS

Revenug for the 57 weeks ended 26 Apnl 2015 wos £2,832 ém and profit before
tax wos £313 4m compared with £2,706 Om end £239 5m wn the pror year

The troding results for the yetr and the Group’s finanaal posinon as ot the end of the
year ore shown i the oitoched Financiol Stotemants, ond discussed further in the Chief
Executve’s Report and Business Rewew oad i the Finoncio) Review on poges 21 to 24
and 25 to 27 respectvely

The Bourd has determuned not tg recommend o didend thus yeor

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONTROL
The outhorsed share copifal of the Company & £100,000,000 dwded mio $9¢,500,010
ordnary shores of 10p each end 499,990 redeemable preference shares of 10p each

Further nformation regarding the Group’s issued shore copital con ba found on page 77
of the Financial Statements

Defalls of our Share Schames aie also set out on page 77

There are 640,602,36% ordinary shores of 10p n issue and fully pard of which
42,137,508 ore currently held in Treosury

There ore no speciic restnctions on the transfer of shares, which are govemed bath by
the general provisions of the Articles of Associahion and prevailing legislanon

The Directors ore set oware of ony agreements between holders of the Compony's shares
that may result m restnchons on the ransfer of secunties or on votiag nghis

The Dreectars were cuthonsed to allot shares n the capital of the Group up 1o an sggregate
nomiral omount of £19,948 829 (being approximately one third of the then issued
share capital) for the penod exprring ot 9 September 2015, the date of the 2015 Anawal
Genernl Meeting

In line with quidance from the Association of Brish Insurers the Company was also
gronted guthonty to ssus a further fhurd of the ssued shore copitol fo o normingl amount
of £39,897,658 (hemng approximately 35% of the ssued shore copsial) m connechon
with 0 nghts ssue

Aturther authorety 10 alfot shares up to @ maximum nominal volue of £2,992,324
(being approimately 5% of the then issued shore caprtal) os if stanstory preemphion
nghts did not opply, wos okso approved

The authonnes expire ot the close of the next Annual General Maening of the Company,
but a contract to oot shares under these authonties may be made prior to the expiry of
the authonty and concluded in whole o porr ofter the Annuol General Meeting, and af that
meehag other authanhes will be sought from shareholders

The Group wos outhorsed to make market puchases of ordinary shares of 10p each
in the Company of up to o maximum oggregute number 59,846,486 representing
10% of the Company’s issued ordinasy share capetal ot the 2014 Annyal Generol
Meeting The above authonty expires of the dose of the next Annunl General Meeting
of the Company

SHAREHOLDERS

No shaseholder enjoys any special control nghts, and, except as set out below, there are
no restnichons 1% the: wansfer of sheses or of voting nghts

Mike Ashley hos entered info o Relatonship Agreement with the Company Under the
terms of the Agreement Mike Ashley undertook thai, for so fang os he 15 entifed fo
exercise, or to control the exercse of, 15% or more of the nghts to vote a1 general
meenags of the Company, he will,

& conduct oll transachons and refationships with oy member of the Group on arm’s
iength terms and on 1 normat commercal basis,
* exsrase fis votng nghts or ather aghts :n suppon of the Compony being manoged m
occordonce with the Usting Rules and the principles of goad governance sef out m the
UK Corporate Govemance Code and not exerase any of hus voting or other nghts ond
paweers to procure ony emendment to the Aricles of Assocation of the Company,
other than through his nterest in the Compasy, not hove any mterest e any busmess
which sells sporfs opparel ond equipment subject to certain nghts, after nobfication 1o
the Company, fo acquire any such iterest of less than 20% of the business concernad,
ond certain other hmited excephicns, without receiving the pnor approval of the Non
Execute Directors, ond not sofice for employment or employ any senior employea of
the Compony

The Company kos been odwised that the foliowang parties had o significont direct or
indirect shazeholding 1 the shares of the Company

PERCENTAGE OF [SSUED
NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL
SHARES HELD WITH VOTING RIGHTS HELD ~ NATURE OF HOLDING
Whedstir 330,000,000 55 1% et
oG 471254 563% et
Oy Ase 29,852,065 499% e

Management #

{1k kobly holds sha shams throuegh o compoclay vame by MASH Bara Limdad ond MaSH Hokfags Limhed which bold 303,507 460 (50 71% of tha
inend orfioory shave:copiral of tha Coerpey) ond 26 492,540 (4 43% of the Asued onfinony shor ooptof of the Company) ordinary shoess sespaciionly. Thesa
figres are 03 0t 20 Joroary 2015 belog the kst dote on whkh the Compony wa nettfied of 4 chang in the percectage of shams

{7} These fures o o 1 10 July 2015 belog the ko dody on wrich the € oempemy wos nttfied of o chemgs In the pemsninge of sy
{3} Thtwn figures ore ws ot 15 Jly 2015 bl e st dite on which the Cocrmmy wits nottPd of & ceng I the precestigs of shases,




SUPPLIERS

The Geoup understands the mportonce of maintoining good relotionships with suppliers and 1t s Group
policy to agree appropncte terms and conditions for its tronsactions with suppliers. (rangng fiom
standord wtten ferms to mdrvadually negotiated contiodis) ond for paymest fo be mode i cccordonce
wth these terms, provded the supplier has complied with (ts obligations

CONTRACTS ESSENTIAL TO THE BUSINESS
OF THE COMPANY

The Chief Executive’s Report on pages 21 1o 24 detals mformation oboul persons with whonm the
Gioup hes contracival of other aangements ond ove desmed essenhiol or matenal fo the busimess of
the Group

TAKEOVERS

The Directors do not believe that there org any signficant contracts that moy change in
the: event of & successful fokeover of the Company Detanls of the impact of any successful
takeaver of the Group on the Directors” hanus ond share schemes are sef aut i the
Durector’s Remunerotion Report on pages 44 to 57

SHARE SCHEMES

Detals of the Executive Shase Schemes ore set out i the Directors” Remuneration Report
or page 45 ond derarl of the Shore Schemes for porncipanng employees an poge 28 of
the Corporate Social Responsiity Report

STAFF INVOLVEMENT

The Group currently hos o ¢ 27,000 strong workforce m s stores, offices and warshouses
The contnbutions that key employaes have made 1o the Group's sccamplishments hove
ployed o wite! role, sad the overwhelming dediconion shown was the decding factor in
encourngmg the Group to propess o thied Share Scheme

The 2009 Share Scheme vested n August 2012 and 2013 The 201t Shore Scheme 15
due o vest laterin 2015 and n 2017

The 2015 Share Scheme wos agproved by shoreholders at a Genercl Meeting which
took place an 2 July 2074, with the EBITDA torgess for the Scheme spanning berween
FY16 and FY19 The Scheme differs from the prewigus twe Share Schemes os eligibiliry
to pomcpete in the scheme ss apen 1o both employees and Execunve Directors, os
determined by the Boord

The workforce 1s notified of annuncements end mejor changes in the busmass wia
Company news emails aad our infranet, os well gs mformetion berg transmitzed through
lsne monagers Tracmng programmes ond mduchan (ourses provide the wodkforce with
opportunities to keep up to date with the lotest devefopments of the Group Qur annual
confesance offers them an opportunity to mix with teams with wiich they wouldn't
erdinonly mix, fo learn about the Group's aspuratons, ond to keep up fo dete with the
Iotest changes 1n the Group This i o full day event ond also has o ronge of actwties
toilored to the speafic aren in which eoch indnadual works

Further mformation on relafionships wath gur peole con be found in the Corporate Socil
Resporsibility Report on pages 28 to 37

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

The Groug's recrutment pokiey 1 o mofch the capebilines and tofents of eoch appheant

o the appropaate job Factors suck as gender, roce, religion or belef, sexuol onentation,
age, dwobity or ethnic ongin should be ignored and any decsion whech & mode wath
reguré to canddores shoutd be irespective of these Discnmimasion in any form will net be
toleroted under ony arcumstances within the Group

Appheations for employment by disabled persans ore given full and fair consideration for
vocancies, and ore assessed i occordence with then paricutor skdls and abilities

The Group does all thet s pracicable to meet its resporsibelines towards the troming and
employment of disabled people, and 1o ensure that fraiing, career development and
pramoton opportunities ore avorlable to all

The Group makes every effort fo prowde continwity of employment where current
employees become disabled Attempts are made in every crcumstance to rovde
employment, whether us involves adapting the current job role ond remaiming m the
some job, or mowing ta o mose approprote job role Job retroimmg ond job odopution are
just two examples of how the Group works in the interests of ts workforce fo promote
equal opportunities m arder that an idnadual's employment within the Group may
continue The Group values the knowledge and experfise thot employees have gamed
thioughaut therr hme with us, and therefore doas not wish to lose

valued employees

With the aim of achiewing our torget of 25% female representation: on our Bourd, we are
achvely seeking apphcahions from female porennal Non-Executive Directors

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group desigrs clothing and some footweor for sole in stores and has ariangements
with suppkers for the research and development of geeds for the Brands divssion

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL DONATIONS

Dunng the year, the Group made chantoble cosh donstions of 117,000

(2014 £147,000) w the UK No polecal donatons were mode (2014 nil) These have
been n number ef futther donations of sporting equipment mode to worthy couses, ond
these ore set out on poge 32

DIRECTORS
Detodls of current Drrectars, dotes of oppomiment, therr roles, resporsibilines and
signficant externol commitments are sef out on page 33

Although the Compony’s Armicles of Association require refirement by rotation of one thid
of Directors each yaor, the Group has chosen to comply with the 2012 UK Corporate
Governance Lode ang at eoch Annuol General Meenag ofl of the Directors will refire ard
stond for reappomntment

Information on serwice contracts and dafoils of the nterests of the Directors ond their
families in the share copial of the Company ot 26 Apnl 2015 and at the dote of this
Repart 1s shown in the Directors’ Remunerotion Report on pages 48 ond 51

Copies of the servce confraats of Executive Directors ond of the appomiment letters of
the Chairman cnd Non-Executive Direciors are avaioble for inspecnon of the Company’s
segistered office dunng normol busimess howrs ond of the Annual General Meenng

Ho Director has o Girsciorship i comman or other sigaificant links wih any other Birector
{except i Hte cose of the Executive Directors hotding directorships of subsidiory componies
of the Group)

DIRECTORS’ CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Soord s formal procedures to dea with Duectors” conflits of interest Duning the
yeor the Board reviewed and, where oppropniate, approved certoim stuational conflicts of
interest thot were reported fo 1t By Directors, and o register of those situgiional conflicts

s mainfomed ond rewewed The Board noted any hransochonal conflicts of intesest
concemning Directors thet arose end were declared No Director took part m the discussion
or defermination of any motter in respect of which he hod disclosed a tronsacionel conflict
of interest

35
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DIRECTORS” REPORT
CONTINUED

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

The Group has gronted the Drrectors witt Guolifying ThirdParty Indemnity prowisions
withi the meaning given to the term by Sections 234 ond 235 of the {amponses Act
2006 This 15 1n respect of hobdines to which they moy become liable wn therr copaaty 0s
Durector of the Company and of ony company withia the Group Such mdemnshes were m
force throughout the financiol yeor ond wall remoin m force

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2015 Annual General Meehing wilt be held on 9 September 2015 ot Unit D, Brook
Park Eost, Shirebrook, NGZ0 BRY The Meehing wall commence at 11om The Board
encourages shareholders fo attend ond parhapate tn the mesting

GOING CONCERN

The Group’s business activinies, fogether with the factors hkely to offect ity future
development, performance ond posihon are set out in the Business Review on pages 21
to 24

The fimancial position of the Group, s cash flows, lquidity posihon and borrowng faclhes
are descnbed n the Finongiol Review n pages 25 to 27 tn oddinon, the Fnancial
Stoterments include the Group's abjectives, policies and processes for managing ets capiaf,
its finaniol risk management abiechives, detads of s financiol mstruments and hedging
actevives, and is exposures to credit nsk ond kauadity nsk.

The Group 15 profitable, highly cash generafive and has considerable fnancinl resources
The Group 15 oble 16 operote comfortably within its bonking faclhes ond covenants, which
run urhl September 2018, and 15 well ploced to take odvantage of strategic opportunities
as they orise

As o consequence, the Brrectors beheve that the Group 1s well placed to manage iis
business nsks successfully despie the confinued uncertain economic autlook

The Group’s forecests and projechons, taking account of reasonable possible chonges in
tading performance, show that the Group should be able to operate withi the level of the
currest focility

Having tharoughty rewiewed the Group's performance and hoving made suiiehle enquines,
the Directors gre: confident that the Group hos odeguate resources o remam m operahonal
exwstence for the foresesoble future On this basis, the Directers conhinue to adopt the
going concern basis for the prapasanion of the Annual Report and Financin! Statements

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

A statement by the Auditor can be found an page 56 detading therr reporting
resporsibilifies The Directors fulfil therr responsibilimes and these are set out in the
responsihility statement on page 53

AUDITOR

Grant Thorton UK LLP hove expressed o willingness to continue i office In accordonce
with Sechion 489 (4) of the Companies Act 2006, resoluhons to determing remunerotion
ore fo be agreed af the Annual General Meehng

By Order of the Board

Cameron Olsen
Company Secretary

16 oty 2015




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group 1s commutted to high standards of Comorate Governance The followang sechon wall detoll how the UK Corporate Governance

Code has been applied dunng the year

CHAIRMAN'’S INTRODUCTION

| am pleased 1o ntroduce the Corporate Governance Report, which confirms shot for
the year ended 26 Aol 2015, the Group hos complied with the 2012 UK Cosparate
Governonce Coda

Dunng the yeor we have seen o change n the Board's structure os a result of the
refiement of Chores McCreevy n September 2014 Since the retirement of Charles we
hove been actively looking to recrurt o further Non-Executve Director

Dunng our continung search for Non-Executive Directors, we are actively encouroging
appliconoas from women The Group hopes fo achieve Lord Davies” torget of a 25%
repiesentahion of women on our Board by the end of 2015

The Group’s lock of a Finance Birector dunng FY 15 was a matrer which was questioned
by o number of our mvestors, and | hove previously reporsed that we wese awore that
the posttion was unusual for most FTSE 100 Companies Throughout the recruitment
process we felf that we tut o numbes of hurdles which hindered recrustment, inciuding
that our Group Executves ore some of the lowest paid Board members in the FTSE
100, and that the remuneration package cam be concerved as unoppealing However
the culture of the Groep 15 payment as reword and the feom 1s awerded large bonuses
for outstanding achievements Furthermore aur small Exscufive teom work for o large
amount of therr nme from the Group Head Office i Derbyshire However the majonty
of experenced Executives are concentrated n the south of the country, ead many find it
defficult to consider spending forge amounts of the week working away from home

Throughout the year we focussed on oppoiniing o Finance Director, and in domng so

we have ted to adopt our cultere and offer opplicents fnancial packages to meet
ther expectotions in the short term However in doing this we hove had 1o be mindful
that there s fairness omongst the Board ard that the culture of the Group 1s not eroded
We feel thot our cultwe and pay strategy has been key fo ous success fo dafe,

and chonging this for o porticulor condidate could hove on adverse effect on our

future progeess

Howaver, 05 hme maved on we noted that o strong intemal condidote hod ossumed
many of the rasponsibilifies, so we have appointed Matt Pearson os Acting Chief
Financiol Officer Mot has been with the Group since 2007, howing initally joned os
Group Finanaal Accountant Mat hos shown greot loyalry ond promise, and hoving
worked his way up the ranks we feel thet he will be o valued eddmon te the Board

Thioughout the yeor the Board has actwely engoged with shareholders through various
meenngs ¢nd lengthy wntten correspondence Board members have travelled to o
number of locohons i order o communicate with shoreholders, and hove sought
quidnce érom our Company Secretanal team when necessary The Group’s approach
to invessor relotions wos kindered recently following the end of the fred-term conirac
post of Disector, Strtag Development Howeves af all times the Group endeavours

to pramote hormomiaus relonionships with ivestors, and looking farword we oim fo
forge even stronges investor selationships by utiising the skills ond knowledge of

Mait Pearson

The 2014 UX Corporate Governonce Code has been discussed by the Board, and will
be embraced once 1t apphes 1o the Group We ose aware that two of the key aims
ore te promate o¢countobility and improve dlignment between business decisioas and
shareholder mterests

I on effort 1o fook townrds fully mtegrating the Code we have received specic
guidonce from externat bodies We have nmally focused the appheation of the Code
on nisks reporing ond remunesation, ond we ore working on the broader opplicattans

Key tomcs of discussian shroughout the year hove mciuded recrutment, legal motters,
expansian gnd corporate govemance motters. Addinonol detols of the Group's strategy
can he found on page 15

As Chowman of the Board | leel honoured to be surrounded by feflow members who are
s0 passtonate about their roles The Boord 1s commutted 1o mamtaining the prnciples of
govemonce, by actvely questioning, chollenging end endeavounng to understand the
Executive Throughout the yeor cnefo-one meetings have been held between Executive
ond Non Executwe Boord mermbers in order that Noa-Execuive Board members con gam
a fuller understonding of what 15 toking ploce i the Group

COMPLIANCE WITH THE UK CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The overall responsibility For the Group's nsk monogement and mtemal controls systems
sits with the Boord Thes i an on-gong process which selates fo the identificahon,
evaluahion, monagement ond monitorng of signficant nsks This camplies with the UK
(orporote Govemonce Code

The Board s subject to the UK Corporate Governance Code, which was ssusd n
September 2012 The mom prnoples of the Code are

LEADERSHIP

EFFECTIVENESS

ACCOUNTABILITY
REMUNERATIONS

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Boord has reviewed the Company's corporgte governance processes end polices, end
has concluded that dunng the 52 weeks snded 26 Apnl 2015 (the year) the Company
comphed with the prowisions of the Code

THE BOARD

The Boord consists of the Non-Executve Chairman, Keith Heflawell, the Executive
Deputy Choieman, Mike Ashley, two cther Exacuttve Directors, and tres further
Non Executive Directors The names, skills ond short biogrophes of each member
of thg Boord ore set out on page 33

The size ond composition of the Boord 15 seqularly reviewed by the Board to ensure thot
there 15 the appropnote balance of skils and expenence

ROLE OF THE BOARD

The role of the Baard s to ensuze the overall long-term success of the Group This 1s
achieved through she review, development and implementahion of the Group’s sirategy
The Boord alse mamtoins respansibility for corporate responsibility, eccountoblity and
to ensure effectve leadership 1s delegated fo manogement for the doy to day running
of the Group and ensures on appropnate strategy 15 n place fos sutcession plonming

The Board has o progremme in place 1o enoble 1t 1o discharge ifs responsibity of
providing effective and entrepreneunal leodership to the Growp within o fromework
of prudent and effectve cantrals

The Boord plans to meet on a formol besis sux kimes dunag the year with up to four
odditionol strotegy meehings ot convenient fimes throughout the year when broader
sssues concerning the strategic Future of the Group will be discussed The Boord will
meet on other occasions os and when the business demands Dynng FY15 the Board
met on 13 occosions

i
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A detarled agenda 15 estoblished for each meening, ond oppropriote documentation 15
provided to Directors in advance of the meeting Regular Board mestings prowide on
ogenda that will include ceports from the Chief Execuimve, reports on the performance
of the business ond cument trading, reports on meshings with rmvestors, reparts from
Committeas of the Board and specific proposals where the approval of the Boord

ts sought The Boord will monitor and queshion monthly perfermance end review
enticpated results

Presentations ase also gven on business of strofegic 1ssues where appropniate, and

the Board will consider o least annually the strategy for the Group Minutes of the
meetings of Commuttees of the Boord are crculoted to ol members of the Boord, uniess
o confhict of interest anises, to enable off Directors to have oversight of those matters
delegated to Committees, and copies of analysts” reports ond Drokers notes are
prowided to Directors

In an effort fo secure the Jong-term future of the Group, the Board hos creoted o figh

performance culture within the Group by dewising stretching Share Schemes as well os
o share scheme fo senior members of manogement Areas discussed mclude 1rvestar
relations, human resources and heofth and safety The Boord also receves updotes on
areas including nsk masagement and wterol cortrol systems

It 15 the responsibdity of the Directors to ensure thar the accounts ore prepared and
submitied Howing ossessed the current Annugl Report, long with the accounts, the
Directors confirm that, taken as o whole, they are far, balenced and understandable
The Birectors do confirm thot these documents provide the necessary nformation in
order for shareholders o ossess the Group's performance, business mode! and strategy

KEY ACTIVITIES
+ Ensunng the fong-term success of the Group

» (onsidenng the eblgations to shareholders and other stakehelders

 Considenng the effect the Group’s activities hove on the environment aad communify
in which it operntes

« Mombamng o high busingss reputatson
*» Montaining relotionships with suppiiers, customers and the wider community

There 15 o formal schedute of matters that require Baard approval they ore matters that
could hove significant strategic, financiol or reputanonal effects on ths Group as o wholg

MATTERS RESERVED FOR THE BOARD

» Sers budgets

* Homtars gad reviews strafegy ond business performaonce

* Anproves acquisinons, expansions into other regians / counmes
« Appomiments and remaval of Board members

« Succession plonning

 (veroll responsibility for mtermol control and nsk management as descibed on
poges 40 to 41

THE CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The davision of responsibilites between the Non-Executve Chosrman, the Executive

Dreputy Chawman and the Cheef Executive 15 n wnting ond has been ogreed by the Beord
However they work closely togather to ensure effechve dacsionmaking and the successful
delery of the Group’s strategy

The Chorman s responsible for feodership of the Board, ensuring ifs effechveness ond that
¢l Directors are able to ploy o full port i the acteties of the Company He ensures tha
the Directors receve occurate, tmely and clear informanion

The Chairman offiaates effechve commumcation with shoreholders ond ensures thot the
Boord understands the wiews of major mvestors, end s avednble to provide odvice oag
support 10 members of the Executive team

The Executive Deputy Chorman i on ambossador for the Compony He takes the lend
m the strategic development of the Company, formulahng the wision and strategy i
connchon with the Chief Executive

The Company hos entered into o Belahonship Agreament with Mike Ashley, the Executive
Deputy Charman, whose wholly-owned componies, MASH Holdings Limited and MASR
Beto Limited, currently hold approximately 4 43% and 50 71% respechvely of the issued
share coprtol of the Compony (excluding treasury shases) This agreement is descbed i
the Durectors” Report on poge 34

The Chigf Executive 15 responsible for the runaing of the Group’s business for the delivery
of the strotegy, Jeading the management team and implementing spectic dectsions
mude by the Boord to help meat shareholder expectohons The Chisf Execufive reports to
each Board megting on oll matenal motters offecting the Group's performance No one
indwidugl hos unfertered power of decsion

Given the structure of the Boord, the foct that the Chowrman and Chief Executive roles
are fulfiled by two separete indnaduals and the ferms of the Relahonship Agreement
with Mike Ashley, the Board belteves that no indwidual or small group of indwdugls con
dormeate the Board's decsion moking

THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board consists. of three Non-Executive Directors ond the Chamon The role of the
NortExecutrve Directors 1s to understand the Group i its enfrety ond construchvely
chalienge strategy and management performance, set Executve remuneration levels ond
ensure an appropniate succession planaing strotegy © in place They must olso ensure they
sre sahshied with the accurocy of finanaiol mformetion ond thot thorough nsk management
processes ore n place

The Mon-Exacutive Directors have excellent expersence from a wide range of sectors
The NorrExecutive Directors assist the Boord with 1ssues such os govemance, nternal
cantrol, remuneraton ond nsk manegement

Simon Bantlay 1s the Semor Independent Nan-Exacutive Duector He supponts the Charman
and Nen-Executive Directors and 15 availoble o shareholders if they hove concems

THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - EXTERNAL APPOINTMENTS
Non-Exacutive Disctors arg raquired to disclose pror oppomimants and other signdicant
commitments fo the Board ond are requared to inform the Board of any changes to o7
addinona! commitments Detalls of the Nen-Executives Diectors’ externcl cppointments
con be found on page 33

Before accepting new appomtments Non Executive Directars are required to abtain
approvel from the Chairman, aad the Chaimon requires the opproval of the whole Boord
It 1s essential that no appointment causes ¢ conflict of intesest or eogordises

the Noa-Executive Brractors” commitment ond hre spent with the Group n therr
exishng appointmant

THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS — INDEPENDENCE
The Group considers the NomExecutive Directors fo be independent in occordance with the
2012 UK Corporote Governence Code

Fach yeor the Boord evolushons consider the idependence of each Board member

The most recent evaluohons did not highlight any Directors who lacked ndependsnce
Although the Boord hes remained constant for same time, the longest-serving member
of the Board has been wath the Board for eight years, this being less thon the mine yeor
penod ofter which independence may become questionable



EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS -
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Board hos set proceduras to dea with Directors” confhcts of interest that anse

Dunng the year the Board revewed and, where oppropriate, approved cestom situahonol
confiicrs of wntesest thot were reported to it by Directors, and o regsker of those situonenal
conflicts s memntained and reviewed The Boord noted any fronsochonel conflicts of
inzerest concerning Directors that arose and were declared No Director took part i

the discusston or determungiion of any matter i respect of which he had disclosed o
transacnonal conflict of interest

EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - RE-ELECTION
The Group comphes with the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code ond all Directors offer
themselves for re-glechon every year

The Board has determmed that oll Directors must put themselves forward for election

of re-elechon ot the 2015 Annual Generol Meening to comply with the UK Corporate
Govemance Code Rennng Directors moy seek reappaitment if willing and eligible 1o

do 50 ond if so recommended by the Nomination Committee All Directors appointed by
the Board ore appointed after consideranan of the recommendaiions of the Nominghon
Committee, and those so oppomted mest stond for reappomtment at the followsng Annwal
Generol Meeting

Detods of Executive Birectors” senace contracts, and of the Charman’s and the Non-
Executive Directors" appomtment letters, ore gven on pages 48 fo 49 Copres of service
conmacts ond of sppomment lemers ore avoloble for mspecnon af the Compony's
registered oHfice dunng normal business hours and a1 the Annual Generol Meshing

EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE - TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

AN newly oppomted Directors ore prowided with an anduchion progromme which is fadored
to their existing skifls and expenence The Boord 15 mformed of any matenol chonges to
lows ond regulations affecting the Group’s business

M Diectors hove access to the advice ond services of the Company Secretary, ond eoch
Biwector ond ench Board Committee may toke independent professional adwice af the
Company’s expense, subject fo prior notification to the other Non Execunve Directors and
the Company Secretory Apprognate Orrectors and Officers Insurance 1s sngmtomed by
the Company

EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS -
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The practices and processes of te Board are evaluated on o yeory bosis, with the most
recent evoluahion being led mternally Followng evaluahons the feedback obiained s
considered ond the Board uct on the feamings which have come to fighit

Dunng 2014, the evolusnions were led extemally, by using an evoluator selected by
the Boord, NIMD Corporare Services Limied, which s a speciehist consultency led by
Nigel Davies

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board wath their dunies, there are three prncipal Board Commuttees, bemg
the Audut Commrttes, the Remunesation Comrmettee and the Nominotion Commuttee

The Commarees ose governed by terms of reference which provide detall of matters
delegated to each Committee and the authonty they hove to make decsions Full terms
of reference ore avoloble on request and on the Compeny's websde

Attendance by Directors ot Boord and Commuttee meeings dunng the year and the fotol
number of meetings that they could have ottended are set our in the rable below Al
Directors otrended ofl meetings of the Board and of Commuttes of the Board of which
they were members unless prevented from domg so by pnor commitments The Board s
sotishied that currently no one Director exercses a disproporhonate nfluence

Board Boord Andit Renwoecation  Hominotion
Maetings- Maetings- Conmittes Compmities Commi!tes
Sdwdoled Unschadcled ~ Mostings Mastings Mastings

Kesth Hellawell  5/5 /8 3/3m 4/4 /2
ko kshley  5/5 4/8 V4

Simon Benfley 5/ 6/8 3/3 4/4 7
Dava Forsey /5 8/8 3/30 4/4m 2
Dave Singleton ~ 5/5 8/8 3/3 44 /1
Cloue Jenkins ~ 5/5 8/8 33 4/4 27
Charkes

rr T 7 28 1/3 1/4 17

(1) & number of juxkt Commee, Remunaeion { ommmres and Norrerhon {ommeiine meetigs wore sitended by Boga] members
wha weta not members of the Commiiass. The Bonaf merbers toacetned sitended Biesa moctng ol the ovtaion of the Commation
members.

(2) Masiings atisnded by Charks NeCroovy up s rtzereed on 10 Septarber 2014

The meenings which fook place throughout the yaar were 0 mexiure of both scheduled
meenngs, for generg! mattess, and unscheduled meetings, for more urgent matfers

All scheduled meetings ware oitended by olf existing Committes members Foffowing
unscheduled meefings all absent members ware subsequently given the opporfunity to
review the information end enderse of queston the decisions mode This ensured thot oll
members could have thesr thoughts recorded, even though they weren't availoble dunng
the mesting irself

Immedeately followang two unscheduled Board meetings Simon Bentley gove opproval

vio emay) Keith Hellowel olso gove telephone approvel immediately followmyg one
urscheduled meeting which he was unable to orend These absences were unovoidoble
due to other pre-plonned commitments by the Directors Despire the refabve shont notice of
many of the unscheduled meetings, citendance levels by the Boand hos remaimed high

There were a number of meetings throughout the year whicht were solely for
Non-Executive Directors and the Chesrmon Meenings olso took ploce which were
attended by Non-Executive Directors without the Chorman These mestings engbled the
Non-Executive Directors to discuss matters winch they perhops could not discuss with the
Executve Directors and /or the Non-Executive Charman present
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 2015

Deor Shoreholder,

| amm pleased o present the Audit Committee: Report for the 52 weeks ended 26
Apnl 2015

The Audit Commuttee has an important role fo ploy i effective reporting fo our
stakeholders ond ensuring fugh standards of quality and effectveness i the extemal audit
process This year hos seen the introduchion of many chonges to corporote reporting

Ths report provides an overview of

* Whot the Committee hos done duning the year, ond whot s planned for 2018,

 The effectveness of its acivines,

* How it hos assessed the effectiveness of the extemol ouditors, mchading ensuning therr
mdependence, and

* The Commuittes’s opiian on the Annual Report when wiewed os o whole

MEMBERSHIP

The Audit Committee comprses me os Choirmon, and ofl of the Non-xecutive Directors
Biogrophical desails of each member ge shown in the Board of Directors” profiles on
page 33

MEETINGS

The Comeiitee met three imes dunng the year and otiandance o1 these mestings 5
shown on poge 39 wathin the Corporate Govemance Report At the mwtohon of the
Comruttes members, the Group Choiman, Chaef Executve ond the Acing Chief Finonciat
{ffices ottend Committes meetings, os do the externaf and nterngl ouditors After gock
of its meetings, we mer with the external cuditors, in each case without the presence of
Executive Directors or manogement [n oddition | meet with the ouditors s and when it
s needed

THE MAIN RESPONSIBILITIES OF TRE AUDIT COMMITTEE INCLUDE,
» Assisting the Board with the discharge of 1ts responsibilities in relotion to intemal and
extemnal audis ond controls

* Agreeing the scope of the anaual oudit and the annual oudit plan and momitoning
the same

« Reviewing and momitonng the independence of the extemol ouditars and relononshigs
with them

* Agreeng ond monttoring the extent of the non-oudit work that may e undertoken
+ Reviewing ond ogreement of the external oudit fees

* Monitonng, making judgemenss gnd recommendonons an the financial reporiing
process and the integnty and conty of the Group’s Finoncial Statements

* Reviewing and momitoning, throughout the yegr, the effectiveness of the mrernal control
ond nsk menagement poliees and systems in place, mcluding a review of the acmaties
of the mternal audit funchon

* thomitonng she cudst of the annuol ond consolidated accounts mehuding o review of the
Letter of Representahon, Audt Findings report and engagement letters

* Reporting to the Boord an how it has dischorged s responsibilines and the
effechveness of the Audit Committee

WHAT HAS THE COMMITTEE DONE DURING THE YEAR?
* Monitored the effechveness of intemal controks, and glso considered the currens
economic cimate and iis fikely wmpact on the Group

» (onsidered the reoppomsment of the auditors
 Reviewed accounfing poficies, presentahons end the Financial Statements
« Reviewed its own effectveness

INTERNAL CONTROLS
As one of the fastesi-growing retarlers with ropidly expanding overseos and intemet
ope:tions, we hove many complex operational rsks to manage

The audit reviews led by the long estoblished Retaxl Support Unit have led the way,
thiough their oudits across the retod operohions each year, n prowding comfort over the
efficiency of controls over the operahonal procedures and systems which help fo generate
and report the nurbers watfun the Financiol Statements, and will continue fo do so

Consuous of the rate of growsh, increasing complexity and the merese tn responsibility
that we os on Audit Committee have in rewiewing the intaenal controls throsghout the year,
we appointed BDO lost year os intemol audit odwisers BDO hove speculists expenenced
i oudiing the strateqies and plans put i place fo mingata risks fo further stiengthen the
control esvironment

BDO hove conducied a review of our key nsks, and, in consultahion with us, hove
developed ¢ strategic oudit plon to provide ossuronce to the Audit Committee regarding
the management of these key nsks over the next threg ysars Ths plan wes presented to
the Audit Commutee, ond has been approved ond agreed os o defailed annual programme.

The Committeg fas delegated responsibility from the Bogrd for considening operotronal,
financiol snd comphance nsks on o regular basss Informatien on the Group's approach fo
internal control nd risk management i set out in the Cororate Governance Report on
pages 37 10 43

EXTERMAL AUDITORS

On on annuol boss, the Committee considers the reappotntment of the ouditors and thew
semunershion and mokes tecommendations to the Boord The quditors ate appointed each
year ot ihe Annuel Gereral Meeting The Committee consider the level of servce provided
by the qud:tors and thew imdependence

The Committee has recommended the reappaniment of Grant Thomtan UK LLP for FY14
The Committee toak @ nymber of fctors info account n ifs assessment icluding but not
limited to

* The quahty and scope of the plorrung of ihe qudit n assessing nsks and how the
externel guditors plonned to evolve the audit to respand to choages i the business,

e The quality and hmeliness of reparts provided to the {ommittee and the Boord,

* The level of understanding demonstrated of the Group’s businesses and the
retail sector,

 The obiectty of the external quditors’ views on the controls oround the Group and
the robustess of challange ond findings on oreas which required monagement
(udgement, ond

* Arevew of externol reports pubiished, for example by the FRC, o respect of
Gront Thotmton

The Committee’s view followsng this assessmant wos positve in relation fo ther evalughion
of the work of the extemal ouditors and they felt that high standards hod
been maintomed

After tokng mto account all of the above factors, the Committes concluged that the
externol auditors were effechve

The (ommutteg believes therr ndependence, the objectnaty of the externol oudit and the
effectrveness of the cudir process & safeguarded and remains sirong This 1s displayed
through thewr robust imiemal processes, theur confineng challenge, therr focused reporting
ond thewr discussions wath both manogement and the Audit Committee

To maméoin the objectnaty of the audir process, the extemal ouditors ore sequired 1o rotae
oudit parmers for the Group qudir every five vears and the current lead parmer has been
i place for two years Under the 2012 UK Corporote Govemonce Code, oudit servces
aust be put to render at feast every ten yeors or else we must explam why we have not
doneso Our cument ouditors, namely Grant Thomton UK ELF, have been m place snce the
irsting wn Februory 2007




In ight of the aliove our current entention 1s to put the external audik servees 1o tendes for
the audt of she penod ending Anf 2017

The Cammittee has approved  policy on the engogement of the external auditors for non
oudst work, 1n order to ensure thos the abjectaty of the suditors” opinion an the Group's
Financied Statements 15 nat or moy nat be seen o be mpaired, and hos establshed o
process o momitor complonce

The externol auditors may carry out certam cotegones of nom-audit work thot hove either
been pre-approved by the Commuttee or the Boord, depending on the nature and menetary
value of the services to be prowded The policy olso probibis the quditors ausfiting thesr
own work ond making monagement decisiots

The policy edeniried three categones of potentinl work

AUDITOR AUTHORITY TYPE OF WORK

The work inckides the preparation of arcounting
entries of Fmonciol Statements, [T systems desiga
and implementation, monagement of projects and Jax
planning where the outcome would hove o matenal
impact en the Fnoncial Statements or where the
outcome ts dependent upon accounting treatment

Work the auditor may nof provide as
complefing the tosk could create o
threot o mdependence

Comorote firance senvices, acqussition due difigence,
management tonsuliancy ond secondmen of staff other
than for the preparation of accounting entries of Financa!
Statements

Work the auditor may undertake with
the consent of the Chairman of the
Audit Commttee

There are services that the auditors may piowde os the
work 5 cleurly oud-reloted and these & no potential
threat 10 independence, inchuding regulatory reporiing
ond cehing os reporting accountanis The Compony 15
satisfied that s policy falls withen the requirements of
the Auditing Practices Boord

Woik the auditer may uaderloke

The Committee reviewed the noture and extent of non-audit fees expended on
transachons, pensions and fax odwisory services, fax cemplance, the rewew of the half
yeor report and other ossirance refared senvices, and she Commutes concluded that the
safeguords sef out above were sufficent so os not 1o compromise ouditor independence o7
objectwty

REVIEWED ACCOUNTING POLICIES, PRESENTATIONS AND THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Following the revision 1o the UK Corposate Governance Coda, which apples to financial
yeors commenang on ¢r ofter 1 October 2014, the Board asked the Committes to adwse
on whether the Annual Repors ond Fnancial Statements, token os a whole, were fai,
bolonced ond understandable and provided the informanion necessary for shareholders te
assess the Group’s business model, strategy and performance The Committes reviewed
the pracess for prepanag the Annual Reporr and Accounts

This process :ncluded the fallowing key slements

 Review of new regulanons and seporing requirements with extermol advisers 10 desthfy
oddiional infarmaton and disclosures that moy be appropnofe

 Preparonon of o deroiled timetable and aflocation of drofting responsibulity ta relevont
intemnal teams with review by an appropnete senior manager

o Provsion of an explanation of the requrements of “fan, balanced end understondable”
0 these with drafting responsibiiy

 Monitoning of the mtegnty of the Financial Statements and other information prowided
o shareholders to ensure they represented a cleor ond nequrate assessment of the
Group’s financiol performance ond position

 Rewew of signficont financiel seporting ssues ond udgements contaied i the
Fingncial Statements

» Review of afl sections of the repont by relevant extemal odvsers

« Review by the semor manager working group responsible for fhie Annue! Report process
= |ntenm progress review of process and report content with the Aucit Commitiee

» Review of o paper presented to the Committee, which sat out to review the contents of
the Annuat Report and substantiate why it provided o foir, bulanced and understondable
wiew of the year under review

The Committee reviewed the Annual Report and has confirmed 1t 1 fow, bolonced
ond understandable

FINANCIAL REPORTING
The Committee’s rewiew of the intenm and full year Financol Statements focused on the
fallowang oreos of significance

o Risk of fraud i revenue recogmiban — The Comeitte hove reviewed the revenue
recogition pohcies for oll matenal revenue steams They have also reviewed and
considered the audit findings ond he overall contiol enviranment 1n place surrounding
the recognition of revenue and 1s sahsfied thor revenue has been correctly recognised in
the Finonail Statements

* Denvotive financio! assets — The Comamitee hos reviewed the valuahon of contracts
or ddference nssets as at 26 April 2015, the accounhng treatenent of for volue
movements on these contracts and the reloted disclosures mcluded i the Finonciol
Statements The Committee have concluded that the valugtians have baen reosonably
reflected in denvative finanaal assets, that nppropnote eshmates have been opphied
ond that these hove therefore been correctly treated and odequotely disclosed m the
Finonciad Stofements

» Camying volue of mventory  the Commiftee hos reviewed monagement’s paper sefing
oul the bosts on which the inventary provision s calculated and & sansfied with the
ceasonableness and conssstency of model apphied ond thot stack is held o the lower of
cost ond net realisable value

* Intongibles impoiment assessment the Commuttes considered the key judgements
mcluding the discount rete, long term growth rare, and the projected futre <osh flows
of each cosh-generating unit to which goodwill 1s affocated, based upon financiol
alans approved by the Scard The Commuttee 15 sansfied with the methodology and
assumptions used, and the conclusion fhot the Group’s intangible assets oze not
smparred

The Audit Commuttee 15 sanshed with the level of ngor applied by the extemal auditors in
addressing these areas os port of the audit procedures

REVIEW OF OWN EFFECTIVENESS
After undertoking o review of its own pedfarmence the Committee concluded that it hed
been effectva in discharging the ohhigotions entrusted to 1t by the Board

Simon Bentley
Chemen of the Audst Comrmittes end Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

16 July 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CONTINUED

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Bragraphical detals of egch member gre shown in the Boord of Dicectors” profiles on
page 33

The Remunerahon Cammittea cansists solely of Nor-Executve Direciors who ore
considered independent The purpose of the Committee 15 o assist the Boord to ensure
that Executwe and NonExecutive Directors receive aparopnate levels of poy and benefits
A key prionty 1s to ensure that remuneration policy s oligaed with sirafegy to chieve

the long-term suecess of the Group The Committee ensures that if complies wath the
regurements of requlutory and govemance hodses including the UK Corporare Governonce
{ode whilst meeting stakeholder, shareholder and stff expectatians

THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE INCLUDE:
+ Detesmining the Company’s policy on Executive remuneranion, icluding the design
of bonus schemes and fargets ond payments mode thereunder
+ Datermining the levels of remuneration for the Charenan and each of the
Executve Drrectors
& Monitonny the remuneration of senior management and making recommendations m
respect thereof
+ Agieemg any compensofion for loss of office of any Executive Director

The Remuneraton Committee meets ot leost three fmes a year and met on four occastons
dunng FY15

A report on fhe remuneration of Directors oppears on pages 44 to 52

WHAT HAS THE COMMITTEE DONE DURING THE YEAR?

» Worked on the Share Scheme, induding ennouncements and assessimg the kkelihood
of achieving targets efc

 Rewewed and approved the Directors” Remuneration Report contomned on pages
441052

Full details of Directars” remuneratzan con be found m the Remunerahon Report on
page 50

Dave Singleton
Chasrmon of the Remuneration Committee

16 Juiy 2015

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

In my role o5 Chairman of the Neminaton Commettee, | ensure thot the Boord remasns
competent, batanced and effectve These goals are achieved 1n o number of ways,
including monitanng the succession of the Board, seviewing its performance and
identfying and nominohng suitable candidates to il Boord vocencies

Biographical details of each member are shown in rhe Board of Directors” profiles
on poge 33

Duriag a review of the skills, expenence and divessity of the Committee, it was
recommended that Clasre Jenkins should jom, an appoimtment which she has
duly accepted

The aim of the Commettes  to ensure that the Board remains balanced, knowledgeable
ond dwesse in order tho it is able to fully meet the needs of the Group Going forward
we Dim fo continue fo manage the tansinon of the Board, w parculor the addinon of
new Nor-Executve Directors, through mestmgs with candidotes (both &t mterviews ond
ot networking events), consulting with other Committes members raquiding thew views
on the suttabdy of candidates, and discussing the key requirements of the Group with
Board members

Tha Nommasnion Committee wilf mees ot lsast once o yaor ond will ko meet when
approprate The Commriiee med formally on two occosions dunng FY15 However the
Nommnohion Committes met mformally on o number of further occasions dunng the yeor m
order o dhscuss the appomtment of o replacement Fingnce Director ond o Non-Executive
Director(s) Al of the Nommanon Committes members ore Non-Executrve Directors and
considered to be mdependent

THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE INCLUDE:

* Reviewing the leadership needs of the Group, looking ot both Executves and
Non-Executives

* Rewewng the composton, structure ond size of the Board, end moking
recommendstons 1o the Board of edjustments that are desmed necassory

* (iving consideration fo succession planning for Directors, taking into account the
challenges and opportunthies facing the Group and the skills and expertise therefore
needed on the Boord

» Ensunng that Directors are aware of what 1s expected of them

= Formglty documenting the appointment of Duectors

 |denkfving potental condrdates for senior posts, ond makeng recommendahons to the
Boord gs and when necassary

The Board has estoblished ¢ Nomination Commuttee fo ensure a formal, ngorous and
tronsparent procedure for the appointment of new Birectors to the Board

The Nommanon Commuttee also determines succession plans for the Charman ond the
(hief Bxecutrve who are not present ot meetings when the matter is discussed Succession
plons ore reviewed by the Nominahon Committee of feost once @ yeor

Dave Farsay, the Chief Exacutres, will usually attend meetings of the Nomunghion
Commuties, unless the Nommanon Committee 15 declng with matters relehng fo fum or
with the appomtment of his successor

WHAT HAS THE COMMITTEE DONE DURING THE YEAR?

* fssisted with the seorch for o finance Director and recommended the appointment
of Matt Peorson

Faclitated the search for o Non-Exacutive Direcior ond reviewed the steps taken
towards moking an appomtment Condidates met with members of the Comeittee in
order thot the Committee were oble fo form o conclusion regarding recommendanons
Reviewed the top management structure in place Mode recommendafions as to
changes which may be required in order ta strengthen the posttion of the Group

m future

* Recommended and appomted onother Non Executive Director o the Committes

+ Metwith corporate governaace hodies and reviewed the feadback gwven

The Board beheves that the Booxd and s Commuttees os cumently constituted are
working well

Dr Keith Hellowell GPM
Chawmon of the Nominohen Commnttee and Charrman of the Board

16 July 2015



UK BRIBERY ACT

The Group has an approved poficy in place which was created following the mtroduction
of the UK Bnbery Act As o result of the Acs, off polices ond procedures hove been
reviewed to ensure that they comply with the Act and measures are m place to prevent
steff hemg offered ond / or oceepting bnbes

BUSINESS MODEL

Our business model, which sets out the basis on which the Company generates or
preserves volue over the longer term, and the strategy for defivenng the objechves of the
Company, con be found af poges 14 ond 15

WHISTLE-BLOWING
There is o formol whistie-blowing poficy m place for stoff who wish to raise ssues or
concems refating to the Group’s acteaties on o confidential basis

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Boord recognse the importance of commumicating with sharebolders This s done
theough the Anneal Report and general meefngs, and announcements All Directors ore
avaloble at, and following the Annual Genera! Meeting when shareholdars have the
opporunity te osk queshons

The Chormon ond the Cheef Execufive requlary meen with the Compamy's mshiutional
sharsholders to discuss the Group’s strategy and financial performance wathin the
constroints of informatian alieady ovallable to the public All other board members ore
nlso gvailoble to meet with shareholders, as ond when requied

The Compony’s corporate website s an important tool of communicatian, which should

be used as the first pont of call fos shareholders The site hofds oll London Stock Exchange
anaouncements, tagether with downlondable investor presentations, shere pnce chors end
brand informotion

{lunng the year members of the Boord and semwor manogement have mes with
shareholders 1n arder to discuss therr quenes The meghngs have beert considesed on
opporurity not anly to recognse the morers which ore of importoace to shareholders,
but alse: for shareholders 10 recognise how the Group operotes The shareholder meetings
that have token place dunng the year mchude foce to foce meetings, ndmdual end group
conference calls, letters and emails

REMUNERATION

The Remunerasion Commitiee s responstble for deternining ond rewewing remunerahion
policy and sethig remtuneration levels See Remuneration Report on pages 44 fo 52

SHARE DEALING CODE
The Group hos ndopted the Model Code as published = the UK Listing Rufes

Al those: deemed fo have “msider imformation” must sesk consan: pror to any desling
whatsoever in the Group's shares

The Executie Drrectors must ebtaw prior corsent fram the Chaurman or the Sencor
Independent Non-Executve Director The Chairmon requures consent fiom the Chief
Exetutve or the Serior Independent Non-Executive Director, ond ey other employees
with ‘msder informotion” must gain the prior consent of the Chief Execusve or Company
Secetary before deoling in the Group's shares

Detoils concerming the share copital structure of the Company can be found m the
Brrector's Report on pages 34 to 36

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The key features of the Group's system of infemal control and nsk management systems
i elohon to the financial reporting process and the preparaion of the Growp accounts are
set out below or cross+efenred to other parts of the Annual Report where relavont

The Board of Diectars has overall responsibility for detesmining the noture and extent

of the significont nsks it 1s willing to teke in achugang its strategic ebjechves and for
mamiasung sound sk managertent and intemal control sysiems, and for reviewing their
effectveness The nsk manogesment process ond systems of internal contro] ore designed
to manage rather thon eliminate the nsk of fmbure 3o achieve: the Company’s objecives
It should be recogmised that such systems can anly prowde regsenable but not absalute
ossurance aquinst matenel missiotement or loss

ASSESSMENT OF BUSINESS RISK

A system to idennly, assess, and evaluote busmess nsk s embedded within the
manogement processes throughout the Group Sivategic nsks are regulorly reviewed by
the Board and ats Committess Reks relating to the key actmities wathin the subsidiary
opefating unifs are ossessed contiruously

Further deteils of the nsks and uaceniainties relning to the Group’s business, and how the
Group secks to mingate these, can be found on pages 17 10 20

By Order of the Board

Cameron Olsen
Company Secstory

16 fuly 2015
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Deor Shoreholder,

On beholf of the Baard, | am agan pleased to present cur report on the remuneration
sirotegy and policy of the Company at the end of yet another very successful year We fimly
believe that thas confwed success s strongly connected with the mtroduchon of our Share
Schemes in 2009 and 2011, and new our 2015 Share Scheme The schemes are designed
to encouroge, recagrise ond reword outstanding performance ond 1o dive shoreholdes value

The remuneration pohcy of the Company s ofigned to sis commescral stategy for longrtem,
conssstent and profitoble growth The remuneranon package for Semor Executves  hghly
weighted towords performance-reloted remuneration, paid mostly i shares, and its design
s conswstent with the reward philosophy for the wider workforce This stroteqy s reflectve
of an extremely strong Executve ond employee performance culture and a reword ethos of
*One Tegm”

The Company phifosaphy 1 thar Executve semuneranon should be senple, mansporent and
directly support the defivery of the business strotegy ond shorehoider retums The Executve
Directors’ bosic safanes hove bieen defiberately set at o levef well below the lower quornle
of o business of the size ond complexity of the Group Indeed Dove Forsey's solary hos
remaed the same since 2002 ond agow wll not increase in FY16 Alse, the Senior
Execunves cumently enjoy no addihonal benefits from the Company

The Executve Directors do not receve on annval bonus Rother, to drve sustained long-term
business performance, nstead of granfing smoller awards on on onnual basis, larger upfront
awards are gronted which only vest if significant and consistent growth i delvered yeor

on year Anmual performonce fargets which must be hit ensure o focus s maintened on

0 conssstent and long-term profirable growth strategy The extended time honzon for the
vesting of owards for the 2011 Executrve Share Scheme ts soc years (in 2017) and for the
full vesting of the 2015 Share Scheme 1t 15 olso st years {in 2021)

(lear, published and stetching annual pestosmance targets must be fully sahsfied before
any of the shate awards vest Aigned to the Compoay’s high performaace witure, the Shore
Schemes ore designed on the basis that owards should vest in full for achieving siretchimg
targets (1¢ with an oll or nothing” vesting schedule) rather thon prowding for o lower Jevel
of vesting fos mesting o threshold target nsing 1o full vesting for achieving the siretch sorges
{re 0staled vesthng schedule) Because the Executwe Duectors’ remunesaticn opportundy
s hghly wewghted rowords performance-related remunerahon which will not vest o streiching
performance torgets ohgned wirk the business strategy are not met, they share nsk with

the shorehalders The size of these performance-only awards should be considered in thes
context

The Remunerchon Committes firmly bekeves thot this simple ond very mansparent share
incentve framework s totofly aligned with both the Company strategy for growth and s
performance culiure We also belev thar this strategy has diectly duven the histonc out
performance of stretch targets onginally set by the Commutee by further ahgning Execunve
and employee remuneschon potential fo mereased ond or-going shareholder vatue This
increased share volue incentve has also ted 1o o further ‘lfng of the performance bor’ for
future owords

There 15 no doubt that the mcegtion of the current remunerohion sirotegy m 2009 has deorly
led to strong shareholder velue mereases durng o difficult economic penod, and 1t hos
provided a strong platform for the angoing and longterm success of the Company

Dunng FY14 the Remunertion Commuties re-gssessed the shareholding quidalines for
Executrve Directors and determuned thot the Executive Diractors must now hold a minmom
of 50,000 shores while they remoin emplayed by the Company Dave Forsey's shoreholding
on 24 Apdl 2015 megnt that he sofsfied the guideline As an acting Boord membey, Matt
Pearson s nof smeatly required o safsfy the shareholding guidehne If s appomtment
becomes permanent, Mant Pearson would be expected o acquirs the mummem number of
shares over o reasonoble hme penod determined by the Commitee

On 2 fuly 2014, we were pleased to announce that the resolution to approve the 2015
Shaze Scheme wos passed, with & majonty of shoreholders efigible to vate on the resoluhion
vonng in fovour (the Executve Directors elected not to vote) and & was then icluded m
our Remunesation Palicy which was approved by sharehoiders of the Company’s AGM i
September 2014

Under the 2015 Share Scheme oll employess (ncluding Executive Dieciors} who are
determuned by the Boord os elgible who meet the qualfying conditions oad performance
cntenn os determuned and agreed by the Remunershion Commuttee and the Board will be
able to parapate The terms of the 2015 Share Scheme provide for the gront of nitcost
options over up 1o 25m ordinary shares m the Company (smountmg fo opproximately

4 2% of the sued shore copitel of the Cernpany} Semor Executive gronis ore hmited to
o maximum of ene mudbion shares each The veshing of any ephons woutd be condinonal
upon the ochievement by the Company of four Adjusted Underlying EBITDA rargets {before
stheme costs) set by the Commutiee I these performance togets are off met, 25% of
ony award would vest following the onnouncement of the Company’s oudited results for
FY19 m July 2019 and 75% of the award would vest following the announcerent of the
Company's audited results for FY21 i July 2021 When the Scheme wos approved the
Adwsted Underying EBITDA turgets (before scheme costs) wese (1) FY16 £480m, (i)
FY17 £578m, (i) FY18 £650m, ond (v} FY19 £750m

Spedfically tailored to Company aulture and our growth strategy we continue o review

the robustness of the Scheme The Remuneration Comminee considered these targers

o be extremely stretchung, dependent on strong orgamic growth and fo o degree on an
oggressve acquesitions strategy However, os we enter FY 14 1t s deor, and abso understood
by the market, thot plonned ocqusimons 1 FY15 did not fully matenatise As such, the
Commuttee befteves the FY16 Adjusted Underymg EBITDA torget of £480m to now be on
unreasonably challenging one Followang is recent review the Commuttee now recommends
io shoseholders ¢ revised FY16 Adjusted Underying EBITDA target of £420m This compares
o the £383m EBITDA nchieved in FY15 (e the delwery of ¢ 10% growth wn ane year) Al
other torgets for the further thiee yeors of the Scheme currently reman the some As noted
in the FY15 prehemnary results onnouncement, the Remunerotion Committes wilt continue 1o
review the robusimess of the Scheme on an onnuat basis Whilst the Committee considered
there 1o be some leeway for moking such an adpstment within the Scheme nules without
shursholder approval it decded that this change should be put to shereholders as an ordinary
resolutian ot the Compony's AGM in September 2015 Furthermare we hove olso added o
provision for dowback to she scheme {in addihon to the exiskng malus provision) fo enoble
the Compeny 10 tecover bonuses paid pursuzat to the Scheme for 12 months post vesting in
the event of senous finaneial misconduct by any Execunve Directar

In our Remuneration Pokicy we also indicated that Mike Ashlay, despite beng eligible 1o
porhicpote s the 2015 Shere Scheme, following discussions with the Committee nformed
the Company that he did not wish to pashicipate 1n the 2015 Share Scheme and a5 such
the Committes deaded to make no award to Mike Ashley uader the 2015 Share Scheme
Subsequently the Commitiea has now formally removed the abxlity of Mike Ashley to
particpote i the Scheme

In nddivon Meke Ashley informed the Company and the Commuttes that hie did noi expect
ony share based ncenive scheme 10 be proposed fo shaseholders in relonon to his role a5 o
Executve Director while the 2015 Shore Scheme 15 m ploce He remains fully committed to
achieving the stretching targets of the Scheme |1 should be noted that Mike Ashley has not
receved any remuaerahon from the Company since before the pubh offenng in Februory
2007, nor has he parhapated in esher of the Executve Share Schemes

it remains our intentzon to continue with the existing fransparent, highly performonce-geared
remunerotien policy for our Executves, 1 e low solory, no anaual bonus o nddihanal
benefts, and the 2015 Shore Scheme oflows us to conhinue on thes path

Dave Singleton
Chowrman of the Remuneronen Committee

16 July 2015




DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY
Ths pert of the seport sess out the Company’s Directors” Remunerarion Policy, which, subject to shareholder approval, skall toke binding effect from the date of the 2015 AGM
The Policy s determined by the Committee Far ense of reference, thus gart of the report hughlights where the policy difées from the policy approved by shareholders of the 2014 AGHM

FUTURE POLICY TABLE
The toble below descbes ench of the elements of the remunesation packoge for the Executive Direciors
ELEMENT OF PURPOSE / LIRX TO OPERATION MAXIMUM PERFORMANCE MEASURES CHANGES
REAUNERATION | STRATEGY T0 POLKY
APPROVED AT
THE 2014 AGR
BASE SALARY Fornd slement of the somuneeton | Bosa seloies mo normally reviewed ervuclly end have not been mcieased | Although seknes for Exooutive Dusciors (othes thn ks Hol applcable. Ho changes.
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wllacts e Compeny wesrresston compormes. o o sokn e i complety w B {ompory
philsophy of gearng eword i Hio Pearson s salory will be termwed duceg FYN6 1o ks
peckournerca wih o shopg of mk. sccoumt of b ko a5 o0 actng Boosd marcbes or f b
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s descrbod on poges 47 1o 46,
BENEFITS Not appicoble. kr querent Erncutwe | [he oot Exscutive D ion der oot secerve ey sddidonal benefs, . Cocterutten bers ook sef an abuoliie | Mot applcable. o ditnges.
Omackors. Thess & nxenty m Kiesfion i hange e whaikt the Fracstve Stoe | mazrum vl of benedits Trcutve: Diackons oy secews:
Schema ond 2015 Stare Schema remaz m place. the Conpeny 1etars duuebon o sel benelts o 0 kvel whach
tha Renxrwesion { eexmites considers spoopoin egrast the:
Benedtts oy ba provided 1 s wrth morke! procicy io w4 Dew
Tncutwe Dvocsor kg o o ourd il (e, Such ke ond e scgport the ongoeg stlegy of e Compony
benedits oy ichads iedodofion expenses
REFREMENT Prowde poshemphymoct beoebts s | The £ cscuive Derscioes ors seitied o partipote i o stkehoklar persin | The st e exploy contibution 1 the sickshokder | Hot oppicoete. Ho chenges.
BENEFITS oot ond seion edewdoods of e { schems on the same bass os ofher employees. pesskn schome 5 1%
e soqpmed b e bosmecs Thes ety e the dhicrton 15 821 setmesmen beselts
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s describad on poge 47
ANNUAL BONUS | Mot epplcable os Exocuive Draciors | The Coctenttes hos detatmined thet no enmual borars scheme wil be Ho enmal bors opportrndy for on Exacuive Disecion who | Mod eppliceble ol 10 o o3 Exacitive Ho changes.
do ot pork e i ¢n doranl opavated fon Exscutve Descion whils the 2015 Shors Scheme 6 m phca. | peeicapabes. in the 2015 Shoss Scheme fot so long as Phal [aciors do not parSupote in an gl
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descrbed oo poges 47 0 48 of the tpphabls metins
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Exocotive Share Schome-

The Execoiive Shose Scheme: was appoved by shorehokders af e Annuel
Gerenl Mactiy) n September 2610 The {omerstivs mery gpond fucthes
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Compeny's share copstel

Fou these porposes  Adisiad Lindering
[BITOA mears Underyng EEIDA oy
wepocted i the Company’s publishad
accoumts fou the ielevact peor sftee such
adyictmests o the (ocrxtie
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sporoved by shoebobder o kiy 2014 18
forthes sedeniad ko on page 46,

Exoative Shars Scheme:

ety wwind penied unde the Exacshes
Shois Scherne would ba subyeet bo skaichng
periogmenie toneh detrmeed by be
{oausstioe bsed on Adysed

EBIIDA, whuch would be dischosed i tha
Duecions Rerurersion Report kodowrg the
pond of ey such ewoad.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED

The toble below sets out on overview of the approoch to remunesotion for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
PURPOSE / LINK TO STRATEGY APPROACH OF THE COMPANY

Charman and NorExequive Birector fees The Commattes’s Remuneratn Poficy m respect of the Non-Executwe Dietiors 1 to poy annual fees
which reflect the responsibilities and dutes placed upon them, while ako havmg regasd fo market
Prowdz an appeopnate rewnrd to atact and retain Drrectors of the colibre requried for the business  { practie

NorExerutve Directors secewve a ficed onnual fee
NonExecuive Diredtors do ot paricpate m amy bonos of shote schemes

Mon-Executve Directors may be eligible for benefits such s the use of secretanal suppon, havel costs
of other benefits thet may be appropnate

INFORMATION SUPPORTING THE POLICY TABLE
Pror to the mtroduchon of the 2015 Share Scheme, awards were granted fo Executive Directors under the Executve Shore Scheme One award held by on Executve Director remauns
outstonding undes the Executive Shore Scheme as referred fo on page 51

Other than where the 2015 Share Scheme & act i place (for example, & one of the Adjusted Undedying EBITDA argets s not met s that owards under the 2015 Share Scheme lopse) or
whese an oword s fo be gronted in connechon with the recruitment of an Executrve Director os referred to an poge 47, no further awasds will be granted to Executve Directors of the Company
under the Executve Share Scheme dunng the pencd for which this policy opplies

The Commitiee may amend the terms of the Executve Share Scheme, the 2015 Share Scheme or any awards granted under them wathin the scope defined in the ules of thase schemes
(including n the event of o vananon of the Company’s share coprtol or o demerger or speciol dwidend which may, n the Commitiee’s opmion, offect the cument o future value of shares) ond
may elect fo seitle awards under thase schemes m cosh

EXPLANATION OF PERFORMANCE MEASURES CHOSEN

For the 2015 Share Scheme, underying Group EBITDA 15 chosen becouse it is @ megsure that provdes o simple and fransparent basis on which ta measure the Company’s pedformance
over the longer term and to prowide afignment with the Company’s business strategy tn oddinon, the Commttee considers o fo be o robust measurement of sustomed earntngs growth for
shareholders: This measurement hos been consistently and pubhicly used by the Compony os o performance measure since the floatahon n 2007

In respect of each relevant year, the Committes wilt adust reported underlyag Group EBITDA os 1t considers appropnate Undertying Group EBITDA 15 colculated prior to ony charges relong fo
any shave scheme(s) outstanding af the relevant hime

In eccordence with the reles of the 2015 Shore Scheme, performance conditions may be omended or substituted f events oceur (such 05 a change of strotegy, ¢ matenal acqusition or
divestment of o Group busmess or o change n prevaifing market condions including the non matenclisation of pianned acquisinons) which couse the Committee to consider that a substiruted
or amended pestormence condihon would be more gppropmate aad would not be matenally more or less difficult to sofsfy than the onginal perfermance condinon but for the event 1
queshion As noted n the FY15 prebminory results announcement, the Commuftes will continye to review the sobustaess of the Scheme on an annual bests, ard the targets may be odsted,
in occordonce with the Scheme rules and thes Pokicy, f events occur, o5 seferred fo above

EXPLANATION OF DIFFERENCES IN REMUNERATION POLICY FOR OTHER EMPLOYEES

The Company has a dorge number of employees with diffesent responsibiiies and diffenng levels of senionty Reward policies far employees other than Executive Direciors are determined
by reference fo giade, role, peformance and other relevant factors The Comimittee does net consult with the wider workforce about the ismunerahan policy for Diectors However, the
{ommttee hos reviewed the solanes, other remuneration ond other employment conditions of semor and middle managers throughout the Group, ond hus taken them into occount m
considenng Drectars” salones and ihe creanon of new ncentwve schemes in order fo crente a sense of common purpose and shanng of success Indeed, w order to reflect the Company's
“One Team™ ethos, ihe 2015 Share Scheme applies o both Executes ond employess determined by the Board os eligible who meet the qualfying conditons os detersined and agreed
by the Commuttee and the Boord on the some bosis (inludiag the pesformance condions)

ILLUSTRATIONS OF APPLICATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY

The chants below set out on Mlustrshon of she pohiey for 2015,/14 in ine with the future poliey rable above The charts prowide ar: dlustranion of the total remuneration opportunity that
could anse under three difecent levels of perfosmance Mo chart s ncluded far Mike Ashley, wha does nat receve any rememeration from the Campany and daes nat particigate o any
shore scheme

For the purposes of the adjocent chorf, the followng assumphons have been made

250 DAVE FORSEY
' FIXED PAY 2015 SHARE SCHEME
§ 2000 Mammum remurertion Base salery of £150,000 Ho vestmg
1,500 Performance in ine with expettoions ~ No employer pension contrbution Ko vesting, becousa rewards under the
1000 (as Dave Forsey hos opted out of Executive Shore Scheme vest on an
&8 the Company's stokeholder “all or nothing” basis for achieving the
E w 5 % pension schems) upper end of stietch targets,
0 Maxmoum remuneration No benefis (a5 no benefits were See note below*
Maumin Performonce in fine Mocerom provided 1o the current Executve
feomance  withexpactators  Perlormonte Durectors m FY15)

o Bose solory, benefirs € penson 9 2015 Shote Schema

“Fo the purpeses o e chort, 1 hos been msumed et Diwe fonsey & granind on awend over | odlon shotes, & sefasad B B e poliy tebls 00 poga 45 The vekue of e eword 5. then cotulted bosed oa » shore praa ol £7 37 (bemg the prca of dhe dosa of buseess on
i haly 2015 where tys eport vs apgeoved by the Cormanetine) e one quaste of the vake 1 then shown, mep g the pant d urvde e 2015 Shore Scheme, the vesing of whach wif be subeet io EBIEDA perfocmonce ioigets me=xed oves 6 perod
of foun o) yoess (Y16 FY17 FYES and FYI4H) Tha vestrg of on qwusd & coneitoon upon the achisvemert by the Compamy of ol o [E1TDA toxgets under the 7015 Shate Scheme




MATT PEARSON

For the purposes of the odjacent chon, the faflowing ossumphions have been mode

FIXED PAY 2015 SHARE SCHEME
% Minmum remuotesation Base solary of £40,000 No vesting
g Perforenance In fine with expectotions  An employer pension confrbution of Mo vashing, becousa rewords under the
2 1% of salary Executive Shore Scheme ves! on on
E “afl o nothwng”™ bass for ochseving the
2 uppét end of stratch torgets
Mexamuim remunesohion No benefits (os no benefits were Ses nole helow*
Haruen Perdormance n fre Mazrmun peovided 1o the current Exerutve
Peromnance  with expecictions  Perboimonce Birectors m 2014/2015)

0 Bosa solory benefits & pension 8 2015 Shase Sheme

knumwmhmmhumsumdmﬂﬁmmnhmdhmw lbdﬂiﬂu&nmhumwwmwmﬂmmmmh(mwhul}emufhwsm
wokuked based on o shure prce of £7 37 (bemg the pace of the (hosa of busness on 14 Jdy 2015 when the report was epproved by the { omattes) atd one. quaries of the volua 15 then shown, gran) one awosd under the 2015 Shaia Scheme, the
vesig of whach will be subpct 1o EBFIDA pesfomane togets measred over 6 pesod of four Brnonond yeans (Y14 H'I? M3 ed MNP lhmdnrdsmﬂwdmhuhmhh[mddhn[mmmmhNISSlmSthmn
s noled on pags 50 Hett Prarson s sabory end the kel of ewend crdes e 2015 Shore Scherme will be revmared by the { cotrties demy FY16.

APPROACH TO RECRUITMENT REMUNERATION

When ogreemg o remunesaion packoge for the oppaintment of o new Executive Durector, the Committee will apply the following prnciples

o gwen that the hugh gearing of reward for perfosmance over o fong penod and o low besic safary moy result in a ‘cosh flow” ssue for any naw Exeastve Directar, the infennion s fo
move the Owector appropnately ond i o hmely monnes onto on equet footng wath other Executive Directoss,

o the package will be sufficent fo aitoct the colitve of Director requised 1o defiver the Company's sirutegy,

o the Committea will seek to ensure that no more 15 pord than ts necessary, ond

o i the next Annua) Report on remuneration, the Commitiee wilf explain to shoseholders the rationale for the arrongements implemented

The Comaictee will ordemanly seek to mplement the remuneration package in accardance with the elements referred to n the pokey toble on pages 45 and 46 The Committee cetoins
discretion o make opproprate remunershion dectsians autside that policy imckuding the abiity o grant awards under the Executve Share Scheme to meet the indwidul arcumstances of
the recrunment, subjeck to the kimits ond porameters of s racruitment samunerahion sechion of the Direclors” Remunerahion Report

ELEMENT APPROACH

Base salory and | Afigned with the policy set out in the policy toble on page 45 if the sew Executive Birector porhaipates in the 2015 Share Scheme et the some level os exsting
benefirs Execurve Drecrors (other than Mike Ashley)

Refrement Aligned with the pobicy set out in the pohcy toble an page 45 # the new Execuve Director porhciposes i the 2015 Share Scheme Otherwise, up 1o 20% of salory

benefits pasd fo 2 penston omangement or pard os @ supplement to base salary in ey of o penston arsaagement unti ihe new Executive Director joins that scheme

2015 Share The Remunertion Committee’s wkention s for o newly oppeinted Execunve Director to porkeipate n the 2015 Share Sctheme with an award of up to 1 millien

Stheme shares {subject to such adustment as the Commuttee determunes to reflect any vangtton in the Company's share capital) ¢ ¢ wp to the maximum level referred to
in she pohcy teble, but reduced to reflect the new Executve Director’s shoriened penod of service)

Vongble in recogniion of the foct thot o newly appainted Exequtive Diector’s eworg under the 2015 Shaze Scheme would not vest uatd 2019, the Committes may aword

remonerghion | 0 newly eppointed Executive Disector an award over up fo 1 milfion shares (subject 16 such adustment as the Committee desermines to reflect eny chonge n the
Company's share copital) under the Executive Share Scheme or ¢ similar scheme, the vesting of which weuld be subject to the same perfamance condihions s
opply ta exshig awards under the Exacutive Shara Scheme or other stietching performance condihons derermingd by the Comimittee

[n addion, unht such time os the sewly apponted Executive Director participates i the 2015 Share Scheme, b or she may be owarded on onoual or longer term
incentive opportunity of up o 200% of salary per annum

Maxnmum The maximum level of vanable remuneration that may be owarded to o new Executive Director s

voroble
remunerohion. | @ @0 aword over up fo 1 mdlion shares (sublect to such adjustment as the Commuttee determmes to reflect ary change in the Compony’s share capitol) under the

2015 Share Scheme (but seduced fo reflect any vanable remunerahon awarded as referred to in {¢) below),

b en award over up to 1 midlion shores (subject to such odmstment os the Commttee determmes to reflect any change in the Compeny's shore capital) ynder the
Executive Share Scheme or a simior schems, and

¢ unfil such fime o fee or she participates i the 2015 Share Scheme, an annual or longer term incentve opportunity of up to 200% of salary per anoum

In each case, the value of any buy-out arcangements {descnbed below} does not count towards the moximum
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DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION REPORT

(ONTINUED

Compensaion | The Committee may make owards on hunng an extemal candidaie to buy-out the remuneranion arrengements farfened on leaving o previous employer 1n doing

for fodeired so, the Committee will have regord ta relevont fuctors mcluding ory performance condinons attached to such ormangements {and whesher such condinans wers

arongements | ochieved), the farm of thase arrangements (e g cash or shares) ond the timefrome of such omangements
While such owards are exchuded from the maximum level of vanoble remunetotion referred fo below, the Commimee’s mrennon s that the value ownrded would
ba no hugher thon the expected value of the foferted arrangements Buy-out awards will be subtect 1o forfeiture or clowback on early deperture, with 100% beng
subyeci to forferture f the Executeve deports wathin 12 months of jomeng, and a sfiding scale down to 50% f the deporture occurs within 12 and 24 months of
joining, ot the Committee’s dscrenon

Relocation casts | If necessary, the Compony wall pay opproprate refocation costs The Comemirtes will seek to ensure thot no mose 15 paid than 1s necessary

Any share awards referred o in #hrs sechon will be granted as for os possible under the Compony's exshing share schemes If necessary and subject, where relevant, fo the ks eferred
1o above, awards may be granted outside exssting share plons s permitted under the Listing Rules, which allow for the grant of awards 1o foalitate, n unusual crasmstances, the
recrtment of an Executive Director

Where o poseon s filled mtemally, any omgoing remuneration obligarons or outstanding vanable poy elements sholl be allawed to continue according to therr subsisting ferms

The remuneration pockoge for o newly appointed Non-Executive Director would normally be i line wath the policy set out in the future: policy table above for Non-Executive Directors

SERVICE CONTRACTS AND POLICY ON PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE

The Company’s policy s for Executive Directors to be employed on the ferms of senvice contracts which moy be termwnated by esther the Company or the Executive Director on the gewing of
not less than 12 months’ notice

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Detals of each current service contract are set aut belaw
CONTRACT DATE UNEXPIRED TERM / NOTICE PERIOD PROPER LAW
Mike Ashley 11/02/2007 12 months Englond & Wales
Dewve Forsey 11/02/2007 12 months England & Woles
Matt Pearson 14/06/2007 8 weeks Englond & Wales

The principles on which the determinatior of poyments for loss of office will be opprooched are summensed below

Poyment i heu of
nosie

The Company may terminate an Executive Director’s employment with immeadiate effect by making o payment i heu of notice conssshing of

* basic solary for the notice peniod,

o if the Executive Director porcpates m on onnual bonus scheme, o pro-ated amount reffecting completed manths of serce n the year of termination
gssuming on farget perfarmanie,

o esther the cost of providing other benefis {other than pension aad bonus) that the Executive Birector would hove baen entifled fo durng the nonce penod
or gn omount equal to 10% of base sofary {or olremosvely the Company may conhwe to provide benefits for the remander of the nonce panod thar would
have applied}

However, n occordonce with the current policy s set out i the policy toble on page 45, no eanual bonus scheme or henefifs are currently offered to Executive
Dyrectors

Annual banus

n accordonce with the current pokicy as set out i the policy table on page 45, no annual bonus scheme s offered to exrsiing Executwe Directors Were on
Execunive Diector to porticipote in an annuol bonus arrangement, whether to award o bonus  full or in port n the event of o terminanon of employment
would be at e dserenon of the Committeg n an indwidual bosts and dependent on ¢ number of factors, incuding the crcumstonces of the Executive Diector's
departure ond his contbution to the business dunng the bonus aeniod in queshon Typically banus amouats would e pro-rated for tme i service to sermination

2015 Share
Scheme ond
Exequtive Share
Scheme

If o porticipant in the 2015 Share Scheme or Executive Share Scheme ceases employment before the performance canditions attaching o on awaord under that
scheme are sansfied, the oword will lapse [§ the perticpont ceases employment ofer the peformance conditions are sakssfied bt before the veshng dotes os o
cesult of his deash or any other reoson determined ar the distranan of the Commuttee, the aword will vest; i the tose of o reason other then death, the extent
of vesting will be derermuned by the Committee af 1fs absolute distretion taksng into occount the time that hos elopsed between grons and cessaion

Other payments

The Remunerahion Committee reserves the nght to make gddinonal extt poyments where such payments are made i good faith in discharge of on exsting
tegal obhigation {or by way of dumoges for breach of such an obligaton) or by woy of seitlerment or compromise of ony daim orsing m connection with the
termination of o Director’s office or employmant In apgropnote arcumstonces, poyments may olso be made i respect of legol fees Were the Company

to make an award on recrustment of gn Executive Director fo buy ot remuneronion errangements forfeited ont leawing o previous employer then the leaver
provistans for that award would be determined ar the hme of gront




I the event of o change of control of the Company or other relevant carporate event, unvested owards under the 2015 Share Scheme and the Executive Share Scheme wall lopse unless
the perfarmonce conditions are satsfred and the evert accurs between saiisfoction of the condinons and the vesting date, m which ose the award shall vest In the case of the 2015
Share Scheme ihe extent of vesting sholl be detemmined by the Committee toking inte occount the penod of ime: that hes elopsed between the grant dote and the date of the relevont
event gad m the cose of the Executive Shore Schame the owards shall vest m full unless the Commiftee determines otherwise

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Hon-Execuzve Directars enter info an ogreement wath the Group for ¢ penod of thiee years, other than the Chaimon whose agreement continues untd terminated i accordonce with
trs tems The appomtmenis of the Non-Executve Directors moy be termmated by esther party on one menth's wiitten netice ond in occordonce with the Amdles of Associanon of the
Compony Termination would be immediate i centon aramstonces (induding the bankruptcy of the Non-Executve Direcror)

NonExecutive Directors do not and are ot enniled to participote n any bonus or shore scheme

Nonxecutrve Durectors ere subject to confidentiolity undertakings without fimitaion i ime: NonExecutrve Directors cre not entitled to recerve omy compensahion on the fermenation of
thes appointment

Detoits of the letters of appointment ore sef out below

POSITION DATE OF LETTER OF APPOINTMENT
Keh Hellowell NomExetutive Choman Febrary 2010
Samen Bentley NomExetutve Girector 15 July 2014
Dove Smyleton NorExecutive Director 15 July 2014
Clore Jenkins Nor-Executwe Daector 15 July 2014

PAYMENTS OUTSIDE THE POLICY IN THIS REPORT

The Commitiee eetuins discrenon fo moke ony remunerotion poyment or peyment fos loss of offica outside the pohicy m this report
« where the terms of the payment were ogreed before the policy come o effect,

» where the terms of the poyment were ogreed ot o ime when the relevant indwadual was nat a Director of the Compony oad, & the opimon of the Committee, the payment wos not i
considesgtion of the indidusl becomiag o Disector of the Company, or

* toseisfy contractual comantments mode unides legacy remuneration enangements

For these puiposes, “poyments” icludes the sonsfachion of awards of vonabls remuneration and, in refation 1o an award over shasss, the serms of the poyment ore “agreed” ot the hme
the aword s granted

STATEMENT OF CONSIDERATION OF SHAREHOLDER VIEWS

The Committee consults mojor shareheldess ond representative Groups where appropnote concernirg remunerotion matters

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
Thas pert of the Directors’ Remuneration Report sets aut the cciual payments made by the Company to s Directors with respect to the penod ended 26 Apsl 20%5 ond haw our Diregtars”
Remunesahion Policy well be apphied in the yeor commenang 27 Apnl 2015
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DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED

SINGLE FIGURE TABLE (AUDITED)

The oggregate resuneration provided te mdividuaks who have served os Directors in the penod ended 26 Aprel 2015 15 st our below, olong with the nggregate remunerotion prowded to
indnaduats who have served os Direrfors duning the pnot finanaat yeer

DIRECTOR SALARIES AND FEES OTHER BENEFITS BONUS LONG-TERM PENSION TOTAL
INCENTIVES

5 M4 15 FYi4 15 Y14 FY15 Fii4 5 4 F115 FYl4
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 000 S000

EXECUTIVE

Mike Ashley

Dava Forsey 150 150 6,6100 6760 150
NON-EXECUTIVE

Kesth Hellowell 155 155 - 155 155
Smmon Bentley 50 50 50 50
Dave Smglefon 50 50 50 50
E(:')hmies Mclreewy 223 50 23 50
Clarre Jenkins 50 50 50 50

(V) Regpwesety the weltm o ot awond over 1000 000 sheees undes the Exacuve Shos Schesns dua 1o vest 1 2017 subyect 1o coninued smployment. Fon these purpeses, the voie of a shose 5 £6.41 beang the avesage share pr:e over the quonies hom 26 Jenvory 2015 e 24
Aol 2015
{2} Charles MeCreewy sesigeed fiom the Bomd on 10 September 2014

NOTES TO THE SINGLE FIGURE TABLE AND IMPLEMENTATION OF POLICY IN THE YEAR ENDING 24 APRIL 2016
BASE SALARY AND fEES

Base solanes are narmolly reviewed onnually In the review in FY15 the Committee deaded not to olter Executive Drectors” solones The Commitiee has deuded not to mcrease Dove
Forsay’s sofory in FY16, which hos been of the some level since 2002, and which 1s set ot o lavel well below the lower quartle for o business of the size and complexity of the Group
Mike Ashley does niof recaive a salary for his role Matt Peorson's current solory for FY16 15 £60,000 In FY186, the Committee will review Matt Pearson’s salary and consider whether any
Increase should be implemented o reftect his role as on acting Board member or if his appointment ts made permanen;

Fees for Non-Execuive Directors are nomally reviewed arnually In the review in FY15 fees were nol inreased Fees for NonExecutive Dicectors will not be ncreased for FY14

ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME
The Committee has determined that no annual banus scheme wil be operoted for Execunive Directors while the 2015 Share Scheme s i place

EXECUTIVE SHARE SCHEME
No owords were gronted under the Execuive Shore Scheme n FY35 The lost awasds which were recewved, which vested in 2013, reloted so the complation of & performence condition
bosed on EBITDAIn FY11

Following the approval of the 2015 Shore Scheme wn July 2014, the Commiriee proposes to grant Dave Forsey an oward under the scheme m FY14 over 1 millon shores The Commirtes
proposes fo grani Matt Pearsen an award under the Scheme v FY 16 over 30,000 shares, but may increqse the quantum of the award eiher to reflect Matt Pearson's role os an aching
Boord member or f fus appomtment 15 made permonent (subject to the hmit n the palicy fable set out on page 45) The number of shores under any oward may be odusted as the
Committee determines to reflect any vongtion in the Company’s shara copital

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
Mo poyments hove been made to past Directers donng the penod ended 26 Ape! 2015

PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
No poyments were made for foss of office dunng the penod ended 24 Apal 2015

SHAREHOLDING GUIDELINES AND TOTAL SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS

The Board bebeves it s mportont shet Executive Directors have  stgarficant holding in the capital of the Comparyy [n Y14 the Commuttee renssessed the shoreholding guidehnes for
Executve Directors ond determined shar the Executive Directors must hold o memimum sharsholding of 50,000 shares while employed by the Company

Dove Forsey's benefical shareholding ot 26 Apiil 2015 was 50,000 shares ond, based on a share price of €6 13 (being the pnce of the close of business on 24 Apal 2015, the last
troding day before Sunday 26 Apnt 2015} the velue of that holring was £306,500, which s m excess of two yeors” salary




As on ncting Boord member, Matt Pearson s not curtently requied to sotify the shoreholding quideline: [n the event hus apportment becomes permonent, Matt Pearson would be
expected to acquire the mmmum number of shores over o reasonable #ime penod derermned by the Committee

The benefioml iserests of the Dueciors m office on 26 Apnl 2015 and of ther famufies i both cases of the beginmng of the fnancial year, or at the dote of appomiment ff loter, and at
the end of the financial yaar i the share coprtal of the Company ore shown below

Ordirary Shares 27 April 2014 Ordinary Shares 26 April 2015

Mike Ashley 345,400,000 330,000,000
Simon Bentley 19,000 10,000

Dove Forsey 50,000 50,000

Ketth Hellowell? 50,000 50,000

Clawe Jenkins 19,500 1,175
Chorles McCreawy'? 1,500

Dove Singleton'® 52,000 52,000

Mot Pearsont”

{1} These showes we hebl & the e of Keath Helowall o well s b valo.

{7} Chesks siood down s » etubes of e Boawd on 10 Septombes 2014 Ks » restil of bes esapcion, b Gecup bos o vty of e s shshokdag:
(3} Thess shores arn hedd m the nome of Dve Sigieton, o wall s bes wife.

(4) The shateholding of ecing Booed members. wll b nssaxsed m accodanre with the Haocp mearem level upon thes siis on the Boaed beng made permenent,

There hove been no chonges m the Directors” holdings 0 the share capitel of the Compony, as set out m the table cbove, between 26 Apil 2015 and 16 July 2015

DIRECTOR SCHEME GRANT DATE NUMBER OF SHARES STATUS
Dave Forsey Executve Shore Scheme 22 hugust 2011 1,000,000 Unvested

The aword wos granted subject to the saisfachan of the following EBITDA rargers {of which oll have been met)

o Underying EBITDA of €215m m FY12 ACHIEVED
 Hnderyng EBITDA of £250m mFY13 ACHIEVED
o |Inderying EBITDA of £260m m FY14  ACHIEVED
o Underlying EBITDA of €300m n FY15 ACHIEVED

As the above torgets hova now been met the award will vestin 2017

PERFORMANCE GRAPH AND TABLE
The ollowng groph shows the Campony’s performance megsured by the Total Shareholder Retum compored with the performence of the FISE 100 ond FTSE 250 index
{exchuding svestment trusts)

—— FTSE 250 o2 iwestment T e [ISE100 e Spors Drect
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED

The Comemittez considered this an appropnate index against which to compare the Compony’s performance as it s widely occepted os o notional measure ond icludes the companies that
mnvestors are ikely to consider olterngtve investmenis

The toble below shows detols of the total remunerotion end performancevelated pay for Dave Forsey over the last six finanoiol years

TOTAL REMUNERATION EXECUTIVE SHARE SCHEME AS A % OF MAXIMUM OPPORTUNITY
s £6,760,000 100%
A4 £150,000 N/
M3 £150,000 N/A
B £150,000 N/A
i $5,620,000™ 100%
10 £150,000 N/A

{1) Ropeersents the value of an gwoed ovar 1 000 000 chares under the Exscutive Shars Scherme doe ko vest in 2017 subgect ko saisboctory performanca and conbinued axmployment. Fou thess purposes the wake of o shoe s £4.61 being the evesage share goce oved the quortes
faaem 26 Jemmry 2015 10 24 Aped 2015

{7} Fexr these putposes, e totol sermmesction i FY1 1 b the welue of an gwand over § 000,000 shesers that vested on 15 kst 2013 subget o e sitslocsion of o perkoctoooes toeckton besed oo EBTDA m FYDE For hesa pucposes, he vk of 0 show o £6.47
bexg the cheng pce of o <hose on fhat date.

CEOQ PAY INCREASE IN RELATION TO ALL EMPLOYEES

The table below sets out in relafion to solary, taxable benefits ond anaual bonus the percentage mcrease m pay for Dove Forsey compared fo the average merease between the same
penods for the Group’s UK Head Office employees, which the Commuttee beheves i the most appropnate comparator gioup The percentages shown relate to the amounts for FY15 o
compored to the armounts for the FY14

ELEMENT OF REMUNERATION DAVE FORSEY / % CHANGE UK HEAD OFFICE EMPLOYEE AVERAGE / % CHANGE
Solary 0% 03%

Toxable benefits 0% {no taxable benefifs were provided 1o Dave Forsey m either year) {3 6%)

Anmoal benus 0% {no annual bonus arrongement was opernted for Dave Forsey m erther yeo:) 4 2%)

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY
The toble below sets out the Group's distnbuhons to shareholders by woy of dadends ond share buybacks, total Group-wide expendsture on pay For olf staff, os reported m the eudired
Fingncial Stotements for FY15 ond FY14, and the Company’s share price, colelated os at the dose of business on the fast doy of F¥15 and FY14

FY15 Y14 PERCENTAGE CHANGE
Distiibutions to shoreholders by woy of dvidend and share buyback 50 £0 0%
{vesiment* €126,661,000 £323,475,000 (80 B)%
Groupwide expenditure on pay for oll employees £373 545,000 £307,948,000" 51%
Share piice {pence) 4130 779 g (21 %

“Compirses of mceacsas 1n woikng copal oxquisttions and coprial expndura in the yean as the Boaid belwes Thess 1o ba the mas? ekevont mecseres o the Group s investment i huture rovwth.
** Thes ncioosa i refecve of the Group s acquesmons and 183l expersion & [uspe.
***For these purpases. the shoes price for EYNS and Bhe thets pece for FY1 4 a1 colasates o5 the those: of business on 24 Apek 2015 und 25 Apel 2014 uspeciely besng the kst woskang doys piot ta tha yeer ends

CONSIDERATION BY THE DIRECTORS OF MATTERS RELATING TO DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
MEMBERSHIP
The Committes consists of Simon Bentley, Dove Smgleton and Cloire Jenkns, who ore independent Non-Executive Directors, ond Keith Heltowall, who 1s the Non-Executve Choiman

The role aad mam responsibiies of the Comsmittes are defaled 1n the Corporate Govesnaace Report on page 42
Artendance ot the meengs held dunng the year s detalled on page 39

The members of the Commuttee have no personal financial interest, other than s shareholders, in the matters to be decded, no actual or potental canfliers of nterest ansing from other
directorships gad no day-to-doy eperotional respansibiliry within the Company

ADVISERS TO THE COMMITTEE
Dove Forsey, the Chief Executive, Matt Pearson, the Acting Chef Financwl Officer, ond Mike Ashley, the Execurtve Deputy Chairmon, hove advsed or matenolly assested the Committee
when requested Executive Directors are not present, nor do they toke part in dscussions in respect of matters relating directly to the own remuneration

SHAREHOLDER VOQTING
The follownng tabite sets out actual veting in respect of the resolution to opprove the Directors” Remuneroton Report for the year ended 27 Apal 2014 and in respect of the resoluhon o
approve the Drectors” Remumeration Palicy

VOTES FOR % FOR VOTES AGAINST % AGAINST  TOTAL VOTES CAST  VOTES WITHHELD

Directors’ Reruneration Report for the vear ended 27 April 2014 514,947,257 97 % 11,127,626 21% 528,074,883 1,005,636

Dnectors’ Remumeration Poliey 452,862,975 87 5% 64,479,250 12 5% 517,342,225 11,738,294

Dave Singleton
Charmen of the Remunerahon Committes

16 July 2015




DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY AND RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors ore responsible for prepanng the Annuel Report, the Remuneration Repart and the Company and Group Financil Statemenss m accoronce with oppheable low
ond regulations

Comgony low requires the Dectors to prepare Finoncial Statements for each finanoe! yeor Under that law the Direciors are required 1o prepare the Group Fmanaol Statements m
accordance with Intemational Financia! Reporting Standards (IFRSs) es odapted by the Eurapeon Union

The Directors have elected to prepare the Compony Finonca! Stoiements m nccordance with Unied Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (UX GAAP)

Under company low the Directors must not approve the Financil Statements unless they ore satsfied thot they gve a true ond four wew of the state of affaws ond profit o loss of the
Company gnd Greup for that penod In prepanng the Finonoal Statements the Directors ore tequired to

« select sintahle accounting pobiaes and then apply them consistently,

* moke pdgements ond estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

o for the Group Finonciol Stotements, stote whether the applicable IFRSs have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclased and explomed i the Finoncio! Statements,
« for the Company Fingnunl Statements, state whether the applicable UK Accounting Standords have been Fallowed, subject to ony matenl departures disdosed and explained in the

Financial Statements, and
* piepare the Finonool Statements on the going concern bosis unless it s nappropnale o presume thot the Company and Group will contmug i business

The Durectors ate responsible for keeping odequate nccounting recards that are sufficeent to show and explamn the Company’s transactions and dsclose with reosonable accuraey of ony
tieme the financial posttion of the Comparey and enble them to ensure thet the Finenael Statements, and the Remuneration Report, comply with the Compames Act 2006 ond Armcle 4
of the 1S Regulation They are also responsible for safeguording the assets of the Compamy and hence for toking reasenable steps for the prevention ond detection of froud and

other imegulanties

The Directors confirm that

« 50 fgr os ench Director 1s owors, there & no refevant oudit infarmatren of which the Company’s ouditors are unaware, ond
o the Directors have taken allsteps thot they ought to hove taken to moke themselves oware of any refevent oudit wformanion and to establish that the ouditors are oware of
thot nfermation

The Drractors are responsible fos the maintenoace and itegrity of the comorate and fimangsol information included on the Company’s website Legisianon i the United Kingdom governing
the preparanon end dsseminanan of Financial Stotemensts may dfer fram legistotion in other junsdicons

To the best of our knowledge

{a} the Anaal Report, including the siraegic ieport, prepared in accordance with the opplicable set of accounting standards, gives o true and Fair view of the ossets, habilies, financial
posthon and profit of the Company and of the undertakings included i the censolidation token os & whale,

and
{b) the manogement report mcludes o for rewew of the developmen and performance of the business and the posimon of the Campony ond the undertakings ncuded i the consoldation
token os & whole, together with o descipfion of the pancpal nsks and uncertainfies that they face

On behaif of the Board

Dave Forsey
Chiet Executve

16 July 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

T0 MEMBERS OF SPORYS DIRECT INYERNATIONAL PLC

OUR OPINION ON THE GROUP FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS IS UNMODIFIED

In our opweuon the group Finanauol Statements

o gwve o tue ond fair iew of the state of the Group’s offarrs os ot 26 Apnl 2015 gad of
the Group's profit for the 52 week penod then ended,

= have been properly prepaed i occordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Stondards (IFRSs) os adopted by the European Union,

+ have been prepored 1n accordance with the requirements of the Componies Act 2006
and Article 4 of the IAS Regulahon

OTHER MATTER

We hove reported separoiely on the Fnancial Statemenss of Sports Duect Infemanonal
PLC for the penod and on the information in the Directors” Rermuneraton Repart that s
descrbed os hoving been oudited

WHO WE ARE REPORTING TO

This report &s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, m accardance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Gur audir work hos been undertaken
50 that we might stofe to the company’s members those matters we are required 1o srote
to them i on ouditor’s epont and for no other purpose To the fullest extent pesmutted by
low, we do not accept or assume responsibility fo anyone other than the company and the
compony’s members os o body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we
hove formed

WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED

Sports Direct Internohonal PLC's Fmanaal Statements compnse the consolidoted income
stotemant, the consolidoted statement of comprehensive income, the consohidated balonce
sheet, the consolidoted cash flow statemens, the consohidated statament of changes m
equity end the reloted nores

The firanaual reporting framewerk that has heen applied in ther preperation 15 appheshle
low and IFRSs s adopied by the Furapecn Union

OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISK

Inarmving 6t our opinions sef out in this report, we highbght the followng nsks that are, m
our udgement, kkely to be most importont e users” understonding of our qudt

RISK OF FRAUD IN REVENUE RECOGNITION

The risk. The revenue recorded by the Gioup 15 ane of the key determmants of Group
underdying eamings before interest, fuxation, deprecation and amartsation (EBITDAY and
 recognised 1 gecordonce with the Group's aecounning policy and Infemanonal Accounting
Standord (IA5) 18 Revenue The mojonsy of group revenue s secorded through Electronic
Paini of Sale (EPOS) transochons, which s o key canirol used by the Group & to ensure
oll revenue 15 recorded Because of she pressures ond icenfives manogement moy feel

o achieve planned rergats and becouse of inherent nsk i the recording of cash soles

we hove identified fraud i revenue recognition os @ signiicent oudit sk requenng special
oudit cansiderntion

Qur respense Our oudit work wchuded, bt wos not restncted 7o, testing manual joumoi
entnes posted to sevenue for mdicahon of froudulent taasachons, o controls test over the
completeness and accuracy of the EPOS daro from tilks shrough ta head office, testng o
sample of sales tronsactiars o supporting documentotion and re-performing on miemet
stles receipts reconciliation in total to cash recerved We akso nnalyteally reviewed soles
trends ot an indwidual siore level and by product type to densfy vanorces fo expedanons
that would require further substantive testing

The Group's necounting policy with respect fo revenue recognihon s inchuded in note 1 and
segmental analysis of soles 15 prowded i note 4

VALUATION OF CONTRACTS FOR DIFFERENCE

The nsk  The Group has entered into deavative agreements referencing shares i publicy
listed componies The veluation of these contracts in the Finanaiol Stotements requires
eshmation by management These contracts have been wdenidied os o nsk due to

thew significont monetary value ond becouse they ore transachons outside the normol
operstions of the Group

Qur response Our aud work mchuded, bur was not restncled to, examining the terms of
the contracts and agreeing the bolances to confirmations from the counder pany to ossess
the accounting fregtment odapted, the basws of valuaton and the disclosures made We
ako engoged our own veluation specialsts to ossess the oppropnateness of the valuations,
which ore based on both abservable nputs and estimates ond assumptions applied by
management

The Group’s atcounting policy for denvanve contracts ts ichuded in note 1 and disclosres
relnting to the contracts is found in note 27

The Audit Committee identfied vehuotion of contracts for difference os on areq of
significonce 1n ifs report on poge 41, where the Audit Committes ako descnbes how i
addressed this oren

CARRYING VALUE OF INVENTORIES

The nsk The camying value of inventones is stated net of provsions for obsolete or slow
mowing inventary We have identrhed this nsk becouse dgement is opphed by monage:
ment in ossessing the omount of prowssion sequred 1o secord ivenory ot the lower of cost
end nef realisable volue and because of the complexty of the prowsion colculahon

Qur response Our audit work included, bur was net restncted 1o, tesimg the models
used for mathemohical occuracy, considenng the oppropnateness and consitency of the
underlying assumptions within the model and testing the seling pree of nventory sold
post penod end

The Group's accounting pelicy on inventeries and defafls of the pdgements applied by the
Directers in estoblishing ihie provision & included i note 1

The Audit Committee wdentfied corrying volue of inventory os an area of significance in its
report an pogs 41, where the Committes aiso descrihes how 1t addressed thss areo

INTANGIBLES IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

The sk As more fully explaineg n note 15 the Diractors are required to make cn onnual
assessment fo determine whether the value of goodwill of £156m, mademarks and
licences of €19m and brands of £80m 15 impowed We hove identified this nsk because
the process for measunng and secogmising impament under 1AS 34 15 complex and
requires judgement ond because we idenhfied potential indicators of impaiment during
aur rsk assessment procedures

Qur response Our oudit work 1acluded, bur wos not restricted to, evalusang ond sensifsing
the assumptions used by the Directors, in particulor those key ossumptions refating fo the
cash flow projections used by managemen for ther assessmens, mcuding the discount
rates, perpeity growth rates ond forecost gross margs We also revewed the odequacy
of the disclosures on the sensitmiry of key assumphions used in the assessment

The Group’s accounhing policy an impourment and detauls of the judgements and eshimates
made by the Directors ore included n note 1

The Audit Commurtee dentfied itangbles impaiment ossessment os an aren of
sigraficanice m s report on page 41, where the Commirtee also descabes how i
addressed this greo




OQUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY AND AN OVERVIEW
OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

MATERIALITY

We define motenality os the mognihade of msstatement i the Financeol Statements tat
mickes @ proboble thar the economic deasions of o reosonably krowledgeable person
woald be changed or influenced We determinad motenalty for the oudit of the group Fr
nanciof Statements as o whole to be £13 3m which s 3 5% of undertying earmings before
intesest, taxohon, depreciahon and omoritsaion (EBADA} The beschmork is considered
the most apprapnote because, the & the metnt egomst which the finonaol performance
of the Group 15 measured both ntemally and extemally We use o different level of
matenality, performonce motenality, to drve the extent of our teshing and this wos set of
75% of hnanciol storement matenality for the nudit of the group Financial Stotemants
We ako determine a lower level of speciic motenality for cestom areos such os directors”
remuneration and related party ransachons

We determined the threshold of which we communicated misstetements to the audit
committe to be £665,000 In oddition we will communicate musstatements below thal
threshold that, i our view, wamant reporting on quahtahve grounds

OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

We conducted owr audit an accordamce wath Intematonat Stondards on Audiing (UK and
Ireland) Our responsibilines under those standards are further descnbed i the ‘Responst
belities for the Financiol Statements and the audit’ sechion of our report We befieve tha
the audt ewdence we have abtaned s suffiaent ond oppropnate o prowide o boss for
ur opmion

We are ndependent of the group in occordance with the Audinng Practices Board's Ethucol
Standards fo Auditors, and we have fulfilled our other ethicol responsitulites in occordance
with those Ettucal Standards

We evolunted the descriphon, design ond operating effectveness of controls over key
finanaol systems identfied os part of our nsk assessment This induded o review of the
genesel IT contrals, the occounts production process and the controls oddressing cancal
accounting motters identified n our sk assessmen: We undentook o combmonien of
contrals and substontive sesting on sigascant transactions, bolances and disclosures,
the axtear of which wos hosed on vanous foctors ncluding our overafl assessment of
the control emaronment, the effectveness of contioks over indmdus! systems and the
mancgement of specific nsks

As set out on page 67 the Group has three eperofing segments, Sports Retal, Premium
Ufestyle and Brands The Group Finongial Stotements are o consolidanion of the reporting
umifs comprising the operoting businesses within these segments

Inn estoblshing the overall approach fo the Group auds, we determined the type of work
that needed to be perfarmed by us, os the Group engogemens feam, a1 compenent
ouditars operating under our instruchion

Where the work wos pedormed by component ouditors, we determined the level of
involvement we needed to hove in thew oudit work ot those reporting unis fo be able
to conchide whether suffiaent appropnate audit endence had been obtained os a besis
for our oprmeon on the Group Finoneral Statements os o whole We set motenolity for the
overseos component audits os 75% of the motenaity for the group Finanael Stutements

The reporttng units vary significantly i size and we dentified 5 reporting unifs that, i our
view, requred o full scope audit of therr finoncia! information for group reporting purposes,
due to their size os sk charoctershies In addiban o further 27 reporting unifs are eudited
to full scope for statutory reporfing purposes, prowding in total 87% coverage of the
Group’s revenues and 84% of the Group underying EBITDA,

Specfic ougit grocedures were pesformed ar o further 7 reporting unsts due to ther size
proviéing o further 8% coveroge of the Group’s revenues ond 12% of the Group underlying
EBITOA, wath the remaiming reporfing units subject to onalyhcol procedures

The tables below demonstmte the coverge of our oudt procegures

REVENUE

<

UNDERLYING EBITDA

&

M Ful Scope B Specific procedures W knakyhicol review

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY REGULATIONS

Qur opmion on other matters prescribed by the Componies Act 2006 15 unmodified

In our openion

« ihe informaton gwen i the Strategic Report and Dicectors” Report for the finoncil
venod for which the Financal Statements are prepared 1s consistent wit the Financial
Statements, ond

e the informanon grven n the Corporate Governonce Report sef out an pages 37 to 43
with respect to internal control and nsk management systems i relahion to financiol
reporhng processes and obout shore capitol structures & conssstent with the Fionce!
Stotements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY
EXCEPTION

WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT IN RESPECT OF THE FOLLOWING.
Under ihe 1SAs (UK and Irelend), wa are required o report 20 you if, in our opimion,
infoanehon m the Anucl Report &

 matenally meonssstent with the information in the oudited Fraonail Statements, or

« nppasently matenally ncorsect based on, or motenally mconsistent wirh, our knowledge
of the group ocquired in the course of performng our audis; or

» gtherwise mslending
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
TO MEMBERS OF SPORTS DIRECT INTERNATIONAL PLC

IN PARTICULAR, WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT 10 YOU I%:

o we have dennfied any nconsistencies between our knowledge acquired duang the oudi and the dweciors” stotement thot they consider the Annwal Report 15 for, bolenced and
understandable, or

o the Annual Repon does not appropnately dsdose ihose matters that were communicated to the oudit committee which we consider should have been dsclosed

UNDER THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT TO YOU IF, IN OUR OPINION:
* certoin disclosures of directors’ remeneration speafied by law are nat mode, or

 we have not recerved all the information and explanahions we require for our oudt, or

+ o Comorate Governance Repert has not been prepared by the Company

UNDER THE LISTING RULES, WE ARE REQUIRED TO REVIEW:
* the Durectors” starement, set out on poge 36, m relation fo going concern, ond
« the pan of the Corporate Govemance Report relahng fo the company’s comphance with the ten provisions of the UK Comorate Govemance Code specihied for our review

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT
WHAT AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INVOLVES,
A descnption of the scope of an cudit of Financial Statements & prowided on the Fmonaol Reporting Counal’s wabstte: ot www fic org uk /auditscopeukprvate

WHAT THE DIRECTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR:
As explamed more fulfy m the Directors” Responsbiliies Statement e out an page 53, the Directors ore sesponsible for the preparonon of the Financial Statements and for being sahsfied
that they give o true and for view

WHAT WE ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR:
Qur resporsibility 1 to qudit and express an apinn on the Fingnool Stotements i accordance with applicable law and Intemanional Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us 1o comply with the Auditng Practices Baard's Ettucol Standards for Auditors

Philip Westerman

Senior Statutory Auditar

For and oa behalf of Grant Thomton UK LLP
Stotutory Auditor, Chastered Accountants
London

16 Juty 2015




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015
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57 woeeks ended
26 Apel 2015 7 hgud 2004
(3 (£/000) {2000
Revenve 14 2,832 560 2,705,958
Cost of soles (1,591,748) (1,551,036}
Gross profit 1,240,812 1,154,922
Selling, distribution ond odminsstistve expenses (950,526) {908,843}
Other operting intome 5 8,345 8,583
Exceptional items b (3,050} {5531
Operating profit 47 295,581 749,131
Othes imvestmen! mtoms ] 14104 1017
Finonce income 10 8,289 891
Fenonce costs 11 (7,487 19,853)
Share of profit of ossouated underiokings 16 2,959 2,266
Profit before taxation 313,446 239,452
Taxahon 12 {72,093) (59.839)
Profit for the period 4 741,353 179.613
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
Equity hokders of the Group 240,397 180,245
Nowcontiolling mberests 956 (632)
Profit for the petiod 4 241,353 179,613

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 7O THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

Pecxce por share Pecca per share

Basx earnings pes share 13 406 308
Diluted earmings per shre 13 390 917
Underlying bask earnings per share 13 389 321

The consolidozed icame staternent has been prepared on the basts thet all operations ore conhiauing

The occompanying occounting polices ond netes fomm part of these fmoncnl Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

52 weeks mded
26 Apifl 2015 27 b 2014

Mok {£°000) {E°000)
Profit for the perod 4 241,353 179,613
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME |
ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED SUBSEQUENTLY TO PROFIT OR LOSS i
Actuanal (losses) / gains on defined beneh pension schemes 24 (7.493) 3,860
Toxtéion on items recognesed n other comprehensive mome 514 {698)
ITEMS THAT WILL BE RECLASSIFIED SUBSEQUENTLY TQ PROFIT OR LOSS
Exchange differences on tronslafion of foregn epesations 9,156 (33,118
Exchange differences on hedged contrds recognised m the penod 7 71,18} {3,737)
Exchonge differences on hedged contincts retlossdied and reported m net profit 27 7.240 (17,909)
Fon vahse odjustment i respect of avadoblador sale financiol assets 17 21,893 57,373
Toxation on terns recognised i olher compiehenswe ncome (17,728) (4,170)
Other comprehensive tncome for the period, net of tax 95,773 1,601
Total comprehensive Income for the period 337126 181,214
AITRIBUTABLE TO
Equity holders of the Group 335170 181,846 !
Now<ontrolling merest 956 (632) 1

337,126 181,214

The accompanying accounting polices ond notes form part of thesa Fmanoo Stofements,




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AT 26 APRIL 2015
26 Aprd 2015 77t 2014
Hole {E'000} (£ 000}
ASSETS - NON-CURRENT
Property, phont and equipment 14 422,742 412,361
Intangible assets 15 255,364 255,109
Investments i ossotnted underiakmgs 16 38,133 41,763
Avoslabledor sale finonaial assets 17 140,795 114,504
Deferred tax assets 25 38 352 31,130
895,386 856,867
ASSETS - CURRENT
Tmveniones 18 517,054 565,479
Trade and other recesvables 19 190,726 123,014
Denvairve finanoal assets 7 92,199 4,355
Cosh and cash equvalents 20 78,318 151,024
878,297 843,872
TOTAL ASSETS 1,773,683 1,700,739
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capral 2 64,060 54,060
Shars prerasm 874,300 874,300
Treosury shares reserve {56,234) (56,234)
Pesmanent contrbution fo copiol 50 50
Copal cedemphion reserve 8,005 8,005
Foreign currency hianslation rasetve 14,436 5,280
Reverse combmation reserve {987,312) {987,312
Own share reserve {13,251) {13,251)
Hedgng reserve 18,796 {5,625)
Relomed eornings 1,181,5M 931,819
1,164,361 821,092
Noncontrofing nterasts {2.810) {3,538)
Totel equity 1,161,551 B17.,554
LIABILITIES - NON-CURRENT
Bonowings 23 135,849 b 764
Refrement benetis obligations 24 14,669 15,350
Deferred tax labiities 25 40,088 24046
Piovisions 26 37,705 37,780
22951 83,940
LIABILITIES - CURRENT
Deivotve financol obilities 27 5629 18,665
Trode ond other poyables 28 340,936 392019
Borowings 23 1,204 356,226
Curent tox boblities 34,852 37335
382 621 799 245
Totel liabilitles 512,132 883,185
Totc! equity ond lichlities 1,773,683 1,700739

The accompanying oceountmg policies and notes form port of these Fmoncel Statements. The Fovancal Stotements wete opproved by the Board on 16 luly 2015 and were signed on s behaff by

Mati Pearson
Aeting Cheef Fnancial Offices

Company number- 06035106

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

6]

52 wasks ended
26 Apdll 2015 77 hed 2014
Note {£°000) (000)
Cash inflow from operuting oclivities il 314,662 222,785
In¢ome toxes pad (77,10) (55,730)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 234,952 167,055
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceads on disposal of property, plont and equipment 21,150
Proceeds on dsposal of lsted investments 51,695 49,394
Purchase of assoonte, net of cash acquned {50) {8,000)
Purchase of subsidianes, net of cash ocqured (3,847) (15,407
Purchose of miangible ossets 15 {2,937} (1,827
Purchase of property, plont and eguipment 14 (97.342) {67,304)
Purchase of fisted mvestments 17 {50,415 {55,467)
lavestment mcome recerved 2,883 1,604
Frnonce imcome recenved 287 891
Net cash ootflow from lnvesting activitles {71,876) {96,116)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finante (osts pad (6,845) {8,111)
Borrowings drawn down 126,989 300,910
Borowings repasd {346,997 {348,452)
Exercse of ophian over non-controlling mierests {11,678)
et cash outllow from {inandng activities (226,853) (67,431
Net (decrease) / increase in eash and cash equivalents including overdrafts (62,777) 3,508
Cash and cosh equivalents including overdrafts at beginning of period 145,282 141,674
Cash and cash equivalents ncluding overdrofts at the period end 20 71,505 145,282

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these Finoncal Statements




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

SPORTSDIRECTcow  EVERVTHING IS CHANGING...

Tetel attrbotable
Treasory  Forsign axvency Own share Retcined to owners of  Non-comtrolling
s transkation teserve sarnings  Other reserves parant interests Totd
{£000) {£"000) {£°000) (£'000) {E£°000) (£°000}) {E"000) (£/000)
At 28 April 2013 {56,234) 38,398 (64,375) 752,018 {24,876} 644,931 {254) 644,677
Vesting of sharebased payrment 51,124 (51,124)
Current tax on shore schemes 75,500 25,500 25,500
Deferred fox on shore schemes mns (11,215 {11,215
Noncontsolling mferests ocquisitions (10,513 {10,513
Exercsse of ophon over nom-contiolling inferest {19.970) 09,970} 7.861 (12,109
Transoctions with owners 51,124 (56,809 {5,685) (2,652} (8,337)
Profi for the linancl penod 180,245 180,245 (632) 17%.613
QOTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Cash flow hedges
1ecognised in the penod {3,737 (3,737 (3.737)
sechassified and reported m net profit (17,909 {17.909) (17,909
Actvarral goin on defmed benefit pension schemes 3,840 3,860 3,860
Fa vakse odjustment m respect of ovadoble-for-sole
finnncal assets 57,373 57,3713 57.373
Toxation (4,868) {4,868) (4,868)
Translation differences Group {32,498) {32,498) (32,498)
Translhon differences assouates {620} {620 (620)
Total comprehensive income for the period (33,118 236,610 (21,646) 181,846 (632} 181,214
At 27 April 2014 (56,234) 5,280 {13,251) 231,819 {46,522) 821,092 {3,538) 817,554
Credit 1o equity for shaie-based payment 5,833 5,833 5,833
Deferred tax on shote schemes 1,266 1,266 1,266
Non-controlfing inferesls acquisthions 384 364
Transactions with owners 1,099 7,099 384 7,483
Pyofit for the finarcial period 740,397 240,397 956 241,353
Onvidends recenved 812) (812)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Cash flow hedges
recognised m the penod 7718 77,181 17,181
retlassifed ond reported in nat profit 7,240 7,40 7,240
Actoonal bosses on defined bensht pension schemes (2493) (2,493) (2,493)
Fou value udstment in respect of availableforsale dnanciol
assels 21,893 21,893 21,893
Taxation {17,204) {17,204) {17,204)
Translotion diferences Group 13,783 13,783 13,783
Tronskaton diferences  assocntes (4,627) (4,627) {4,627)
Total comprehensive income for the period §15 742 593 84,421 336,370 344 336,514
At 26 Aoril 2015 (56,234) 14,436 (13,251) 1,181,511 37,899 1,154,361 {2,8100 1,141,581

61



ANNUAL REPORT 2015

SPORTSDIRECT.com

62

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated Financiol Stotements of Sports Durect intemational plc {the “Company™)
ond its subsideanes (rogether the “Group™) have been prepared i accordance with
mtemational financiel reporing standords os adopted by the europeon union (IFRS)

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consohdoted Financiaf Statements have been prepared i accordance with IFRS o5
odopted for use n the Euiopean Union {including tnternohonol Accounting Stendards
(“1AS*) and Intemational Fingnciol Reporting Standards Interpretations Committee
{"IFRSIC"} and with these parts of the Companes Act 2006 opphicoble fo companies
reporting undes [FRS as adopted for use i the European Union The consolidated Fnancial
Statements have heen prepared under the hrsroncak cast convention, os modihied to
inchude fow valuanon of certom fnanaal nssets and denvatve financal mstruments

The followang IFRS, IFRSIC interpretotions and amendments ore effective for the fist nme
i this fingncial yeor

IFRS 10 Consohdated Finonaal Starements ond IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests i Gther
Enties hove been odopted 1 the fnancal year The revssed stordards replace the porton
of 1AS 77 thor addresses the accounting for cansolidated Finanaal Statements The
adopteon of these standards hos resulted i no change to the Income Statement, Balance
Sheet or Statesnent of Comprehensive Incorme in the current finonaol penod

CONSOLIDATION

The consclidated Finoncial Stotements consokdate the revenues, costs, ossets, liabihines
and cash fiows of the Company ord its subsidiones, being those enthes that the Group 15
deemed to have control over It will be deemed 1o have control when it hos power over
the enfity, 1s exposed to or hos nghfs to vanable retums from the eanty ond hos the obility
to Use Its power over the entty 1o affect the emount of the entity’s retuns

On acquisttion, the assets and kabilines and conningent liobilines of a subisidry ere
menswied of thex forr values of the date of aequisiion Any excess of fewr value of the
consideration transferred over the faw values of the sdentfioble net ossess acqured s
recognised os goodwill Any defrciency of fair value of consideranion ransferred below

the foir volues of the identfable net assers acquired 1s credited to the consohdared income
stotement in the penod of acquismon The sanonmoling nterest s stated ot the
nor-controlling interest’s proportion of the fair volues of the assets, habihies and
canhingent linbilimes recognised Costs incurred relateng fo ocquisiions ore expensed to

the income statement

The results of subsidanes acquired or disposed of during the year are inluded in the
consohdated meome statement from the effecsive dote of acquisition or up to the effective
dote of disposal, as appropaate

Intercompany transachiens, balgnces and unrealised goms ond fosses on tronsactions
between group compantes ase eliminated

ASSOCIATES
Assouintes ore ennities over which the Group has sigmficant influence but not control,
generally accompanied by o share of between 20% ond 50% of the voting rights

The Group's share of the resulfs of associotes s included i the Group's consolidoted
income stgtement using the equity method of accounting lnvestments in essociotes

are corned in the Group’s consohdated bolance sheet ot cost plus post acquisinon changes
in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associates and joint venhes, less ony
impaiment in valve The cammying values of investments m assoaates indude

acquired goodwill

If the Group’s share of losses in an associate or equals or exceeds s mvestment it fhe
assoate, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it hos mcurred obligonons o
do so or made poyments on beholf of the essonate

Uneeglised goins ensing from fronsactions with associotes ore eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the entity

INVESTMENTS

Availablefor-sale investments are mimally recognsed of for value Where fair velue

s different 10 cost, this s recogmsed i the mcome storement on inmal recogniion
Subrsequent gans and losses ensing from changes in forr vahue ese recognssed in the
statement of other comprehensive mcome When the secunty 15 disposed of, devecognsed
or 15 detesruned to be impowed the cumulofve gain ot loss prewiously secognised i

other comprehesrve income  rechassified from equity to the mcome statement as o
reclnssificotion adjustment within ofher comprehensive income

ACQUISITIONS

For business combinahons acheeved in stages, the Group remeasures its previously held
equity interest n the acquree ot s ocqueshor-dote fair volue ond recognises the resulling
gam or loss, if any, i the income statement as appropnate

GOODWILL

Goodwill ansing on consolidaiign ts recognised os an asset end reviewed for mpairment gt
feast annually or when a thange in arcumstances or situation ndicates that the gooduwll
hos sutfered an imparment loss The need for imparment & tested by companing the
marke! velue of the costrgenerating umt (CGL) to the comyng volue Any impairment &
recognsed immediately i the mcome statement Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed Gans and losses on the dispose! of o business include the amount of goodwill
sefating fo that business

When the non-controfling interest of an existing subsidiary s acquied the camying vahue
of the non-controlling interests m the belance sheet i eiminated Any difference between
the omount by which the nonrcontroling interest i adyusted aad the foir volue of the
consideration paid 15 recognised dicectly in equity

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Brands, trode marks and ficences thot are intemally generated ore not recorded on the
balance sheet Acquired bronds, rade marks and licences are nolly carned on the
bolance sheet at cost The fair volue of brands, trade masks and hences thot are acquired
by wirtue of 0 business combinotion 15 determined at the date of acqussinon and 1s
subsequently assessed os beng the deemed cost fo the Group

Expenditure on ndvernsing ang promotional octmatzes Is recagnised os on expense
0 ingurred

Ho omartisotion 15 chorged on those brands, trade marks or perpetuai/renewchle icences
with on indefinite hie os the Group behieves that the value of these brands and rade
marks can be maintained ndefimtely The Groug camies out on imparment review of
indefinite Iife intongibles, of feast annually, oi when o change in crcumstances or situahion
indicates that those intangibles hove suffered an impoirment foss Impairment 1s maasured
by companng the carryng amount of the mtangible asset as part of the cash-ganesating
umt (CGU) with the recoverable omount of the C5Y, that s, the hgher of s fair value less
costs to sell ond irs volue nwse Value in use s colculoted by using o pre-iox discount rate
that reflects cument morket assessments of the fme value of money and the rsks specfic
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows hove not been adpusted

Amorhisation 1s provided on other brands, rode marks and licances with o definite ife

on a straight hne bosss over shewr useful economic hves of 5 to 15 years and is accounted
for within the selling, distibunion ond odministiative expenses cotegory within the
Income staterment

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plont and equipment ate stated of histoncal cost less depreciation less any
recognised impoument losses Cost includes expenditure that s diractly attnbuteble to the
acqustion or construchion of these tems Subsequent costs are mduded n the osser's
comying amount oaly when 1t is probable that future economic benefits assouated with the
itern will flow to the Group and the costs can be megsured reliably

Al other casts, mchuding repaus ond maimienance osts, are charged o the ncome
statement in the penod in which they ore ncurred




Depreciotion s provided on ol property, plast and equipment other than freehold fond and
is olculnted on o reduang balance boss or straghtine bosss, whichever s deemed by the
duectors o be more appropnate, to allocate cost less ossessed residual volue, ofher than
assefs 1n the course of construction, over the astimoted useful fives, os follows

Frechold buildings between 2% and 10% per onnum - stroight fine
Legsehold improvements  aver the rerms of the lease - stroight fine
Plont and equipment  between 5% and 33% per onaum  siraight ine

The assets” wseful lives and residual values are reviewed and, ff appropnate, odysted at
eath balonce sheet dote

The goun or loss arsing on disposal e scrapping of an osset s determunied as the difference
between the sales proceeds, net of selfing costs, and the corrymg omount of the osser and
s recogised in the income statement

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS OTHER THAN GOGDWILL AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS WITH AN INDEFINITE LIFE

At ench balance shest date, the Directars review the carying amounts of the Group’s
tongible ond mtangible assefs, other than goodwall and intongible assets wath an indefinte
Tite, to determune whether there & any indicotion thar those essets hove suffered an
amparment loss If any such indication exisis, the recoverahle amount of the asset 1s
estmated n order to determimng the extent of the wmparment loss, f any Where the asset
does nor genente cosh flows thet ore independent from other assefs, the Group eshmates
the recoveroble omount of the coshgenesaning umit, ((GU) to whech the asset belongs
With respect to preperty, plont and equipment, each store s considered fo be o CGU

ond where onerous leases ore noted the assets of each indwdual store: are ndrdually
assessed for impaiment

Recoverable omount s the hugher of foir value Jess tosts to sell and value m use I
assessing valse in use, the eshmoted future cash flows are discounted to thers present
value using & pre-ox discount fate that reflecrs current market ossessments of the hime
value of money and the nsks speafic to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adsted

IF the recovernble amount of on asses {or CGU) s eshmated to be less thon its cormping
amourd, the camying omount of the osset (CGU) s reduced to ris recovergble omount
Anwmpawrmen; loss  recognrsed s an expense immediotely, uless the relevoni asset
ts corned ot a sevalued amount, n which case the impairment logs is teeated os o
revalugtion decregse

Imparmeat losses recagnised for CGU's to which goodwill hos heen aflocated are credited
instally o the carrying amount of goodwall Any remaining impaument loss 1s chorged pro
tofa fo the other ossets 1n the (GY

Where an mpazment loss subsequently severses, the corrying ameunt of the osset (CGU)
ts incieased fo the revsed estimate of ifs recovesable omount, but so that the icreased
camyng omoun: does not exceed the corrying amauni that would have been deterauned
had na impewment loss been recagnised for the osset {(GU) m pnor peniods A reversat of
on impairment loss 1 recognsed in the sacome starement immediately

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue s measured of the foir value of the considerchon recerved, or recerveble, end
represents amounts recevable for goods supphed, stated et of discounts, refurns and
vabse odded faxes

In the case of goods sold through etail stores, revenue 15 recognesed of the pat of sale
of  product to the customes, less prowsign for returns Aceurnulated expertence s used
o eshmate and prowde for such retums at the time of the sale. Retoil soles are usually m
corsh, by dabut cord o by credit card

In the case of goods sold on the intemet revenue & secognised ot the pomi thot the msks
ond rewards of the inventory have possed 1o the customer, which s the pemt of defivery
to the cstomer Transachons are seftled by credit cord or pryment cord Provsions ore
made for interngt cradit notes bosed on the expected level of retums, which in um
based upon the hsstoncol rate of ratums

In the case of mcome generated from trade marks and ficences, revenug s recognssed on
on occruals basss m accordonce with the refevont agreements or on a transactional basis
when revenue s linked to sale or purchase volumes

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

The Group presents os exceptionol items on the foce of the income statement, those
significant rrems of ieome and expense which, because of thewr size, nature and
mftequency of the events gvng nse to them, ment seporate presentation fo ollow
shoreholders to understond better the elements of financeal performance i the year,

50 05 fo faalitate companson with prar penods end assess trends in hinanaal pedormance
mose readily

INTEREST INCOME
Infesest mcome 1 reported on an accrual basts using the effecve mnferest method

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The presentotional currency of the Group s stering The fanctional currency of the
Compasy s aksa stesting Forergn curcency transachons are translgted info stediing using
the exchange rates prevoifing on the dates of the ramsoctions Exchange differences of
the Company arsmg on the settlement of monefary ems, and an the retronsionion of
monetosy ens, are 1nduded n the ncome statement for the penod

Exchanga differences ansing on the rerronslotion of nom-menetory ems carmed of fou
volue are wchuded w the wcame statement for the penod except for differences ansing

on the retronsiohon of nor-monefary stems in respect of which gans and losses ore
recognssed in other comprehensive income For suck aor-monetary tems, any exchange
component of that goin or loss 1s akso recogised duectly 1 other comprehensive income
Monetary assers and lioifines denommated m foreign currencies are tronslated of the rate
of exchange ruling of the balonce sheet dote

On consolidanon, the assafs ond fiabilties of foreign eperations which have o funchonat
currency other than stering ore iranslated into sterhng of foreign exchange rates ruling

at the halonce sheet date The revenues ond expenses of these subsidrary undertakings
are translated of average rates applicable in the penod All resulting exchange differences
ure recogassed n ofher comprehensve income ond documented in o sepazate companent
of equity

When o foreign operation s sofd, the cumulative exchange differences ot haove been
recognssed os o seporate component of equity ore redassified from equity to the income
statement when disposal 15 recognised

I order to metigate its expasure 10 certain foreign exchange nsks, the Group enters into
forward confracts {see chief executive’s repart and the cosh flow hedging accounhag palicy
on poge 45

INVENTORIES

Inventeres are valued of lower of ost ond net realisable value Cost inchudes the
puichase prce of the manufectured products, matenels, direct labour, ransport costs and
a prapostion of applxable oveshends Cost is «afeulated using the weighied overage cost
method Net realsable velue s based on the eshmated selling price less alf esimoted
selling costs

The company recerves ade discounts end rebates fom supphers based upon the volume
of orders placed in o gven hme window and os o conmbuhon towards markenng costs
Where there s suthcent ceriointy that o dscount of rebate wil be receved n the future
thot refates to histosic puchases this s reflected in the cost of mvenfones

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Loons ond recewvables ore recognised inolly o1 fair valug plus transaction costs and
subsequently meosured at omorhsed cost under the effectve inferest methed less provsion
for wpowment Prowasron for impairment is established when there s objective evdence
that the Group will not be able to collect omounts due occardmg to the onginel tems

of the recenvable The amount of the impairment s the difference between the esset’s
camyng omount and the present value of the estimoted future cash flows, dscounted ot
the ongsnal effectve mterest rmie

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING..
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cosh equivalents inchude cosh i hand and deposits held on call, together with
other short term highly liqud investmenits thot ace readily convertible to known amaunts
of cash and which are subjec to an insigndicant nisk of chaages in volue

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other payables are wiolly measured ot fair vokue, ond are subsequently
mensured of omortised cost, using the effeciive interest method

TAXATION

Tax expense comprises curent end deferred tox Tox 15 recognised  the income
statement, except o the extent it relotes to dems recognised i other compeehensive
incame or directly m equity

Deferred toxonon s calculoted using the liabity method, on temporary differences
orsing between the tax boses of assets and hobilitres and therr careying amounis in the
consofidated Financial Statements However, if the deferred tox onses from the iningl
recognihon of goodwall of inimol recogaimion of an asser or hobdity in o hansaction other
than o business combinahon that af the hme of the transachon affects neither accounting
nox taxable profit or loss, 1 & not accounted for Deferred tox on temporary ditferences
assocated with shares m subsidiones 5 not prowided  reversal of tese temporory
differences can be controlled by the Group and it 15 probabla that reversol wilt not eceur
in the foreseeable future: In oddinon, tox losses avoiloble to be carned forward os well
us offer icome tox credifs 1o the Group are assessed for recogniion os deferred tox
ussets Deferred tox 15 determmed using fox rates and lows thot hove been enadted (or
substantively enacted) by the bolonce sheet dote and are expected to apply when the
refated deferred fox asset s rehsed or the delered tox hobility 15 setiled

Defemed tax hobiites are prowded i full

Defered tax assers ore recognised fo the extent that it s probable that hutuse toxable
profits will be avalable against which the temporary differences cas be uhihsed

(hanges m current and deferred tox assers or hobibnes are recognised as @ component
of tnx expense m the income statement, except where they relote 1o tems that ore
recorded 1 other comprehensive income of charged or csedited durectly to equity m which
case the reloted deferred tax is also charged to other comprehensiva ncome or ¢redited
directly o equity

PENSIONS
The Group operates pension plans for the benefit of cerfaiz employees, mcuding both
defined contnbution and defined benefit plans

In relanon to its defined contnbution plans, the Group mokes contnbutions to
independently adminsstered plans, the contibunions bemg recognised as an expense
when they fall due The Group has no legal or canstructive obligarion te make any further
payments to the plans otfes than the contnbutions due

In relotion to its defined benefit schemes, the Group secognises n ifs bolance sheet the
present vohue of us defined bensft obligonons less the foir value of plan ossets The
current service cost 15 charged against operating profir Interest on the schemes habilives 15
included m fingnce costs

The defined benefit obligation s calculated ot each penod end by independent actuoes
using the projacted urut credit method The present value of the obligation 15 determined
by discounting the estimated future cosh autflows using interest rates of high qualty
carporate bonds thet are denominated m the cumency m which the benefits will be pd
and which have terms to matunty approximating the terms of the refuted

persion abilines

Actuana! gains end losses omsing from expenence adjustments and changes in actuanol
ossumptions are reflected m other comprehensive ncome in the perod m whach they anse

BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS

Borrowings are recogmised minolly of fow volue, net of transachion costs incurred, ond
subsequently af omertsed cost Any differente between the proceeds (net of tronsaction
costs) and the redemphion volus = recognrsed w the income statement over the penod of
the borrowngs using the effective interest method

Borrowings are classtied ns currens fiahwlinies unfess the Group has an uncanditona! nght
o defer sefflement of he liabiity for at leost 12 months from the bolance sheet date

Borrowng costs, being interest and other costs weurred i connection with the serving of
barrowings, ore recognised as on expense when mcured

PROVISIONS

A provsion 1 recogrused when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligaron as
o result of o past event, (t 1s probable that an outflow of resources will be requied 1o settle
the obbgation ond o refuble esimate can be made of the amount of the obligahon

The Group prowdes for 115 legel responsibility for dilopidahion costs following adwice from
thartered surveyors and previous expenence of exit costs The estimated cost of fulfilling
the leaseheld ddapedonions obligations is discounted to present volue ond snolysed
between non-capitol and capitol components The coprtal element s recognsed as o
decommssioning cost and depreciated over the lfe of the asset The nonapal element 15
token to the income statement in the first yeor of the leose where the cost if represents 15
of no lasting benefit to the Group or s londlord “Weor and tear” costs are expensed to the
ingome statement Prowistons for onerous lease coniratts ore recognmed when the Group
befieves the unavordable costs of meeting the lease obhgahons exceed the economic
benefits expected to be receved under the lease

LEASES

Leases of property, plont ond equipment where the Group has substantially all the nsks
and rewards of ownershp are clusséfied os finonce leoses Finonce leases are copitolsed
ot the leose’s incephen of the lower of the faw vakue of the leased asset and the present
volug of the minemom lease poyments Each lease poyment i aflocared between the
lobifity and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate an the finance balance
outstanding The asser subject to the finance lease s depreaated over the shorter of its
useful life and the lease term  The corresponding rental obliganions, net of finance charges,
are included os o hobiity

Leases of propeny, plant and equpment where the Group does not hove substantially all
the nsks ond tewards of ownership are classified 05 operating lecses Payments made
under operating feoses are charged to the income staremest oa a stright line basis over
the lease fere Incentives provided by the lessor are credited o the incame staterment on
o straight-ne basis over the minimum leose term

Contingent rental payments, abave stondard payments, are condihonal on the Group's
operuting performance denved from the lease item, {& g tumover levels) These ore
expensed i the peend in which they are incurred

Rental ncome from: operanng leoses where the Goup acts os ¢ lessor s recognised on o
strawght line basts over the term of the relevant lease

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The most significant exposure to forengn exchange fructuations relares o purchoses made
in foreign currencies, princsaally the US Dollor The Group's poticy 15 to reduce substantiolly
the nisk associated with purchases denomunated m forexgn cutrencies by using forward
fixed rate currency purchose contracts, toking infe account ony foreiga currency cash flows

Desvatwva finencral mstruments are meosured of fai vaiue Where denvaiives do not
quabfy for hedge accounning, ony gains or losses on re-meosurement are immed:gtely
iecognssed w the mncome statement Where denvatives qualify for hedge occounting,
recognition of ey resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relotionship
ond the iem bemng hedged

In arder to qualify for hedge aecounting, the Group 15 reguired to document from incephon
the relstionshzp between the stem bemg hedged and the hedging mstrument The Group
i ako required to document and demonstrafe an ossessment of the relononship betwaen
the hedged item ond the hedging istument, which shows thot the hedge will be highly
effectve on an ongoing bosis This effectiveness teshing s performed of each penod end
to ensure that the hedge remains tighly effective



CASH FLOW HEDGING

Demvatroe finanasl instruments ore clossified as cash flow hedges when they hedge the
Group's exposure to vanobility i cash fows thot ore esther atmborable fo o particulor nsk
tssocioted with o recogrised osset or flability, or o highly probable forecost tronsaction

The effectve element of any gom or loss from re-measuring the denvative mstrument 5
recognised diectly in other comprehensive income

The associnted cumulative gain or loss 5 reclassdied from other comprehensive income
the some peniod ar penods duang which the hedged transachin offects the profi or foss
The dossification of the effectve porhon when recognised m the incame stotement i the
same os the clossifrcaon of the hedged transaction Any element of the remeasurement
of the dervvatrve mstrument whuch does not meet the cotena for an effective hedge s
recognesed immediately in the income statement withun finance ncome or costs Hedge
accounting 15 drscontinued when the hedqmg istrument expires or s sold, terminated

or exercsed, o no longer qualifies for hedge occounting At that point in fime, any
cumulgtive gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equaty 15 reimned in
equiy until the farecosted tonsachion occurs 1 o hedged fronsochion s no longer expected
to oceur, the net comulative gain or loss recognised in ather comprehensive income 1
redossified from equity to the income statement gs a redassification adpstment

TREASURY SHARES

The purchase price of the Group’s own shares that it acquires 1s recogmsed os “Treasury
shares within squity When shores are transferred out of wreasury the diference berween
the market volue and the average puschase prce of shares sold out of treosury 15
tronsferred to retaned earnings

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST

An Employee Benght Trust has been established for the purposes of satisfying certan
shosebosed owords The Group hos “defacto” coniral over the spewl purpose enfity This
Trust 1 fully consolidnted within the occounts The cast of shares acquired by the Sports
Direct Employee Benefit Tnsst i recogmsed within "own share-reserve” in equify

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group ssues equily-settled sharebosed peyments to certon Directors and employees
These are measured at fair volue at the date of grany, which s expensed 1o the
consolidated income statement on a straight-ine bosts over the vesting penod, with the
corresponding credit going to eqaify

Noa morket vesting conditions are no taken into occount in determining gran? dote foir
vole Instead, they ore token into eccount by adjushing the number of equity msfruments
1o vest

Foir value 1s hased an the market share pce on the gront date The expecied stoff
numbers used i the mode! hos been odpssred, bosed on management’s best estimote, for
the effects of aonransferobdity, exercise resmnons, ond behavioural cansiderations

A shose-bosed poyment charge of £10 1 wos recogased n sefling, distabution and
admmistrotve expenses for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2015 The key details in respect
of the share scheme chorges ore ser out m note 21

The crecit for the share bosed payment cherga does not equal the charge per the come
stotement as &t excludes omounts recogssed w the balance sheet i relation fo the
expected nofongl insurance cantnbunons for the shares

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

An equrly insiroment 5 any controct that ewdences o residuol mferest in the assefs of
the Group after deducting oll of uts fiabifines Equity instruments isued by ihe Group are
recorded a1 the proceads received, ner of ony direct ssue costs

DIVIDENDS

Dnidends are recogmsed as o fiobufity in the Group’s Financial Stotements ond as
deduction from equuty in the penod m which the dwdends are declored Where such
dividends ore proposed subject to the approval of shareholders, the dnadends are regorded
o5 deckired once shareholder appioval has been obioned

MATERIALITY

I prepanng the Financiel Statements, the Boord considess both quaniitaiive ond
qualitasve foctors m forming its wdgements, and related dsclosures, and ore mindful of
the need to best serve the interests of its stakeholders and 1o avoid unnegessory clutter
home of the disclosure of immatenal siems

In makng thus assessment the Board considers the nature of esch irem, os welf os its
size, In ossessing whether any discosure omissions or misstatements could snffyence the
decsions of users of the Finonciol Stosements

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“STANDARDS”)
IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

A the date of outhorsanon of these consolidated Finoncial Statsments, the intemanongl
accounting stondards hoard (*1ASB”) aad intematione! financial reporting stonderds
commuttee (“IFRSC") hove ssued the follownng standards and mtecpretonons which are
effectve for annual accouning pencds beginning on or ofter the stated effectve dute
These standords and mierpretotions cre not effective for and hove not been opphied m the
preperohion of the consohidated Finenciol Statements

 IFRS 9 Funancigl instruments (IASB effechve date 1 Jonuary 2018}
 [FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Custemers (effective 1 Jonuary 2017)

« Defined Benefit Plons Employee Contbutions (Amendments fo 1S 19) (IASB
effectve dote 1 July 2014)

« (larficonon of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amaritsosion
Amendments to [AS 16 and 1AS 38 (IASB effective dote 1 Jenuary 2016)

o Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method m Separate Financiol Statements (effectve
1 January 2816)

o Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment Enties Apphyng the
Consolidation Exception (effectve 1 Jonwary 2016)

 Distlosure lakiatve Amendments to 245 1 Presentonion of Financial Statements
{efiecive 1 Jonuary 2016}

The duectors anhopose that the adophon of these stondords ond interprefations i future
penods wall have no matenal impact on the Finonciol Starements of the Group

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The ¢nnicol oecousting eshmates and udgements made by the Group seqording the future
ar other key sources of estmation, uncertasty ond dgement that may hava @ significant
nsk of gng nise 1o o motensl edjustment 1o the carrying values of assefs and habiles
within the next finonciol yeer are

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The colevlohon for considenng the impoirment of the comying amaunt of goadwall requires
a componson of the present value of the CGU's to which the goodw:ll hos heen allocated
to the volue of goodwill and asseanted assets in the balance sheed The colculanon of
present values requires on esimanion of the future cosh Hows expected 1o anse from the
(GU's and the selection of o suitoble discount rate The key ossumptions made in relahon
to the impairment review of goodwill are st out i note 15

[MPAIRMENT OF OTHER INTANG{BLE ASSETS

The cafculotion for considenng the impaiment of the carrying ameunt of ather intanghle
ussets with en mdefinte life, speatically brands, trode marks and licences, requires

o companson of the present value of the refared cosh flows to the value of he other
miangble ossets n the balance sheet The celoulohon of present value requres on
estimanon of the future cosh Hows expected to anse fram the other ntongible ossefs ond
the selechion of o suitable discount roze The key ossumphons made in relation to the
impanmerd rewew of other miongible assefs aie set out n note 15

EVERYTHING (S CHANGING ..
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

USEFUL ECONOMIC LIFE OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS

For mtang:bla assers winch have o hnizg Iife, the directors revisit thew eshmate of useful
economic hfe at each penod end and revise accordingly Licences and trode marks typically
hove o fife of between 5 ond 15 yeors

IDENTIFICATION AND VALUATION OF ACQUIRED {INTANGIBLE ASSETS
{On acqusition, each matenal, seporuble mongible osset s dentied ond volued by
the Directors. Any such coloulonon 5 judgemental in noture as i s based on o
voluohion methodology

Brond vohsations are typically vahved using the relief from royatty voluaticn methodology
The noture and comying amounts of these assets are set out v note 15

IMPAIRMENT
The Durettars review the camying emounts of the Group’s fangible ossets to determine
whether there s any ndication that thase assets hove suffered an impairment loss

PROVISION FOR OBSOLETE, SLOW MOVING OR DEFECTIVE
INVENTORIES

The Directors have apphied therr knowledge and expenence of the retal industry in
determining the level and rates of provisioning requred in celculating the appropnate
iventory cormying values The provision includes eshmates for shinkage, spotkege and
slow-moving items depending on the oge ond arent sefling pnces of the indradual
stock items

FINANCIAL POSITION OF RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The net defined henefit pension plan assers or hiebifines ore recogmsed in the Group's
balance sheet The determenahion of the financiol posinon requwes ossumptions to be
maode regarding inter ako future salory mereases, mortalty, discount rotes ond inflanon
The key assumptions mode: n relation to the penston plan re set out in note 24

PROVISION FOR DILAPIDATIONS AND ONEROUS LEASE CONTRACTS
The basis of te estimation of the prowstoning for ddopidotions and onerous leoss
contracts 15 defodled n the provisions accounting pokicy ond note 26 Estimates and
judgements ave continually evaluoted and ae based on histoncol expenence, extemal
advice and ather factors, nckuding expectations of future events shat are beheved 1o be
reasonable under the urcumstances Where an onerous leose has been wantified, the
ossets dedicared to thet contract ore impaired

CALCULATIOR OF SHARE SCHEME CHARGE

A sharebesed poyment chorge s recognised m respect of share awards bosed on the
Duectors’ best estimate of the number of shares that wll vest The charge 15 calculoted
bosed on the for value on the grant dote, whuch 15 deemed fo be the dote on which the
ennity aad counterparty reached o shared understanding of the scheme The key detalls in
respect of the shore scheme charges are set out in note 21

VALUATION OF INVESTMENTS

Where market dota 1s not avoilable to ossist in voluing nvestments, management eshmote
tha foir volue of the eaterpnse bosed cn the current performance and fingnaal pesion of
the refevont company

VALUATION OF EQUITY DERIVATIVES

The value of equity denvaties 15 calculoted using & peprietary option prcing mode! The
model output s the result of o number of inputs including, amongst ather fings, the terms
of the ophion {stake pnce, nme to expury, etc ), the prevading share pce, mferest rofes,
the voladity of the underying stack, and dwidends pad by the underying company

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Gioup's cument activities result in the followmng finoncial msks and ser out below are
management’s esponses to those nsks i order to minmse ony resuling adverse effects
on the Group's fimonainl performance

FORE!GN EXCHANGE RISK
The Group &5 exposed to foreign exchange nsk pranaipally vo

o Transactionot exposure from the cost of future purchases of goods for resale, where
those purchases ore denomnated i o arendy other than the functional currency of the
purchasing company Transachonql expasuies that could significontly impact the income
statement are hedged These expasures are hedged via forward foreign currency contracts
which are desigrated os cosh flow hedges The notional and fow value of these contracis
& shown in nate 27

b Met mvestment exposure, from the for volua of net investments outside the UK
The Group hedges s itemgtional investments via foreign currency ansachions gnd
boriowings n matching currencies

¢ Loans 1o non-UK subsidionies These are hedged wio foreign currency transactions and
borrowings in matching cusrencies, which ase not formally designoted os hedges, o5 gams
ond losses an hedges and hedged loons will naturally offset

INTEREST RATE RiSK

The Group hes net borrowangs, which are: pnnopally o floging wnterest ries finked

to bonk bose rates or LIBOR The Group does not currently use interest rate fingngig!
instruments to hedge ifs expasure fo Interest rote movements The Group regulary
monitors and reacts accordingly to any exposure to fluctuations in interest rates ond the
impact on ifs monetary ssets and hiabilifes

CREDIT RISK

The Directors have o cedit policy i ploce and the exposure fo credit nsk s monitored on
on ongoing basis Credsr evaluators ore performed on all customers requinng credt over o
certoin omount The Group does not require colloterol n respect of financiad assets

Ar ench bolonce sheet dare, there were no signifrcont concentrations of aredit nsk The
maximum exposure to credit msk 1s represented by the comying amount of each fimancel
usset in the bolonce sheet

Investments of cosh surpluses, barsowings ond denvative instrumments are mode through
banks ord companies which must fulfil credit rating ond savestment enten approved by
the Board

LIQUIDITY RISK

The ovailshilty of adequate cash resources 1s managed by the Group through utihsehon
of ifs revohving credit facikihes together with equity and refained profits thereby achiewing
continuity of funding ond short term flexibiliry

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
A description of the Group’s objectves, policies and processes for menaging capitol are
included in note 27




4. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS
FRS 8 “operahng segments’ requaes the Graup’s segments o be identified on the bass of nterml reports abowt companents of the Group that ore regularly reviewed by the Chief
(perating Decsion Maker 10 ossess perormance and lloce resources acoss each operaing segment

The Chief Operating Decwsion Moker has been wentified os the Executive Direciors and the operanng segments ere identrhied os the store Fascio or brand, 1n line with the remal reporting
1o the Execuirve Directors

Soles ond gross profit for each opersting segment, os well 65 undarlymg EBITDA, are the main messures used by the Execunve Ditectors to nssess perormonte
In accordance with paragroph 12 of IFRS 8 the Group’s operating segments have been oggregated it the followang reportable segments

« Sparts Retaul — includes the results of the UK and International retesl neswork of sparts stores along with reloted websites,

o Premum Lifestyle — mdudes the results of the premmm retail businesses such os Cruise, Flonnels end USC, ond

» Bionds — includes the resulrs of the Group's portfolio of internanonally recognrsed brands such os Everlost, Lonsdale and Dunlop

Information regording the Group’s reportable segments for the 52 weeks ended 24 Aprl 2015, os well es o reconciliation of reported peofit for the penod o undedying EBITDA, 5
presenied on pages 67 to 69

Segmentol mformation for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2015

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING...
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Reted Brands Eéminations Tetd
{£°000) {£°000) {€£°000) [£7000)
Sports Retal  Proivm Lifestyle Totd Totd
Sales fo extemal customers 2,398,547 207 623 2,606,170 226,390 2,832,560
Sales to other segments 25,480 (25,480}
Revenue 2,398,547 207,623 2,606,170 251 870 {25,480) 7,832,560
Gross profit 1069088 80,523 1,149 611 91,201 1240,812
Operating piofil before foreign exchange and excephional tems 785534 (11,170) 274 364 27,984 302,348
Operating profit 283 347 {11,278) 272,069 23,512 295,581
Other mvestment ncome 14104
Fingnee income 8,289
Finance costs {7,487y
Shere of profits of assocted undertokings 2,959
Profit before taxalion 313,446
Taxahon {72,093)
Profit for the penod 241,353
Sofes o other segments oie priced ot cost plus o 10% markup
Other sagment ems included in the income statement for the 52 weeks ended 26 Aprl 2015
Retal Brands Tordl
(£°000) 1£'000) {£°000)
Sporis Retal  Premskms Lifestyle Totdl
Depreciation 57,855 1543 60,398 2,026 52,424
Ameriisation 548 687 1,235 411 5,357

Accelerated deprecation and omertisation nchided withn exceptional tiems ore exthded from the obeve
Information regusding segmens assets and liabifities os ot 26 Apnl 2035 and capol expenditure for the 52 weeks then ended

Sparts Retall  Premiuen Lifestyle Rrands Ellninations Totad

{€°000} {£'000) (€000} (£°000) (€000}

fvesiments im ossocated undedakings 38,133 38,133
Othes assets 1,688,779 24 446 190,772 {168 447) 1,735,550
Total pssets 1726912 24 446 190,772 {168,447) 1,773,683
Total lichdines (645,836) {60,255) {73,488) 168,447 {612,132
Tangubée asset odditions 3,429 231 1,592 97,342
fnsangible osset odditions 108 2,829 2937

Total capital expenditure 93,537 2,321 4,471 100,279

of
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Segmental mfommation for the 52 weeks ended 27 Apiil 7014

Retol Bands Totd
{£°000) (£7000) (£°000) (£°000)
Sports Retad  Praciom ifestyle Totd Totdl
Solas to external customers 2,274,365 214,066 2,488,431 nisa 2,705,958
Sales to other segments 203 203 29,938 (30,141}
Revenua 2,274 568 214,066 2488634 747 465 (30,141) 2,705,958
§ Gross profit 974,952 86,263 1,061,215 93107 1,154,922
'g Operating peofit before forexgn exchange and exceptional items 254,736 {25,729} 229,007 23,825 252,832
& Opetating prodil 251,262 {25,588) 226,174 22,957 - 249,131
= Other ivestment income .07
g Fmance income 8N
= Finance costs (19,853}
Share of profits of assoosted underiokings 2,266
! Profit before taxction 239,452
E Taxation (59,839)
E Profit for the penod 179613
g Sales to other segeents. ora pnced of cost plus o 10% mork-up
Other segment tems inciuded m the income statement for the 52 weeks ended 27 Aprl 2014
Rotal Brasds Tota
{£000) (£'000) {£°000)
SporisRetel  Prambom [estyle Yorel
Depreciation 50,549 4,689 55,238 1,725 56,963
Amortisation 1,348 687 2,035 4797 6,832
48 Impawment 284 284
Information regarding segment assets and fiabilibes os at 27 Apal 2014 and copiral expenditure for the 52 weeks then ended
SporisRetad  Promiom Lifestyle Bronds Elirdoations Tordl
{£000) (£°000) {000} {£°000) {€°000)
Investments 1n associated undertokings ond goint ventures 42175 413 41,763
Other assets 1,609,024 96,601 183,103 (219,752 1,658,974
Total assets 1,651,200 96,601 182,690 (229,752} 1,700,739
Total hobilines (893,269 (123 554) (96,114) 229,752 (883,185)
Tangibls asset odditions 57,365 6978 2,961 67,304
Intangible osset edditions 759 1,568 1827
Totol capital expenditure 57,624 4,978 4,529 69,131
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
Segmental nformation for the 52 weeks ended 26 Apnd 2015
UK Mow UK Himinations Totol
(£000) {£2000) {£'000) (£°000)
Segmental ravenue Tiom external customers 2,252,340 580,200 2,837,560
Totol capitel expenditure 81,793 18,485 100,279
Segmental assets 1,564 864 377,266 {168,447) 1,773,683
Segmentol snformanon for the 52 waeks ended 27 Aprl 2014
u Moo UK Hisinetions Totel
(£7000) {£000) {£000) (£7000)
Segmental revenuve from extemal customers 2083724 542,234 2,705,958
Total capital expenditure 51,525 17,606 £9,131
Segmentaf assets 1,526,405 404,086 {229.752) 1,700,739




The followg table reconcles the teported operting pecfit to the underlymg EBITDA as 1t 1 ane of the mos medsuses used by the Chief Opernting Decssion Maker when reviewing performance

Reconcibiation of opernémg profit to underlying EBTIDA for the 52 wesk penod ended 26 Apil 2005

Sports Retall  Prewmiom Lilestyle Bronds Tetd
[£*000) {€°000) {£000) (€000}
Operating profit / {loss) 283,347 (11,278} 23,512 195,581
Depraciotion 57,855 2,543 2026 62424
Impasment 548 687 42 5357 o
Share of prodt /' (loss} of ossouated underigkngs 3,009 {50) 2959 é
Reported EBITDA 344,759 {8,048) 29.610 366,321 é
Charges for the share scheme 10,110 10,110 @
Fxceptional dems (3.399) 6445 3050 £
Realksed FX gan / (loss) 5,332 358 01,373) 3,717 E
Underlying EBITDA 356,806 {7,690} 34,082 383,198 =
ReconaBotion of operating profit to underyng EBITOA for the 52 week panod ended 27 Apil 2014 1
Sporia Rerll  Pruesiues Lifestyle Brands Tored E
{£°000) (£°000) {€°000) (£°000) g
Operating profit / (boss) 251,762 {25,588} 22,957 249131 a
Depreciotion 50 549 4,689 1,725 56,963
Imposrment 284 204
Amortsation 1,348 687 4,797 6,832
Share of profit / {loss) of cssociated underiokngs 2679 {413} 2,266
Reported EBITDA 306,338 {20,212) 29,350 315476
Charges for the shave heme 11927 11,927
Exceptional rtems 5,531 5,531
Reafsed FX (loss) / gain (2,557) (141) 848 (1,830)
Underlylng EBITDA N9 {20,353) 30,218 331,104 3]
5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
$2 weeks anded
26 Aprll 2015 27 ke 2004
{E°000) {£.000)
Rent recevable 4,851 5118
Other 340 2,465
8,345 8,583
6. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
52 weeks ended
26 Aprfl 2015 27 ek 014
(£°000) {£ 000)
Profit on sole of drechold property 10,288
Impoement end occelersted depienigtion ond emortsation {13,338} (5,531)
{3,050) (5,531)

The mpanment and accelerated depreantion and omortsanion relstes to 6 change in the estamated useful ife of certom tongile and wntanguble ossets end impairment ogemst goodwit i
the yeor Included within thes figure 1 on accelerated amortisation charge of £4m due to o change m the useful economic Iits of certam mtangibles m the year from 10 years fo 5 years

The prodit on sole of freshold property of £10 3m inchudes fo the sale of o freehold worehouse for £21 2m, reaksing o profit of €12 1m




ANNUAL REPORT 2015

SPORTSDIRECT.com

70

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

7. OPERATING PROFIT
Operntmg profit for the penod s stoted after charging / (¢reditng)
52 waeks snded
16 Apd 2015 7 el 2014
(€000} (€000}
Foreign exchange losses / (gains) 3ni {1,830)
Deprerotron of property, plent ond equipment
owned assels $2424 56,963
Amortsation of mtangible essets 5,203 832
Impaiment of intargible ossets 284
Operaling lease rentals
Land and buldings 142571 121341
Other 751 708
Actelerated deprecahon and omortisafion mchided within excephonal trems are excluded from the above
SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE GROUP'S AUDITOR
For the 52 weeks ended 26 Apal 2015 the remunerahon of the ouditors, Grant Thomton UK LLP ond assocwated fimms, was os detofied below
57 weeks snded
16 Al 2015 77 i 201
(£'000) (57000)
AUDIT SERVICES
Audit of the Company’s and the consolidated Finonciol Statements 105 85
Avdt of subswdinry tompenses’ Finangral Stotaments 650 585
NON-AUDIT SERVICES
Other sennces relaling fo taxahion 748 FL}
All other services 484 208

An explanchon of how avditor obyectvity and independente ts sfequarded when non-audit services are provided by the ouditors 1 set out 1 the Audit Committee Repost on page 40

8. PAYROLL COSTS
The average monthly number of employess, inchuding Executiv Directors, employed by the Group duning the penod was
57 woeks wded
26 Apdl 2015 2 Al 2014
{Nuzrber) (rumbr)
Retoil stores 13,414 13,609
Distnbition, odmimstiation ond othes 3,793 3,556
17,207 17,165
The aggregate payroll costs of the employees, nchuding Exacutive Diractors, were os follows
52 wesks mded
26 Agrll 2015 21 hprd 2004
{€:000) (000
Wages and sakaes 290,769 278,714
Social sacunty costs 31,256 27,835
Pensron cosls 1,520 1,399
323,545 307,948

A shore-based poyment charge of £10,170,000 (2014 £1%,927,000) was recogaised in respect of share owards dumng the yeor Thes ts melusive of the related charges Tor expected nafional mswitnee
contributions.

Aggregate emoluments of the Drectors of the Company ore summarsed below:

57 weeks snded
26 hprl 2015 71 ded 014
(£000} €£°000)
Aggregate emolments 477 405

further detaiks of Divectors” remuneration ore given in the Bireciors’ Remoneration Report on pages 44 o 52

Betats of certain key mgnagement remunertion are gven m note 33




9. OTHER INVESTMENT INCOME

57 weaks asded
26 Aprll 2015 27 pd 2014
(£°000) (£ 000)
Profit an disposal of avatlable-forsale financiol ossets 3,678 5413
Faw vakie gam on denvetve mstuments 8,895
Divdend mcome from investments 1,531 1,604
14,104 7,017
10. FINANCE INCOME
57 woeks snded
26 April 2015 7 dpud 2014
{£°000} (000}
Bonk mteresi recewable 929 761
Other inseres! recewvable 58 130
Fan volue adiustment 1o forword foregn exchange controcts 7,302
8,28% 891

M The forr vokve odjusiment 1o forward forexgn exthonge confracts relates to diffesences between the foxs vakie of forwand foteagn curency controcts nol dessgnated dor hedge acrouting from ane penod ead fo the pext.

11. FINANCE COSTS

52 woeks ended
26 April 2015 7 el 01
(£000) (£'000)
Interest on bank Joans ond overdiafis 5,692 7513
Interest ar other koans and finonce leases 153 600
Interest on rejirement benefit chligations {note 24) $42 547
Fou volve adjusiment to forward foreign exchange contiocts 11,193
7487 19,853

1 The fum vohue odisstment fo forword forexgn exchange controcts rekotes to drferences between the forr waiue of forwerd foresgn cunency contracts. not designated for hedge atcounting from one penod end to the next

12. TAXATION
52 wesks ended
26 Apel 2015 2 Aol 2014
(E7000) {E.000)
Current fox 714,072 57,569
Adwstment m respect of pror periods 5140 (280)
79.212 57,289
Deferred tax (note 25) [tALLY 2,550
12,093 59,839
TAX RECONCILIATION
Profit before taxation 3i3 446 239,452
Toxation at the standord rate of sax n the UK of 21% (2014 23%) 65,624 55,074
Tox effects of
Expenses not deduchble for fox pusposes 2778 1,445
Owvenseas fax losses 2,552 2,509
Other tox edipstments (4,205} 1,011
Adpstments m respect of pnot periods  Current tox 5141 {280)
Adystments i respect of pior periods  Deferved fox 3 30

12,093 59,83%

EVERYTHING 1S CHANGING...
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM TOTAL AND CONTINUING OPERATIONS ATTRIBUTABLE
TO THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

Basic eorimgs per shure s cakuleted by dwiding the earmings ottnbutable to osdinary shoreholders of the pasent by the we:ghted ovesoge number of ordinary shares outstandiag dunag

the year

For diuted earnungs per share, the weighted overage number of shares, 592,294,371 (2014 585,513,537}, s odpsted to essume conversion of gll diutve potential ordingry shares
under the Group’s Share Schemes, beng 24,200,000 (2014 32,676,278), to give the diluted weighted average number of shares of 616,424,371 (2014 618,189,815

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

52 wosks nded
26 dpell 1015 26 Apell 2005 27 ke 2014 7 Ko 01
Basic Dicted B Do
{E°000) {£7000) (T000) (£000)
Profit for the period 240,397 240,397 180,245 180,245
Number In thoasonds thurbor i thousands
Wesghted overoge mmber of shores 597294 61644 585,514 618,190
Peace par shere Perxs per shus
Eomings per share 406 390 308 292

UNDERLYING EARNINGS PER SHARE

The undestying eamings per shore reflects the underlying performance of the business compared wath the pror year and s colculoted by dnading underlying eareuings by the weighted
average numbe of shares for the penod Underlying earmings t5 used iy monogement a5 @ meosure of profiobilty withn the Group tnderlying earmngs 15 defined os peoit for the pesiod
attmbutable to equity holders of the parent for each firanciol penod but excluding the post tox effect of certain nonrading trems

The Direciors behieve thot the underying eamings before excephiono! wems ond underying earmmgs pes share mensuies provide uddmena! useful mbarmanon for shareholders on the
undertying performance of the businass, and are consistent with how business performonce 1s measured intemally Underlying eamings 1 not o recognised profit measure under IFRS and
may not he directly comparoble with “adsted” profit measures used by other componies

52 woeks soded
16 Aped 2015 26 Apel 1015 27 kg 014 2 4l 7014
Bask Diuted B Dabted
(E'000) {£'000) LE000) 1 000)
Profit for the pesiod 240,397 240,397 180,245 180,245
Posi tax adpstments to proit for the penod for the following non-trading tems
Relised loss / (gain) on forward exchange contincts 2,862 2,862 {1,373) {1,373)
Fon volue adjustment to forward foreign exchanga conhiocts 12472 (12,472) 8,395 8,395
Profit on disposel of ksted investments (2,832 (2,832) {4,060 (4,060
Impament of fxed ossets 4148 4,148
Profit on disposel of property (7,921} (7,921
Impaimment and accelesation smostisotion & depreciation 10,279 10,270 284 284
Underlying profit for the period 230,304 230,304 187,639 187,639
Number In thousands Humbeat in thousands
Weighted averoge numbes of shaies 592,294 616,494 585,514 618,190
Pence per share Pocxs pai shere
Underlying enenings pet share 389 374 321 303




14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Freshold ind  Long-terms leasshold  Shert term leasehold

Plant ad

and bokdings » e wquiptent Told
{€°000) (£°000) 1£°000) (£'000) (£°000)

€osT
A1 26 Aprik 2013 237 488 11,961 108,078 387,255 744,782
Exchange dilferences (3,634) 358 (8,884) (12,160}
Acquisttions 88,448 3¢ 15,476 83,963
Additions 20,808 904 5,591 39,001 67,304
Ehmunated on disposals (754} 430 2,228) (6,956 {10,358)
M 27 Apnt 2014 327 356 12,832 117 441 425,892 873,521
Exchanga dferences (785 927 2 (9,458) {9,314)
Aquesttions m 17
Addinons 23,571 12 7,890 65,869 97,342
Ehiminated on dsposals {21,740) (892) (2,861) {12,502} (37,995)
At 26 Apnt 2015 323,402 12,879 117 472 470,580 924,333
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
A 28 Aputl 2013 {33,504) {4,814) (74,381 (300,641} (412,746)
Exthange dfferences 137 (130 (166) 7,229 7,063
Cherge for the peniod {7,567) (150) {6,444) {42,802) {56,963)
[MPAIRMENT (5,531 {5,531)
Flimunated on dispasals 745 995 5,217 7,017
A 27 Apal 2084 (40,189 {5,101} {80,002) {335,868) (461,160)
Exthange diferences 488 (203} 46 9,472 10,203
Chorgs for the penod (11,478) (140} (9.1729) 42,177 (62,924)
Ehinunated on disposals 1,035 127 162 10,966 12,290
At 26 Apnl 2035 (50,144) (5,317 (88,923) (357,207) (501,591)
NET BOOK AMOUNT
At 26 Apnl 2015 273,258 7,562 28,549 113,373 422 742
At 27 Aonl 2014 282,167 7731 32,439 90,024 412,361

Additions n the year include £35 5m of assels under constiuction in relaion to our new Shirebrook warehouse
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Trademarks and
Goodwil Besces Bresds Totd
(E"D00) (£°000) 1£7000) (£7000)
COsT
A1 28 Aprl 2013 146,938 57,895 80,991 285,824
Ansing an business combinations 30,683 30,683
Additions through busmess combinations 4,847 4,847
?"—: Othes oddiions 1,827 1,877
= Disposals {4,053} {1,000) {5,053)
g Exchange adstment (8,348) {1,473) {7705) {17,526)
; A1 27 Apil 2014 165,220 62,094 73,286 300,602
E Assing on business combinations 3,682 3,682
= Other addrions 2931 2937
Disposals (2) {1,714) {1,716)
g Exthange odjustment 6,908 599 6,59% 14,106
g At 26 Apnl 2015 175,808 63,918 79,885 319,611
a AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
At 28 Apnl 2013 (17,133 (28,21) {45,404)
Amortisation thaige (6,832) {6,837
Impoirment (264) (284)
Disposals 3,897 1,000 4897
Exchonge odustment 1,549 8 2130
At 27 Aprt 2014 (11,671) {33,822) {45,493)
Amortisation chorge (12,775) (12,725
Imparment (5,314) {5.314)
Disposals 1,607 1,607
Exthonge adustment (2,289) (33) (2,327)
At 26 April 2015 (19,274 (44,973) (64,247)
NET BOOK AMOUNT
A 26 April 2015 156,534 18,945 19885 253,364
A 27 Aprl 2014 153,549 28,274 73,286 255,109

Amortisation 1s charged to selling, distnbution and adminisirative expenses i the consohdated income statement

The carrying valus of gondwill and brands that are considered o have an indefints hfe are locoted to the Group's nparating segments before aggregation With the excephon of Everlast,
nene of the ndmdual cosh-genesating units (CGUs) are considered motenal to goodwil or ndefinte fe infangibles (Brands) The carmying value of goodwill und brands allocatet to the
Group's CGYs, (as aggregoted except i the cose of Everdost), 15 shown below

Goodwill Brands

{2000} {£°000)

UK Sports Reteil 6,964 B,500
Intemationat Sports Retaii 33,395
Premmum Lfeshle 13,689
Brands (excl Fverlast) 48,048

Everlast 54 438 71,388

156,534 79,885

The Group tests the carrying smount of goodwill ord assets with an indefindte: ife onnually for impairment or mare frequeatty if there are mdicanans that ther camying value might be
iepawred The corrymg amounts of other mtangible assets are reviewed for mpairment d there es on ndicanion of impanment

Imparment & colculoted by companag the canrying amounts fo the value 1n use denved from discounted cosh flow projechions For each CGU to which the nfungible ossets are ollocared A
{GU 15 deemed to be on ndiwduel fosein ond these have been grouped togather nto selor dlasses for the purpose of formelating operafing segments os reported m nofe 4

Valug in use calculanans are bosed on five yeor management forecasts wih o termnal growth rate apphed thereafter, representing manogement's estimate of the long-term growth rate of
the sector sesved by the CGls




The key assumphions, which are equally appcable to each CGU, i the cash flow projechons used to suppont the cammying amount of goodwll and intongibles with indefinite fives as at 26
Apnl 2015 were os follows

UK Sports  intemational Sports Pretefens Brads [uxd.
Ratell Reiell Ulustyle Everlust) Evarlos)
Sales growth 0%5% 0% 10% 0%-5% ¥ 6% 0% 5%
Termunol sales growth % 0 7% 0 % W % I3
Gross margin 35% 45% 35% 50% 0% 50% 15% 50% 0% 30%
{aprtol expenditure Nd Slm Ni 3m Ni-SZm Nl £2m NI S1m
Discount rafes 11 88% 11 88% 11 88% 11 88% 17 33%

The Graup Wesghted Average Cost of Coprtal 15 used i UK Sparts Retal, Intemanional Sparts Reta, Premium Lifestyle and Bronds (excl Everlast} as these (GU's o constdered to hove
similar ask profiles

The key assumgnions ot based on manogement’s hestoncal expenence and futwre plons for each CGU
A reasonably possible changa in any key ossumption would not cause the carrying value of any CGU to exceed s recoverotile nmount

The intangible assets that hove on mdefinite e are bronds and toding nemes and are cansidered to have an indefinite ke on the grounds of the proven longewsy of the bronds and
tioding nomes and the Group's commitment to mamteining these bronds

Al key assumptions are consistent witht known extemat sources of mformation

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

The Group uses the equity method of accounting for nssociates and omt ventures The following table shows the oggregate movement n the Gioup's mvesiment i assaciates and
jont ventures

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING...
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Assodates (£000)
28 Aped 2013 kYA
Exchange diffetences {620}
Addions 8,000
Share of profit 2,266
& 27 Aprit 2014 41,763
Exchange differences (4,593)
Addiions 93
Disposals (751)
Dwidends poid (1,338)
Share of profit 2959
At 26 Aprl 2015 38,133
None of the Group’s assoaates are considered to b individually matenal fo the Group
The Group’s share of ossociates assets, liahiines ond income statement, which 15 mcluded 1n the consolidated Finoncial Stotements, 1 os follows

26 April 2015 27 ko 2014
{€°000) £000)
Share of non-current assets 44 767 51,702
Share of cuzrent assets 27,770 24,459
Share of non-curent Gobalities {13,798) {18,259)
Share of current leblties (20,108) {15,139
38,133 41763

52 woeks ended
26 Aprl 2015 77 &g 01
(€000} (£7000)
Intome 104,279 5,751
Expenses (101,509) (92.975)
Profit before foxation 2,776 2,174
Taxation 189 (510)

Profi for the peniod 2959 2,266
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

26 Aprd 2005 7 4 2014
(E000) (000}
Avadoble-for sale fmanual ossets 140,795 116 504

The fair value of the availoble-forsole investments 1s bosed on bid quoted market pnces a the bolonce sheet dove or where market pnces are not available, ot management’s snmate of

forr value

The foflowng table shows the aggregete movement in the Group’s financiol assets dunng the yeor

16 Apell 201§

M dpd 2014

(£°000) {000}
At beginnung of penod 116,504 4] 845
Additions 50,415 55,467
Disposals (48,017) (43.981)
Revahsation thiough other comprehensive incorne 71,893 51313
At end of penod 140,795 116,504

The disposal above relates to fironginl ossets that were acquired in the yens and therelore there 1s no redossifcanon adpstment between equity and the ncome statement on disposal

The finonaal ossets ot 26 April 2015 relate to strotegic investments held of betwaen 4 8% ond 11 1% of share copital
At 27 Apnl 2014 and 26 Apnl 2015 the Group had no mvesrments m excess of 20% of shore capitol

18. INVENTORIES
6 Aped 2015 27 b 014
[£000) (5 000)
Row matenoks 4 147
Goods for resals 517,050 565,332
517,054 565,479
The followiag sventory costs hove been recognised n cost of sales
28 hpel 7015 27 bt 2014
{£7000) {5 000)
Cost of inventonas recogrsed os on expense 1,591,748 1,551,036
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
26 Aol 2015 27 bp 2014
(£000) (£000)
Trade recevables 45,335 £0,851
Amounts owed by reloted parties 13,094 7450
(ther debtors 80,516 19,060
Prepoyments 35,781 35,653
190,726 123 014

The Directors consider that the carrying omount of trade and other receivables aparoximotes to then fair value The maximum exposure to credit nisk at the reporting date 15 she carrying

vlue of each class of nsset ohove, plus any cash balonces

Other debtors includes unrerutted soles receipts and collateral in respect of denvative instruments

Ageing of trada recewobles
26 Apell 2015 17 ke 2004
(£:000} {5 000
Cument 58,364 34,667
0-30 doys past due 744 18,467
30-60 doys post due 1,516 3713
8090 doys post due 2,520 1,194
fver 90 days pact due 209 2310
65,335 60,851

The credit quality of ossets nesther past due nor mporred & considered 1o be good



The moverment in the bad debt prowision ¢an be analysed os follows

52 weeks soded
26 Apedl 2015 7 dged 2014
1£000) (5 000}
(pening posihon 8,336 6,674
Amounts charged to the mcoma statement 1,238 2,343
Amounts wtten off as uncollactable (2,331) 649
Amounts recovered dunng the year {1 (32
Closing posihon 7,232 8,336

The Group has a0 signdicant coneentration of credit nsk, with exposure spreod over o lorge mumber of customers These bod debt provisions / cherges have been determmed by reference
to past defoult expenence and knowledge of the indndual arcumstances of certan recervables

The other closses withen trode and other recenables do rot mcude imporred ossets

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

EVERYTHING IS CHARGING...
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26 Apell 2015 27 dpd 2014
(£000) (£°000)
Coshm bank ond i hand  Sterling 1,026 113327
Cosh in bank end m hand  US Dollors 49,194 15,874
Cash n benk ond m hond Euros 23,3 71,443
Cash n bonk and n hand  Other 4,787 380
78,318 151,024
Bant overdrft {note 73) {813) {5,742)
Cosh and cash equrvalents mcluding overdmafts at penod end 77 505 145,282
21. SHARE CAPITAL
26 Aprll 2015 21 il 2014
{£'000) (5 0600
AUTHORISED
999,500,010 ordinary shores of 10p eoch 99,950 99,950
499,990 radeemable praference shores of 10p each 50 50
100,000 100,000
ALLOTTED, CALLED UP AND FULLY PAID
540,602,369 (2014 640,602,369} ordinary shares of 10p each 64,060 64,060
SHARE CAPITAL
A 27 Apiil 2014 and 26 Apal 2015 64,060 64,060

The Group holds 42,137,508 shares n Traosury

CONTINGENT SHARE AWARDS

THE EXFCUTIVE SHARE SCHEME

Under the terms of the Executive Shore Scheme, winch waos approved by Sharehotders an 10 September 2010 and 1 o Revenue approved scheme, the Boord moy moke share awerds
invespect of she ordinory shares in the Company Awords may be made to Execuives and Persors Dischargiig Menagenal Responsibiliies over o ficed number of shares subiest to
performance conditons Fursher detaiks are set out 1n the Remuneration Report an poges 44 to 52

An oword of 8,073,036 shores was gronred on 10 Seprember 2010 ar o shore prce of 125 5 pence, 4,000,000 of these shares hove since vesied ond 1,000,000 have since lopsed
These shores wll oniy vest i ll condihons are met No considerotion & poyable in respect of these owords

SHARE SCHEMES
The 2011 Shere Scheme was approved by the Board on 10 September 2010 The first awaed of 30,000,000 shares were granted on 10 September 2010 af on everage pnee of 200 0
pence per share At 26 April 2015 21,200,000 (27 Apnd 2014 22,672 000) remamed ouistanding These shares will only vest if all condihons ore met

A sharebased payment charge of £10,110,000 was recognsed m respect of these shase awnrds for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2015, bosed on the Dectors' best estmate of the
number of shares that will vest The chorge s celculoted bosed o the foir vole on the geont dote, which is deemed 1o be the date on which he entity end counterparty reached o shared
undesstanding of the scheme

On 2 july 2014, ¢ resohutron was passed to implement the 2015 Shore Scheme: No grants have been made under this scheme to dote
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

22. OTHER RESERVES

Perenwet Cepitd Reverse

Shere Shae  contretion to redeption wabineticn Hedging Total athar

apitd precism wpite reserve resarve ] frives

(£000) {£000) [£°000) (£°000) {£°000) {£'000) {£°000)

At 28 Aprl 2013 54,060 874,300 50 8,005 {987,312} 16,00 {24,876)
Cosh flow hedges

recognsed i the penod (3,731 (3,731)

teclossilied and reported 1 net piofil {17,909 {17,909

A 27 Apel 2014 64,060 874,300 50 8,005 {987,312} {5,625 (46,522
Cash flow hedges

recognised n the penod 7118 71718

reclassdfied and reported wn et profit 71,240 7.240

A1 26 Apii 2015 54,060 874,200 50 8,005 (787,312} 78,196 37,899

The share premium account 15 used to record the excess proceeds over nominal value on the ssue of shares
The permanent contmbution to capital relates to o cosh payment of £50,000 to the Company on 8 Febniary 2007 under a deed of copital contribution
The copital redemption seserve arose on the redemption of the Company’s redeemable preference shares of 10p each at por on 2 Masch 2007

The reverse combinotion reserve exists o5 o result of the adophion of the panciples of reverse ocquisiton accounting in accountung for the Group restructuring which occurred on 2 Masch
2007 and 29 March 2007 between the Comparty ond Sports Warld Infernational Limuted, Brands Holdings Limited, Intemational Brand Monogement Limited ond (S Holdings SA with
Sports World Intemotional Limited o5 the acquerer

The hedging reserve represents the cumulative amount of gamns and losses on hedging mstruments deemed effecive in cash flow hedges The cumulatve deferred goin or loss on the
hedging instrument s recogased m the income stotement only when the hedged mansaction mpatts the mcome stotement

OTHER BALANCE SHEET RESERVES
The foreign currency translshion reserve 5 used to record exchonge differences ansing from the translahon of the Financil Statements of foreign subsidianes and associares

The own shares and treasury shores esarve represent the cast of shores i Sparts Durect Intemanonal plc purchased in the market end held by Sports Duredt International pi Employee
Benefit Trust to sassty ophons under the Group’s shore ophions scheme, see note 21

23. BORROWINGS
26 Aprl 2015 H doed 2014
{E°000} (€000}
NON-CURRENT,
Bank and other loans 136,849 6,764
136,849 6,764
CURRENT-
Bark overdnalts 813 5,742
Bark and ather foaas 391 350,484
1,204 356,225
TOTAL BORROWINGS
Bank overdrafts 813 5,742
Bonk and other loans 137,240 357,248
138,053 362,990
An analysss of the Group’s totel borrowings other than bank overdrafts s s foliows
26 Apell 015 27 dprd 201
(E000) {000)
Bomowings — Sterfing 5,808 240731
Bormowings — Othet 41,432 16,57
137,240 357,248

Loans are all ot rutes of mterest ranging between 1 15% and 2 0% over the interbank rate of the country wattuin which the borrowmg entity resides

{In 28 May 2014 the Company entered into a rew committeq unsecured revohvng focilty ngreement with 13 financial mstiutions, with Barcloys Bank ple acting as Agent This revohang
foafity con be drown to en aggregate kmu of £738 millon and ts avallable until 27 September 2018



The Group alsa has @ §250m working copial foality with Mike Ashley which can be drawn down on request The facity was agreed ot marker terms of s incephion and 1 nai secured
ogainst ony faced ossets At year end no bolence wos due

The Group continues to aperate comfortobly withi s banking fociines and covenonts
The carrymg amounts and foir volue of the berowangs ore not matenally different
Nes debt a1 26 Apnl 2015 was €59 7m (27 Apnl 2014 £212 Om)

24. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
The Group’s defined benefil pension obirgations selote to Dunlop Slezenger Group Holdings Umited (*DSGHL"), which wos acquired en 28 jonuary 2004 DSGHL operates o number of
plans worldwide, the largest of whuch is of the funded defined benefir type The Scheme has been closed fo new members since 2005

The amaunts for the curent and previous four penods followng the acquisinon of DSGHL ore as follows

26 Aprd 2015 27 dd 2014

(E000) (£°000)

Totol fou volue of plan assets 59939 49,498
Prasent vohoe of plon babiities {74,808) {64,848)
Net plon obligations {14,869) {15,350}
Expenence odpstments on plon Bobites 1,226 {46)
Expenence odpstments on plan assels $719 3,906

The cumulative omoued of actuanal gains and lesses recognsed i etfer comprehiensive mcome o ot 26 Apnl 2015 was an actuanal loss of £12,688,000 {2014 octuonal loss of
£10,195,000)

There wese no unrecognised actusnal gains or losses or past senwce costs as of 27 Apnl 2014 or 26 Apal 20§53

Amounts recognrsed 1 the income statement ore os follows

57 woeks esded
26 Aprl 2015 27 deck 2014
(£000) (£7000)
Cuttent service cast 2 22
Nes nterest expense 332 547
353 569
The current service cost 1s encluded within cost of sales The net nterest expanse 15 included within finance costs
Amounts recognised 1 other comprehensive ncome 15 as follows
52 waeks wnded
26 Apri] 2015 77 hed 2014
{£7000) (2000
Actoal return on scheme ossets excuding emounts inchaded in net interest ncome 1,226 (46}
Actvaniol (osses)/gawns reloting to plon obiiies (9,719 3,906
(2,493) 3,860
The octual retum on plon assets for the 52 weeks ended 26 Aprl 2015 wos 0 gan of £9,377,000 (2014 goin of £3,855,000)
The moverments m the farr value of plan assets ore os follows
52 wesks anded
26 Aprl 7015 W hpd XU
{£000) (5000)
At the stort of the penod 49498 47 411
interes! mcome based on dscount 1nte 215 1,901
Actvong] gom,/ (loss) 176 (46)
Emgloyer contributions 2718 2,708
tmgloyee confributions iz 12
Benedits paid out (1,666} {2.488)
41 the end of the penod 59,939 49,498

The Group expects to contribute §£2,720,000 to s defined benefit pensian plons for the 52 weeks ended 24 Apnl 2015

n
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FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

The plun asset mix wos os follows

26 Apel 2015 27 kel 204
(£000) {£000)
Fqutties 27 867 212 807
Bonds 31,503 26,313
Cash ond other 569 378
59,939 49 498
s The foi velues of the obove investments ore derermined bosed on publicly aveslable market pnces wherever ovadable Unquored mvestments ore stoted o1 forr volug sshimates prowided by
§ the manager of the investment of fund
§ The principal assumphons undarying the acugnal assessments are
26 Apel 2015 27 hoel 2004
g {%) (a
E Inflation rate 32 34
Future pension mireases 31 33
; Discount rate 33 43
8
& Mortality assumghans
P 26 Apell 2015 27 dnd 2014
g Life expectoncy af 65 of penod end
Futsre pensioners — moke 878 871
Future pensioners — female 903 902
Cuwirent pensioners — male 861 860
Current pensioners — female 88 4 883
Sensiinity Anakysis
80 im % thenn
Liability at 26 Apnl 2015 149
Sensitvity of 0 5% increcse fo
Discount rate (58 (389
Retod prce inflotion ard salory mncreases 38 255
Increase n long-term mortality rote of improvement fo 1 5% pa (from 1 25%) (3] (7 4)
The movements n the present value of the plon labilines ore as follows
26 Aprdl 2015 27 ford 2014
{£°000) 2 000)
At the start of the penod (64,848) {67,351)
(urrent service ot (21) (20
Interest cost (2,483) (2,429)
Actuanal (oss) / goin @1y 3,904
Employee conributiens {12} (2}
Benefits poid out 1,666 2488
Exchonge goin 609 806
Acquisitions (note 29) (2,234)
At the end of the penod 74,808 {64,848)
The net mgvements in the net prasent value of the plan lrbihises were os folows
52 wesks ended
6 Apel 2015 77 hped 2014
(€000} {000}
Net fiobility ot the star of the penod {15,350) {19.940)
Mavement in for value of plan mssets 10 441 2,087
Movernents i the prasent value of the plon fiabilires (9.960) 2,503
Net lisbifty af the end of the penod {14,869) {15,350)

In oddimon to the omounts secognised m relohon fo the defined benefit erement plans, emounts of £1,207,000 ond £1,363,000 have been secogmsed 1n the ncome siarement for the
penods ended 27 Apnl 2014 ond 26 Apnl 2015 in refotion to defined contnbunion retrement benefit plons



The weglled avesage yeors durction of the defined benefit abligaon ot 24 Apnl 2015 s 78 3 yeors (2014 29 3 yeps)

25. DEFERRED TAX ASSET AND LIABILITIES

Aconats depreddtion Tax bosses Peasion plan Other tenporary
ding ttx ik obBirses dffornces Yool
depeciation (£'000) {€°000) 1£600) (E000} {€°000}
A1 28 Al 2013 2400 (461 6,601 14,434 22974
Credded / (chorged) to the income stotement 2,142 (24) (275 {4,393) {2,550
Credded to the statemest of othes comprehensive income (698) {4,170) {4,868)
(redited 1o reserves m respett of Shore Scheme (1,214) {11,219
Arsing on acquisiion 2,742 2,741
A1 27 April 2014 4,542 2,257 5,628 (5,343) 7,084
Credited / (charged) 4o the income statement 5,230 4,749 {3,178 18 1119
Credited / (charged) to the statement of ather compichensve moome 54 (17,128) (17 204
Credited fo reserves in resped of Shoie Stheme 1,266 1,266
Al 26 Aprl 2015 9,772 7,006 754 (21,488} {1,736)
26 April 2015 7 i 2004
{£°000} {£000)
Deferred fax ossefs 38,352 31,130
Deferred tox fisbilities (40,088) (24,046}
Net deferred tox bolonce (1,736) 7,084

The tox rate wsed to mensure the deferred tox assefs ond Jabdines wos 20% on the bosis this was the tux rate thot wos substontively enacted af the balonce sheet dafe

Defened tox assets are recognised for tax losses recoveruble and pensron plan Hobilities to the extent that realisation of the relnted tox benefit 15 probable on the basts of the Group's

current expecrations of huture toxgble profits

Inchsded wiihen other temparary differences s o deferred tox asset  relonon fo the Shere Scheme and o deferred rox libiliy recogmsed on orher mtangible assets upan ecqusition

The deferrad tax effects of the ocquisimons mode in the year were cansidered and 1t was determined that these was no meteral impact on the Group or the fou value of ret ossets

acquued
26. PROVISIONS
Onerous contracts
other
Difapidations propecty cosls Totd
(E000) {E000) {E1000}
Ar 27 hpl 2014 33,643 3,937 37,780
Ameunts provided 5,291 4349 10,640
Amounts ulilised (624) (3149 {3,173)
Amounts raversed {2,330) {4 51 (6,942)
At 26 Apet 2015 37,180 525 37,105

The dilopidations provision s the best estimate of the presens vaue of expendituse expected to be meursed by the Group in order to sofisfy its obhigotions to restore dfs leasehold premrses
to the condition sequired under the tease agreemants ot the end of the Jease discounted ot 5% per annum  The provision s expected to be unlsed over the perad ta the end of each
specfic lease

The pravision #n respect of onereus fense contracts sepresents the net cost of fuliiing the Group's obganions over the terms of thesa conlocts dscounted ot 5% per annum The prowsion
ts expected fo be utised over the period to the end of each specic leose

The unwinging of the dsscount on provision over hme passes through the income stotement

8
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(o) FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
The camying volues of fnancicl assets and liabilines, which are pnoigally denominated in Stering or US Dollars, were 0s follows

Assets at feir
Loes ond voloe tircogh  Avallcble for soht
receiveliles profit and dots tinondd essats  Noo-finanddl asiets Toed
(€900 (000} {£000) (1000} (67000
ASSETS - 2015
Property, plant and equipment 422742 422742
Intangible ossets 255,364 255,364
Investmens i assocated undertokings 38,133 38,133
Avenkable-for-sole financial assefs 140,795 140,795
Defecred tox assets 38,352 38,352
Inventores 517,054 517,054
Desvatwve finoncial ossefs 92199 92199
Tode and other recevables 65,335 125,391 190,726
{ash and cosh equivalents 78,318 78,318
143,653 92,199 140,795 1,397,036 1,773,683
ASSETS - 2014
Property, plont and equipment 412361 412361
Intongible assats 255,109 255,109
lavestments m ossougted vndertokings 41,763 41,763
Rventoble-for-sate financm? assets 116,504 114,504
Deferred tax ossels 31,130 31,130
Inventones 565,479 565,479
Berwatwe finonciol assets 4355 4355
Tiode and other recenvables 40851 62,163 123,014
Cosh ond cosh equwolents 151,024 151,024
211,875 4,355 116,504 1,368,005 1,700,73%
Liekilities ot koir
wadve through prolit Nor=linancial
Logns ond paycbles and loss Bobilithes Total
1£000) (£/000) (£°000) {£°000)
LIABILITIES - 2015
Nom-curient borowings 136,849 134,849
Retirement benelit obligahons 14,869 4,869
Deferred tax habities 40,088 40,688
Provisions 37,705 37,705
Demvotrve financel fiabifities 5,629 5429
Trads and other payobles 170,090 170,846 340,936
Current borowmgs 1,204 1,204
Current tox linbifities 34,852 34,852
308,143 5,629 298,360 612,132
LIABILITIES - 2014
Notrutrent boriowings 6,764 §,764
Retirement benefa obbgations 15,350 15,350
Defenred tox fiabltios 24 045 24,046
Provisions 37,780 37,180
Demvatrve finoncio) Babiities 18,665 18,465
Trads ond other payables 239 463 152,556 392,019
Curent borrowings 356,226 354,226
Cument fax hobliies 32335 32,335
602 453 18,665 262067 883,185

Corryng velues do not matenally difer from far volue




FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
The Group uses the follgwing higrarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of finoncial wstruments by valuohon technigue

e level 1 quoted (unadiusted) prices in acfve markets for eniial assets of lighiliies,
o level 2 other techniques for which alf inputs which have o significont effect on the recarded foir value ore observable, either directly or indirectly, ond
o level 3 rechmgues winch use nputs which have o significont effect on the recorded fou valve that are not besed on abservable morket dato

As ot 26 April 2015, the only financiol nstruments held at forr value were Darvairve financiol ssets and liobifites, which are clossified os Level 2, and Availobledorsafe financil assets,
which gre clossified s bevel 1 except For Highlond Group Heldings, which s clussified os Leve! 3 Hightand G:oup Holdings s held of management’s estimate of the fair volue of the
entespnse based an publficly availoble data A 1% mcrease wn profitalyility for the company would result in 6 £0 3m increase 1n volue

The vafunian of Dervetive fingrcral ossets and habeines 1s pesformed using an ophon vahuenon model, besed on the market dota evaifable at the balonce sheet date, depending on
whether the mstument & o foreign exchange or on equity denvotve

The Group has entered mro o rumber of put options referencing sted company shares To the extent that the market pnce of these sheves & less than on ogreed prce on expay of the
put option, the Group has the night to elect whether 1o settle the put option by acquinng ordinary shares or, by peying the cash settlement value of the put option Sports et s required
1o transfer cosh coleteral fo cover its abligations under the Put Ophon The amount of collateral required dunng the fe of she Put Ophan can increase or decianse by refarence to the
undedying morket pace of the shares

(b) DERIVATIVES: FOREIGN CURRENCY FORWARD PURCHASE CONTRACTS

The most signrfcont exposure fo foreign exchenge fluchuations relotes to purchases made in fereign cumencies, panaipally the US Dollar The Group's policy & to reduce substonnally the
15k associeted with Foreign curvency spot rates by usmg forward fxed sute curency puechas confratts, toking info eccount any foreign urrency cash flows The Geoup does o hold of
issug deqwative finoncial mstruments for troding purposes, howaver if dervattves do not quaify for hedge accounting they ore accounted for s such and accordingly ony gain o loss

recogised immediately 1 the income stotement

The carrying volues of forward foreign currency purchase contracts were os follows

26 Aprli 2015 77 el 7014

{£000) (5.000)

Faw volue of denvative fmanoal metuments  assets 92,199 4355
Far vodue of dervatve financal mstruments — (liabifities) {5,629) {18,645}

The sterling prinenol amounts of forward foreign cumency purchase contracrs ord contracted forward cates were s follows

24 Aackt 2015 77 ool 2014

{£/000) (€ 000)

US Dollar purchasas 418,561 540,349
Controcted mies 154-171 161-171

At 26 Apiil 2015 £419m of forward US Dollor conircts qualifed for hedge eccounting and the gain on faur valuation of these conmodis of £84m has thesefore heen recognised in other
comprehensive mcome This emount 5 split between a profit of £77m recognised in the pesod and @ profit of £7m reclossified n the penod

Forward foreign cunrency purchose and safe controcts generally heve o matunty of ncepion of appraximetely 12 menths At 26 Apnl 2015 £419m of purchose controcts had a matunty
at ncephion of greater than §2 months (2014 £245m of purchase contracts}

(¢) SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

FOREIGN CURRENCY SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The Group’s pancmnel foreign cureency exposures are fo US Dolfars end the Eurg The table below ustrates the hypotheiical sensitwaty of the Group’s reported profit and equsy fo o

5% icrense and decrease m the US Doflor / Sterling and Euro / Sterling exchange rates af the yeor end date, ossuming all other varibles remarn unchanged Fhe higures have been
cakulored by comporing the Far values of outstending foreign currency conracts af the current exchange rofe to those i exchange rates moved os lustroted The income staiement higures
inchude the profit effect of any relevont demvatves which are not n a designated cosh flow hedge The impact on US Dollar related hedging nstruments 15 incleded in equity

Possve figures represent on ancrease / (decrease) w profit or equity

bocorwe statemet Eqity
26 Apefl 2015 27 hped 2014 25 Apdl 1015 7 R 2014

{£°000} (£000) (£7000} (£ 00D)
Sterding strengthens by 5%
US Dobor (174 B12 (991) (5,205)
Furo (1,650) 2,218 {1,650) 2,218
Sterfing weakens by 5%
S DoBar 813 {852} 1,041 5,465

furo 1,732 {2,319) 1,732 {2,329
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INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The following toble ilustrotes the hypothehcel sensimaty of the Group’s reported profir and equity fo o 0 5% merense or decraose in inserest rates, assurmng oll other vanables

were unchanged
The analysis has been prepared using the following ossumphions

« For floatng rate assers and fiobafines, the emount of osset or fiobifity outstanding of the belance sheet date s ossumed fo have been gutstonding far the whole year

» Fixed rote finonciol imstruments thot are carned at omortised cost are riot subject to interest rate nsk for the purpose of ths analysis

Posifive fiqures represent an increase i profit or equity

Incoos st anwet tqlly
25 Aprd 2015 27 kel 2014 26 Aped 7015 77 ke 014
{£'000) {£7000) {£°000} (5000}
Intetest rate maease of 0 5% (630} (1,690} {690) (1,630)
Interest rate decrease of 0 5% £%0 1,690 690 1,690
{d) LIQUIDITY RISK
The table below shows the matunty analyss of the undiscounted remaining contrachyal cosh flows of the Group’s financa! Lobities
Luss thay | yeor 1102 yeurs 2105 years Over 5 yoats Tote
{£'000) {£°000) (€000} (£'000) (£°000}
2015
Bank foans and overdiafts 1,204 135,271 5617 142,158
Trode and other payobes 170,090 170,090
Derrvotive financial Babilities
Cosh inflows (513,393} (118,040} (631,433}
Cash outflows 439,416 105,447 544 863
97317 122,684 5477 775 678
2014
Bonk loans ond overdiofts 356,226 1,731 5,237 363,193
Trade and othet payables 239,463 239,463
Dervatwe finoncial fiabdines
Cash nflows {401,718) (105,177} {506,895
Cash quiflows 414,775 105,263 520,039
608,747 1817 5,237 515,800
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The copital structure of the Group consists of equity attrbutable ta the equity holders of the parent, compromising 1ssued share capttal, share pramuum and retmned eammgs and cash

and borrowings

(15 the Group's pekicy to maintain o steeng capital bsa 5o o5 to mamtom investor, creditor ond market confidence and 1o sustam the development of the business

(n sespect of equty, the Board hos deaded that, i order to maximise flexibility 1 the neor term with regards to o number of morgamc growth apportumities under review, not 10 esfurn any

cash by woy of o dwidend of this ime

The Board 15 committed fo keeping this policy under review and 1o looking to evalunte elternatve methods of refurming cosh 1o sharebolders when appropnate

The obyective of the Share Scheme 15 to encourage employee shore ownership and to knk employee’s remunerahion to e performance of the Compary It is not designed os o meaas of

menagiag capitol

I respect of cosh and borrowings the Boord regularly monutors the reno of net debr to undedying EBITDA, the warking capital regquirements ond forecosted cash flows however nio
mumEmLm o1 maximum rahies ore sef The o for net debt 1o reported underlying EBITDA , excluding charges for the Share Schemes, 15 016 (2014 0 44) The obyective s to keep this

figure below 2 5

Based on thes nnalys:s, the Bonrd determmes the appropriate return fo equuty holders whilst ensunng suffinent copital & retomed withm the Group to meet its strategue objecives, mehuding

but not imited to, ocqussition opporuniss

These copitaf management policies have remamed unchanged from the prior year




28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

26 Apell 2015 27 el 2014
{£000) {£900)
Trade payobles 170,090 239,463
Amounts owed 1o reloted undertakings 191 2
Other taxes inchuding socil secury cests 31,365 22,230
Other payables 17,479 10,263 o
Aeruals 121,811 120,041 g
340,736 392019 g
The Drrectors consider that the camyng amount of rode gnd gther payables opproximates to thew lorr volug ﬁ
=
E
29. CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES g
52 weeks saded
6 Apell 2015 27 kgl 2014
{£°000) 000} :
Profit before taxation 313,446 239452 E
et Fmance costs 802) 18,962 g
Other investment ncome (14,104) (7,010
Shace of profits of assovated urdertakings (2,959 {2,268)
Operating picht 295,581 249131
Depracration™ 62,924 56,963
Amortsation* 12,725 6,832
Imparment 5314 5,815
Profit on disposal of miongibles 107
Defined benefit pension plon current service cos Al 2
Defed benefd pension plan employer contributions {2,718) {2,708) 85
Share-based payments 10,105 14,907
Operoting cosh wflew belore thonges n working copital 384,059 327,981
Increase in recervables {66,368) {18,241)
Decrense/{inrease) m inventonies 49,320 (52,521}
Decreass in payebles {52 349) {34,435)
Cosh nflows from operating attvities 314,662 222,785
*£13,300,000 of deprec:ation ond amortisonion 15 included within Excephional tems
30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
B at 26 Aprl 2015 the Group hod outstanding commitments for future manimurm lease payments under non-<ancellable opesanng leases, which fall due os follows
26 Aprll 2015 7 hord 7014
1£000} (£°000)
LAND AND BUILDINGS
Within one yeor 121,749 99,041
In the second 1o ffth years inchuisve 397,054 329143
After fve yeors 330,118 242297
848,921 670,501

The leoses hove vorying terms, escalation clouses ond renewo nghts These are no clauses i relanon ta restnchons concerning dmidends, addinona! debt ond further leasing within our
portiolio. Confngent rents are payable on certum store leoses based on store sevenue For those leoses thak ore tumoverelated lenses, the annual net lease commitment i cokculored
using the eshimited leose lgbilty and eny changes i the rental charge are occounted for when known Amounts of £1,598,000 (2614 £2,213,762) were charged o the income

statement 1n relohon fo confingent rent

The Group sublets certam stund-olone et stores whuch ase no longes operated by the Group The property rental income eamed dunng the 52 weeks ended 26 Apnl 2015 was

£4,832.000 (2014 £6,118,000)
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As it 26 Apnl 2015, the Group hod contracts with subrtenants for the fallowing future minmum legse rentals

26 Apefl 015 2 hped 20M
(£°000}

(£°000}

LAND AND BUILDINGS
Withia one yent 3,249 5,800
In the second to léth yeors nchiswe 10,847 17,812
Mftet five yeors 10,136 22,388
24,231 46,000

31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group hod coptel commutments of £26,899,000 o5 ot 26 Apnl 2015 (2014 SN} i relohon to the construction of our Shirebrook warehouse

32. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

There were no matenat confingen assess or hobiines of the bolance sheet dote

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has raken advantge of the exempnons conioined wathin WS 24 “Related Party Disclosuses” from the requuement to disclose transachons between Group componies os these
hove been eliminoted on consolidaton

The Group entered into the following matenal transactons with reloted porties

52 weeks ended 76 Apnl 2015
e end ot
Sales Puxchases el bode and ether poyghies
Reltonshy (£'000) (£7000) {£060) {5000}
RELATED PARTY
Heatons Kssoiwote 29,472 4926
The Flanneks Group Limited Subsidiary 18,814 19,825 4,865 1,246
Brasher Lawure Limsted hssocinte 12,482 5057
MST Sports Subshary 3 74699
Rangers Retall Levuted Subsdiory 3834 44]
Robsnsons Country Lessure Limited Subsidiory 231 482 3,251
Sandico Professional Limied Subsuliary 0 1,061 2,691
Newcostle United Football (b Connetted persons 2417 205
Yeomans Qutdoors Limsed Subswliary 38 3,027
Heoven or Hell Limited Subsidiary 2,152 2,58
Queensdown Assockales Limited Assouiote 981 1,149

52 weeks ended 27 Apnl 2014

Trode end other Trade end othar

Reftionship Salas (£°000)  Purchases (£'000) Recelvebles (E000)  paysbles (£7000)
RELATED PARTY
Heatons Associate 28,759 5,21
The Flannals Group Limitad Subsidiary 15,600 13414 9,898
Brashes Letsurs Limited Associate 11,508 0% 2,11
MST Sports Subsadiary 270 2,768
Rangers Retol Lisuted Subsidiary 3,843 234
Robinsons Country Lessure Limuted Sebsidiary 83 61 1,816
Sondro Professionof imted Subsidiary 54 478 1,370 109
Newastle Uneted Football Club Connected persons 3,395 337
Yeomans Qutdoors Umnad Subsidiary 30 2,884
Heaven or Hell Lamited Subsidiary 2,850 661 2,587
Queensdown Assoiotes Umited Assouate 823 948

On &th October 2014, the Group made o drawdown of £40 millon on the £250 million loan faciiy thar s held with Mike Ashley through hs wholly awned entity Mash Holdings ismuted
Thus wos fuly repord on 20th October 2014




The Group made further drowdowns of £50 milion ond £50 milfion on 31st October ond 26h November 2014 respectvely and mode repayments of £90 milion on Tth Apnl 2015 ond

£40 milfion on 22nd Apnl 2015 At the yeor end date no balance wos dus

The Group has agreemets with Rangers Retoll Limited and Newcastle United Faatboll Club, omangst ather footbatl clubs, whereby the Group provides procurement and warehousing
servces on beholf of the club Al soles ore recerved directly by the clubs and sales disclosed obave relate solely to goods bought from the Group af cost phus o smoll hisndiing fee

All refated porty raasacions ware underroken on an orms length bass

26 Apifl 2015 27 hprd W4
{E'000) {57000)

KEY MANAGEMENT, EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMPENSATION
Satnes ond shorterm benefils 1,362 1,435
Share-bosed payments 988 2,003
Total 23710 3438

34, ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

The Group s controlled by Mike Ashley through his 100% shoreholding n MASH Betn Limited and MASH Holdings Limited, which own 303,507,460 {5071% of the ssued ordinary
share capital of the Compony) and 26,492,540 (4 43% of the sssued erdinary share copiéal of the Company) ordinory shures respectively

35. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

There were no matenal post balonce sheet events after 26 Aprif 2015 up to the date of sigaing of these accounts

36. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
The subsidiary undertakings of the Company ot 26 Aprl 2015 were os follows

EVERYTHING IS CHANG!NG ..
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COUNTRY OF COMPANY PERCENTAGE OF ISSUED
NAME INCORPORATION NUMBER SHARE CAPITAL HELD
3237303 Conada Inc (onoda 3237303 100
Acre 653 Limifed Englond & Walas 4579745 100 87
Activator Brands Limited England & Wales 5344658 100
Actvator Products Limited England & Weles 4204611 100
Auive Apparel New Corp United $1ates 3270168 100
American Fitness Products Inc United States 346835 100
Antigua Enterprses Inc United States 26660 100
4P Brands Holdings [td Mataysio 49214 100
Beouty Biond Management Limied England & Wales 5258421 100
Bellatrix Associates Limned Isle of Man 111671¢ 100
Bellatrix Holdings Unkrnited Isle of Mon 111670 100
Brands £ Fashion NV Belgum 0477995412 100
Bronds 001 Limuted England & Wales 5347540 100
Broads Afrka Limited England & Wales 6836765 100
Bronds Holdings Limeted England & Wales 4087435 100
Bronds In¢ brmded England & Wales 3585719 100
(afico Comercio de Artigos de Desporios S & Portugal 503751804 50
Compn Limited Englond & Woles 5398677 100
Corlton Shuttlecocks Limiied England & Wales 480582 100
Corlton Sports Compony Limded Englond & Woles 457686 100
(DS 1P SA Bekgrom 406461077 100
Ckmber & Rombler Limeted Englond & Woles 3936618 160
{russe Clothing Limeted Scotland S(382991 100
Dowvd Geoffrey & Assocotes (LK) Limdted fnglond & Wles 670530 100
Duect Fishing Limited Fngland & Wales 8203469 100
Donngy Internctional ¥ V Befgum 435392220 100
DSGL Sponsoiship Lmited England & Wales 9395468 100
Dunlop Avshafio Limied England & Woles 9217409 100
Dunlop Brands Limuted Fngland & Wales 5794296 100
Dunlop Footwear Limeted Frgland & Wales 571672 100
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Dunlop International Limeted Englond & Wales 4825179 100
Dunlop Licensing Limted Fngland & Woles 6836773 100
Dunlep Slozenger (ESOP) Limited England & Woles 3408458 100
Dunlop Skazengar Far Easf) Sdn Bhd Maloysio 2070371 100
Dunlop Skazenger (HX) Limited Hong Kong 65306 100
Duskop Slazenger (Phaippimes) Inc Philppines SEC1 60084 100
Dunlop Slazenger 1902 Limred England & Wales 4983558 100
Dunlop Slazenger Group Holdings bimited fagland & Woles 4061715 100
Dundop Skozenger Group bmuted fnglond & Wales 3097917 100
Dunop Shzenger Holdmngs I tinited Stotes 2596048 100
Dunlop Slazenger Holdings Limited England & Wales 3139917 100
Dunlop Slozenger Intermational Limkted England & Wales 176384 100
Dunlop Slozenger intemahenal SA Fronee 39281229300034 100
Dunlop Slozenger Limeted England & Wales 2030941 100
Dunlop Stozenger Limited Hong Kong 2002 100
Dunlop Slozenger Sports (Singapors) PTE Limided Smgapore 198203096N 100
Dunlop Sazenger Trust Compoany Limited England & Wales 3151573 100
Dunlop Spert GmbH Germany HRB5726 100
Dunlep Sports Company Lmrted Englond & Wales 429750 100
Dundop Sports Gioup Amencas Inc Umted States 2047393 100
Fastchance Linwted Hong Kong 174348 100
Fiodl Setvices Limtted England & Wales 5146997 100
Furopenn Branded Cleorance Company Limuted England & Wales 4359910 100
Everost Austioho Linated Enghand 8 Walos 8103912 100
12196) (43

Evarlast Finess Mg Cop Untted States (1865535} 100
Everlast Sports Intermotionol Inc Corp United States 132611380 100
Everlast Sports Mfg Corp United States 131804772 100
Everlast Warld Boxing Heodquorters Corporation United States 131804773 100
Everlast Warldwide Acquistiions In¢ Umited States 4379232 100
Everlost Worldwida inc Untad States 133672716 100
Exsposts Limuted Englond & Wales 7779040 100
Femiger And Blockburn Limited England & Wales 639594 100
Field & Tiak (UK) Lrd England & Wales 5622517 100
Field & Trek Com Lirnited Enghond & Walss 3943377 100
Firettap Limited England R Wales 6836684 100
Foraver Medio imvied Englond & Wales B249185 100
Forever Spotts lited Englond & Wales 9489811 100
Gaelic Boots Limted RO! 520848 100
Gelert iP Limited England & Wales 8576185 100
Geled Lienrted England & Wales 8576204 1)
Golddigga Bronds Limited Englond & Wales 6636173 100
Goudie Squosh intemational Limted Englend & Walas $80461 100
Gendidges Lirnited Englond & Woles 278122 100
Graduate Cothng Limited fnglond & Wales 2511038 N

Gul IP Lrmeted Englond & Woles 8612478 100
Gul Watersports Limeted Enghond & Wales 7589716 100
Heslons Limited Ireland 1229 50

Heoven of Hell Liifed Englond & Woles 5899282 51

HK Sports & Goff Akitebolag Sweden 558510:8189 100
Hot Tuna IP Limsed Englond & Wales 6836792 100
[BML Broad Sences SA (Pry} {mdted South Afnca 2006/016700/07 100
International Brand Management Lmited Englond & Wales SHN3 100
Jarmes Uliywhias Limifed Englond & Wales 118840 100
Kangol Holdings Limuted Englond & Wales 3317738 100




Kengol imifed Englond & Woles 3343793 100

Kool Trusiees Limded Englond & Wales 3505512 100

Kammor brrted Englond & Wales 5215974 100

Lo fofla {(UK) Limited Englond & Wales 5737550 100

lillywhites Lirmted Englond & Wales 290939 100

Litesome Sportswear limited England & Wales 207867 100 :
Lonsdale Australia Limited fagland & Woles 7665885 100 e
lonsdols Boxng Lmaed fogond & Weles 3912303 100 2
lonsdds St Lted fngerd & Woles 4430781 100 g
Mosters Holders Limsted England & Wales 8787718 100 ﬁ
Megovalue com Limed Englond & Wales 9544685 100 E
Megovaluedired! com Limrted Englond & Wales 9545879 100 =
Hississippt Monufactunng LtC Unred States 370413 100 =
MST Sparts Retod Sdn Bhd Mohoysio 925116 51

Muddylos Lted Englond & Wales 4187350 100 1
NDS et keknd 630121760 100 B
Hawco IP [imated fglnd & Wales 6836778 100 g
Mo Fear Brond Limited England 8 Woles 5568043 100

No Fear Infernational Lirmuted England & Woles 5532482 100 E
No Fear USA lfmted Englond B Woles 172470 100

0eo 10 limrted England & Wales 5541144 100

Olynrpus Ventures imited England R Wales 3945752 100

Outdoor Sports uiect Limrted Englond & Wales 2780756 100

P W P Sparibese Limied Englond & Wales 1933891 100

Poddle Sport Loruted Englond & Wales 6836690 100

Propelfer (HX) Lirnuted Hong Kong 415094 100 5
Propeller (U K } Limted Englend & Woles 2770207 100

Queensberry Boxmg (P Limited Englend & Woles 7929363 100

Oueensberry Rules Umeted Englend & Wales 6723660 100

Rongers Refoi} Limuted Englond & Wolas 8142409 74

Rangers Retail Rights Linuted Englond & Woles 9210817 100

Republic IP Limsted England & Woias 5635015 100

Republic com Retol Limuted Englend & Wales 8248997 100

Robinsons Country Lessure Limited Engtend & Wales 1204722 51

S&8 Brands Limited England & Woles 5635585 100

SD Equestiien bimited England & Waoles 84692780 100

SO Outdoor [P Limuted England & Wales 8540252 100

SD Gutdoor Limized England & Walas 8560260 5]

SDBZSA Belgum (848 964 388 100

SOI {Aberwystwyth} Limited England & Wales 2789996 100

SDI (Auntree) Limited Englond & Wales 3352462 160

SO (Ashford) Limited Enghand £ Wales 7348460 100

SO (Ashington) Limsted England & Wolss 7849231 160

SO1 (Ayr) Limded England £ Woles 5528267 100

SO {Bangor) bimuted Englond & Wales 5529705 100

DI {Barrow in Furness) Limuted England & Wales 7851574 100

D! {Basiidon) Limted Englond & Woles 8512592 100

SO {Beddgelert) Loneted England £ Wales 8577551 100

SO1 {Berwck) Limated Englond & Wales 2739957 100

SDI (Betws-y{oed) Limuted fnglond & Woles 5836673 100

SDI (Birkenheod) Limited Englond & Wales 7849198 00

D% {Bishop Autkland) Limated England & Woles 3004246 100

SDi {Budgwater) Lirnuted England & Woles 7852061 100

SDI {Brook EU) Lmated Enpland & Woles 9336830 100
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S01 {Brook ROW) Lireted Englond & Wales 9336806 100
SOI (Brook UK) Limited England & Wales 9340379 100
SDI {Burton) Limied Englond £ Wales 8495632 100
SDI {Codisle) Limated Englond & Wales 71851959 100
SOk {Chatham) Livuted England & Wales 6836679 100
SOI {Clocton) Limited Englond & Wales 7852078 100
SDI {Cokhester) Limdted Englond & Wales 5632790 100
SI {Dunfermfine) binuted Englond & Wales 8483679 100
SDi {East Kilbnde) Lirnted Englond & Woles 6656368 100
SD1 (Epsom) Limited England & Wales 6372181 100
SDI {Exmouth) Limited Englond & Wales 4326505 100
SPI (Fulham) Limated England & Wales 7857037 100
SDI {Gansborough) Limited England & Wales £338%07 100
S} (Goloshieks) Limvted England & Wales 7852091 100
SD1 (Gloucester) Limited England & Woles 7852067 100
S01 {Hontlepool) Lirnded England & Wales 8972499 100
SOI (Hostings) Lineted England & Wales 8625893 100
SOi {Holeo) Lmited England & Woles 8319960 100
SD1 {vy) \ Lomsted England & Woles N77160 100
SDI {vy) 2 Limsted Englond & Woles 9127316 100
SDI {vy) 3 Limuted Englond & Wales 9127170 100
SO (bvy} 4 Limuted Englond & Wales 9127387 100
SDI by} 5 Limuted Fnglond & Wales 9127295 100
SDI vy} b Limited Fnglond & Walss 9127266 100
SOl {hy) 7 Limited Englond & Wales 9127286 100
SBA (heyd § Limuted England & Woles 9127300 0
SB1 {Kenghley) Limited England & Wales 4260239 100
01 {Xendcl) United Enghand & Wales 6338918 100
SO1 {Kiddermunster) Limvted England & Wales 9203731 100
SBI {Ksdmornock) Limited England & Wales 7853433 100
SDI {Kurkealdy) Limited England & Walss 7852097 100
SOl {Leeds) Limiied England & Wales 9293515 100
SDI {Lowastoi) Limsed England & Wales 7852265 100
SDI (Neath) bimited England & Walas 7853548 100
SDI (New {avendish Stieat) Limided England & Walas 6306917 100
SD1 (Newark) Lruted England & Walas 7853470 100
SDI (Newport) diruted Engtand & Weles B679H18 100
SDI (Newton Abbot} Limited England & Wales 6836666 100
SOt (Northampton) Limited tngland & Walss 7857272 100
SDI {Nuneaton) Limied England & Walas 785724% 100
SDI (Oswestey) Limited Englond & Wales 7852363 100
SDI (Posley) Liuted England & Walas 2933408 100
SDI (Penzance) tinuted England & Wales 7852297 100
SOl (Petertes) Limited Enghind & Woles 7852400 100
SDI (Phymeuth) Lireted England & Woles 9470448 100
SDI (Poole) Lienited Englond 8 Woles 5656295 100
5D (Romsgote) Lrmied England & Woles 7852250 100
SO {Redear) Limited England B Woles 2731452 100
SDI (Rolle St) Limited England § Wales 7852669 100
SO (Scarborough) Lirted England & Wales 6328463 100
SDI (Seunthorpe) Limited England & Woles 7852055 100
SDI (Slough) Laruted England & Wales 7852417 100
SDI (Southampton) biruted Enghand & Woles 8512480 100
SDI (St Austell) Limrted England & Wales 7857284 100
901 (5t Helens) lmated England & Wales 7852281 100




SDI (Stoflord) Limeied Inglond & Wales B568581 100
SDI (Stoke Longion) Limited England & Wales 7853877 100
SD! (Stoke Newmgton) Lmuted Englond & Wales 7852207 100
SD! {Strond) tamezed Englond & Woles 7852251 100
SDI {Sunderand) Limited Enplond & Woles §755347 100
SDI {Taunton) Limited Englond & Wales 7852191 100
SDI {The Lion Hotel) Limdted Englond & Wales 6834880 H00
SO (Wakefickd) Limvted England & Wales 8483711 100
SOl {Walsall) Limited England & Wales 7852269 300
SO (Weymouth) Lumuted England & Wales 6716652 100
SDi (Wigan) IP Lirmited England & Woles 6835407 100
501 (Wigan) Reforl Lienited England & Wales §208933 100
SBI (Wishow) Lamuted England & Wales £656365 100
SBl (Worksop) Limsted Englond & Wales 9310031 100
SO Fitness (Asmogh) Limited Englond & Wales 9038768 100
SDI Friness (Bedford) Limaied Englond & Wales 9038839 100
SDF Fitnass (Betfost} Limuted Englad & Wales 9038724 100
SDI Fitness (Brmngham) Lunited Englond & Wales 9038982 100
SDI Ftness {Bury St Edmunds) Emmrled England & Woles 9038949 100
SDI Fitness (Combndge) Lnited Englond & Wales 9038881 100
SDI Funess {Cheltenham) Linited Englond & Woles 9039840 100
SDI Fitness (Chester} Limited Englond & Wales 9038943 100
SB Friness (Cokchester) Limited Englond & Wales 903301 100
SOl Friness (Croydon} Limited Englond & Wales 9039243 100
SO Friness {Dartry) Lirrted Englond & Wales 9039023 100
SOl Fness (Epsom) Limded Englond & Wales 9035043 100
SDI Fitness (Forsham) Limited England & Wales 9039057 100
SOI Fitness (Formby) Liruted Englond & Woles $039855 100
SOk Fness (Glosgow) lmited Englond & Wales 9038811 100
SD! Fitness (Guldford) Limifed England & Wales 9039269 100
SDI Fitaess {Hove) Limifed Englond & Wales 9039030 100
SO Fitaess {(Hontngdon) Limited Englond & Wales 9039881 100
SOl Fitness (K Heath) Yimited Englond & Wales 9039717 100
SOl Fitness (K tynn) Limited Englond & Wales 9039847 100
SDI Fitness (Kettenng) Limited England & Wales 9039852 100
SO Fitness {Lincoln City) Eimuled Englond & Wales 9039331 0
SOl Frtness {Lincoln South West) Lmited England & Wales 9039319 100
SBI Fitness (Liverpool) Limuted Englond & Wales 9039347 100
SDI Fitnass {Moudstone) Lirnited Englond & Wales 9039343 100
SDI Fitness {Monchester) Limited England & Woles 9039339 100
SOl Fitness (Milngavie) Eirrated Englond & Wales 9039510 100
SDI Fitness (Newark} Limited Englond & Wales 9039640 100
SDI Fitness (Northfield) Limuted England & Wales 9039412 100
SDI Friness (Poole} Lamited Englond & Wales 9039481 100
SOl Friness (Rugby) Uimdted England & Wales $039408 100
SDI Finass {Sale) Linuted Englond & Wales 2039405 100
SO fitmess (Satishury} Lrnrted Englond & Woles 9039429 100
SD Goff Limated Englond & Wales $083512 100
SDI Iifesiyle bimited Englond & Woles 8293614 B0

SOI Meweo N 10 Lsmrted Englond & Wales B578774 100
SOl Newto No 7 bimred Englond B Wales 8158699 100
SO Mewco No 4 bimited Englond & Wales 8249185 100
S| Neweo No 5 bimited Englond § Wales 9062747 100
SDI Newro Mo B Loited Englond & Wales 8612847 100

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING ..
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SBI Newco No 9 Limifed England & Wales 8576472 100
SBi Newco Shure Lirnited England & Wales 8177495 100
SBI Properties {USA) Inc United Stotes 535872 100
SBI Properties (Wigan) Limred Englond & Wales 4836522 100
SDI Property Limited Enghand & Woles 2767493 100
S0 Refod Semvices limated Englond & Wales 8143303 100
SO1 Retarling Limided Englend & Wales 928323 100
=z 511 Shaebrook B Lrned Englend & Wales 2963169 100
E SDI Shurebwook Limited foglond & Woles 3016549 100
g D1 Shiebvook Shop lumued foged & Woles 3018710 100
; SDI com Fitness Parent Linuted Englond & Wales 9082454 100
=2 SDILS.A Balgum 810 198 636 100
s Servetonge Limued Eglond & Wales 2997208 100
SIA Sportlond Latvin 40003530961 80
g Sk and Outdoor Warehouse bnited England £ Wales 297223 100
E Slazengers Austrafio Limded Englond & Wales 9217319 100
g Slozengers bimited Fngland & Wales 116000 100
Smath & Biooks (Germany) Limeed Englond & Wales 5427463 108
§ Srth & Biooks {India) Limited fngland & Wales 2964528 100
Soth & Brooks Lirmted Fnglond & Wales 2073720 100
Suth And Brooks Group Lmted England & Woles 4079331 100
Seth And Brooks Holdings Limited Englond & Wales 4983573 100
SNO Sport Vertsiehs GmbH Austrg 272611 m 100
Sondico IP Lirried England & Wales 5546121 100
Sondio Professional Limited Englond & Woles 7258337 5t
97 Spart Eybl & Sports Experts Logistikbetmebs Gmbk Ausino 96024 m 100
Sport Fybl Holding GmbH Austrio 180095 % 100
Sportlond Eestig A S Estonio 10677712 60
Sportiand Infernationcl Group 4 S Estonin 10993195 60
Sports Commssron Limited England & Wales 4824491 100
Sports Duect Bronds Limitad Fnglond & Wales 5026039 100
Spoits Diect Estomo A S Estoni 12495656 60
Sposts Direct Holdings Limdted tngland & Wales 6464317 100
Sports Duact Hong Kong Holdings Ltd Hong Kong 1216339 100
Sports Duect Intesnationod Holdings Limited England & Walss s027131 100
Sports Duect Retall Limited England & Wales 8026013 100
Sparts Exsentals Linited England & Wales 4409470 100
Sports World Internetional Limited England & Wales §531266 100
Sports World The Netherlands BV Netherdonds 34056201 100
Sportsdirect corn Ausinic GmbH Austig 309738y 100
Sporisdirac com Betguin S A Belgumn 16 268 471 100
Sportsdirect com Cyprus bimited (yprus HE 230340 100
Sportsdirect com Czeth Republic s Lo (z2ech Republi 24268933 100
Sportsdirect com Friness Limrted Englond & Wales 9028577 100
FR27379062813
Sportsdirect com France Frante R(5375062613 100
Sportsdirect com Hungary kit Hungary 0109 936824 100
Sportsdirect com Immobiien GrbH Austna 104151 p 100
Sportsdect com |uxembourg Luxembourg 2700 3200 297 100
Sportsditect com Medio Limsfed Englond & Wales 127526 100
Sportsdirect com Polond Sp z 00 Polind 452610 100
Sportsdirect com Py Lid Austrafio 603 187 319 100
Sportsdirect com Retad (Furope) S A, Belgum 458883044 100
Sportsdirect com Retoll Limited Fngtand & Woles 3406347 100
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Sportsdiredt com Slovokio 5.0 Slovakio 47 240458 100
Spoitsdhiedt com SN do 0 Sloven 1198157000 100
Spostsdizect com Spom S LU Span 836567880 100
Sportsdnet com Switzerand A.G Switzerlond (HE-331 683991 100
556 Sport GmbH (SSD) Germany HRB 7134 100
Sterling Resounces (Holdings) Limied England & Woles 4651701 100
Stering Resouices Limited England & Wales 1413754 100
Stwings (Argyle Strest) Limrted Stotkond S0088108 100
Stiub Comoration Limuted Englond & Wales 3003584 100
Sunmercombe 167 Lid Englond & Wales 6217909 100
SWimmo Eupen SA Belgum 878673906 100
Toble Tennss Pro Europe Limied Englond & Wales 5003853 100
Taltwoy Limndted Hong Kong 323181 100
The Antigua Group Inc United States 07346794 100
The Flannels Group Limded England & Wales 2318510 51

The Trodemark Lxensing Company Limated Englond & Wales 4477829 100
Total Estates Limited England & Wales 4958714 100
UAB Sporthnd 1T {thuanio 135039836 |

Unwersal (ycles Limuted England & Woles 1339687 100
UP Bronds limeted Englond & Wales 6521633 100
US4 Pio IP Lmwted Englond & Wafes 6497914 100
USC 1P Lrnated Englond & Woles 6836808 100
USC 1o uk Retoil Limded England & Wales 8617068 100
Used Tockle Limited Englond & Wales 7989154 100
Von Mildert (Efestyle) Limited Englond & Wofes 8319959 100
Visinfigure Liifed Englond & Wales 2951233 100
Voodoo Dolls Brand Limded England & Wales 5323305 100
Watedine Angling Products Limied England & Wales 2696374 100
West Coast Capial (HOFCO) Limited Stotland 5437614 100
Westminster Manufactunng LiC United States 44358 100
Wildlow Limeted England & Wales 4571678 100
Wiiom Sykes Limuted Englond & Woles 123229 100
Woikd of Service Internationol Limied England & Wales F207465 51

World of Servxe Umited England & Wales 4020729 51

Worthyfund Limited Englond & Wales 2955978 100
YUY Limited Englond & Woles 9350127 100
Yeomans Outdoors Liomted England § Wales 8058714 51

On 13th Jonuory 2015 ane of the Group's subsidiary enniees, West Coost Capiral {USC) Limited, went into adminstohon The ossefs of she business were subseguently purchased by

Republic com Retarl Limited

9
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Sports Direct International pic will prowde o pasertal quorantee for the following Unned Kingdom seomorated subsidiones thus entitling them ta exemphon from statutory oudit under
section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006

NAME COMPANY NUMBER COMPANY RAME COMPANY NUMBER
Drect Fishmg Limited 08203463 SO {Leedsy Limited 09293515
Dunlop Australia Limded 09217409 SDI {Lowestoft) Limited 07852265
Fverdost Austrofio Limited 08103912 SDI {Neath) Landted 07853548
Gelert IP Limted (08576185 SDI {New Cavendish Street) Lirted 04306917
Gol [P Limuted 08612478 SO1 {Newark) Limited 07853470
Hot Tune IP Uirited 06836792 SDI {Newport) Limuted 08679118
SD Equestnan Limted 08692780 SDI (Newton Abbof) Limiled 06836666
SO Quidoos [P Limsted 08560252 SDI {Nosthampton) Limited 07852272
SDI (Aberwystwyth) Lmrted 02789996 SDI {Huneoton) Limded 07852249
SOI (Aintree) bimdted 03352462 SDI (Oswestry) Limied 07852363
SOI (Ashford) Limied 07848460 SDI (Passkey) Limited 02933408
SDI (Ashington) Limdted 07849231 SDI (Panzonce) Limated 07852297
SOI {Ayt) Limdted 05528267 SDI (Peterlee) Limited 07852401
SO (Bangor) imred 05529705 SDI (Pymouth) Limted 09470468
SDI (Banow in Fumess) Limited 07851574 SDI (Romsgate) Limeted 07852250
SD} {Basidon) Lameted 08512592 SDI (Redeor} Limated 02731452
SDF {Beddgelen) Lmited 08577551 SO} {Rolle 51} Limuted 07852649
SDE {Berwick) bmited 07739957 SDI (Scarborough) Limited 043284563
SOI (Batwsy+Loed) Linited 06836673 SD1 (Sounthorpe) Limifed 07852055
SDA (Birkenhead) limited 07849198 SDI (Slough) Limuted 07852417
SDI (Bishop Aucklond) Lirmsted 03004246 D! {Scuthampton) Limted 08512480
SDI (Bndgwoter) Limited 07852061 SD) (54 Austell) Limted 07852284
SDI (Burton) Limited 08495632 SD1 (St Helens) Lirtted (078521781
SOt (Corlisle} Limited 07851959 SBi (Stafford) Limited 08568681
SDi (Chathem) Limited 06836679 SDi (Stoke Longton) Limifed 07853877
SDI (Clacton) Limuted 07852078 S1 (Stoke Newmngton) imited 07852207
SOI (Cokchestes) Lirmted 056327790 SD{ (Stiood) Limited 07852251
SDF (Dunfermine) Limited 08483679 SBI (Sunderfond) Limited 08755347
SDI (East Kilbude) Limted 06656368 SO (Tounton) Linited 07852191
504 (Fulhom) Lnited: 07852037 S04 {Wakehield) Lined 08433711
SOI (Gansborough) Lmited 06338907 SO (Walsalf) Limuted (7852289
SDI {Galasheels) Limited 07852091 S0F (Weymouth) tmited 06716652
SDI (Gloutester) Liruted 07852067 SDF (Wishow) Limited (6656365
SDI (Hartlepool} Limited (08972499 SOF (Worksop) Limited 09310031
SO (Hastings) Limited 08625893 SOI Golf Lirmied (9083512
SDI (Xesghiey) Limited 06260239 SDI Property Limited 02767493
SDI (Kendal) limated 06338918 SDI Retaul Services Limited 08143303
SOI (Kddermunster) Limled 09203731 SO com Fitness Pasent Limuted 09082454
SOl {Kdmomock) Limited 07853433 Slazengers Australia Limited 09217319
SOI (Kirkealdy) Limited 07852097 Stidings (Argyle Streat) Limited 5088108




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

We have audited the pavens company Financiol Statements of Sposts Durect Internntional PLC for the 52 week peniod ended 26 Apnl 2015 which comprse the pasent company bolance
sheer and the refated nares The financiel reporhing fromework thet has been applied m the preparation of the parent company Finoncil Statements s opphcoble low ond Uited Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generolly Accepted Accounting Proctice)

Thys report s mode solely 1o the Company’s members, ns o body, in occordance wath Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companes Act 2006 Our gudst wark has been underiaken so thot we
might state fo the compony’s members those matters we ore cequired to stase fo them in on audicors report and for na asher purose To the fullest extent permised by low, we do not
accest o1 ssume responsibikty 1o anyone other thon the Company and the Company’s members as o body, for our audit work, for thes repor, o for the opmons we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

s explomned more fully in the Directors’ Resporsibiings Stotement, the dwectors ars responsible for the preparation of the Financil Statements and for bewng sansfied that they gve ¢
true ond for view Out responsibiity s to audir and express on opimion on the Financial Statements m nccordance with applicable low gnd Infernationel Stonderds on Auditing {UK and
frelond) Those standards requie us to comply wath the Audining Prochices Board's Ethicol Standords for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A descnption of the scape af on oudit of Finoncial Statements s prowided on the Finoncia Reporting Council’s website ot www frc org uk foudiiscopeukpivate

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our opinion the pazent company Financiol Starements

o gwve o rue and for view of the state of the Company's affors os of 26 Apal 2015,

e have been properly prepored i occordance with United Kingdom Genesally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compontes Act 2006

OTHER MATTER
We have reported separately on the Group Fmancial Statements of Sposts Drrect Interntional PLC for the 52 wesk penod ended 26 Apal 2015

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opmion
o the port of the Directors” Remuneranion Report fo be rutited has been prapedy prepored in accordonce with the Companies Act 2006, ard

» the mformation given 1n the Srrategrc Report and Dsectors” Report for the finanaal penod for which the Finanaaf Statements are prapared 15 consistent with the parent company
Financiol Stotements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothig o repor: m raspect of she followsng matters where she Compomes Act 200 requires us ta repart to you if, 1n our opiion

= adequate occounting records have not been kest by the porent company, of retums edequate for our oudit have ot been recewed from branches not wsited by us, or

o the parent campany Financal Stavements and the part of the Directors' Remunerahion Report to be audited are rot n ogreement with the accounting records and returns, of
» cerfen disdosures of dectors” ramuneranon spaafied by Jow ore not mode, or

» we hove not recarved ol the informancen ond explanahions we require for our cudit

Philip Westerman

Senior Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of Gront Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chortered Accountanis
Londan

16 uly 2015
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

AT 26 APRIL 2015

Notes (o) )
FIXED ASSETS
Investments ? 1,083,119 1,077,408
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 3 25,513 14,984
Cash ot bonk ond m hond 1418 186

26,931 15,170

Creditors omoonts folling due within one year. 4 {112 488} {114,018
Net current liabilities (85,557) (98,848}
Net assefs 997,562 978,560
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called wp share captol 5 64,060 54,060
Share premmm 6 574,300 874,300
Tremsury shares reserve b (56,234) (56,234}
Permanent contnbution to copitol 6 50 50
Copitol redemphion reserve b 8,005 8,005
{wn shore reserve b (13,251 {13,251
Profit ord loss sccount b 120,632 101,630
Shareholders” funds 7 997 562 978,560

The accompanying accouating polees and notes form part of these Fingaoial Statements
The Finonciol Statements were approved by the Soard on 16 July 2015 and were signed on its behalf by

Dave Forsey
(hif Executive

Company nember 06035106



NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These occounis have been prepered in accordence with applicoble Yuted Kngdom oceounting stondords A summery of the matenal aecounhing polices adopted are descnbed below

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The accounts hove heen prepared under the histonical cost convention

As permutted by Secnon 408 of the Companies At 2006, o profit and loss gecount of the Compony w not presented The Company’s profit aftes toxation for the 52 week peniod 26 Apnl
2015 wos £1,824,000 (2014 £417,000 loss)

INVESTMENTS
Frxed osset investments ore stated ot cost less oy provision for impawment

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
Loons ond recervables are recognised inmally of forr volue plus trarsaction costs less prowisian for impairment Prowsion for impearment i established when there s objectve endence that
the compary will not be able to collecr amounts due according to the engwal terms of the recevable

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trode and other payobles ore molly measured ot foir value, and ore subsequently measured of morsed cost, using the effechve interest method

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST
An Employee Benefit Frust hos been established for the porposes of satsfying certai share-based awesds The Group has ‘de facto” control aver the special purpose ennty The Trsst s fully
consolidated within the occounts

The cost of shares acquired by the Spors Direct Employee Benefit Trust s recognised wathin “Own shoreeserve’ in equity

DEFERRED TAXATION

Defened tox % provided for on o full provssion basts on ofl tming differences, which have ansen but not reversed of the bafance sheet date No hming differences are recogrssed n respect
of goms on sale of assets where these gaims have been rolfed over into replocement ossets A deferred fox asset is not recognised to the extent that the transfer of economic benefit 1n
future s more unlikely than not

Deferrad tox s coleulated on o nen-discounted bosis of the tax raies that are expected to apply in the penods in which timing differences reverse, based on tax rates and lows enacted of
substontively enacted at the bolance sheet dote

FOREIGN CURRENCIES
Items amsing from transachons denominated in foreign currencies are franslated of the rute of exchonge rubing af the date of the transaction At the bolonce sheet date all monetory assets
and habilines denominared n foreign currencies are translated a1 the closing rofe or of the rate of exchonge of which the fransactron 15 cantracted to be settled in the futwe All exchenge

differences ore recognised i the profit and loss account

DIVIDENDS
Divdends on the Compeny's ordinary shares are ecogrused os o labilty n the Company’s Financial Statements, end as a deduction from equity, i the penod in which the dwidends ore
declored Where such dvidends ore proposed subject to she approval of the Compary’s shareholders, the dwdends ere anly declored once shareholder ogproval hos been abroined

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
An equity instrument is oy conoct thot evidences a residual interest 1n the assers of the Compony ofter deducting ol of is haluies Equity instruments issued by the Compeny, with the
excepnon of those accounted for wia mesger rebef ovalleble under Sechion 612 of the Componies Act 2006, ore recerded af the proceeds recewed, net of ey diect sssue costs

INCOME FROM GROUP UNDERTAKINGS
Income from Group undertakings s recogrsed when qualifying consideranon s recewved from the Geoup underfaking

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Compony hos foken ndvonioge of the exemphon coniained n FRS 8 and hos therefore not disclosed fansachions or belances with wholly-owned subsidianes which form part of the

Group

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
The Company hus opplied the requirements of FRS 20, "Share-based Poyments™ The Company ssues equitysettied shore-bosed poyments fo certain Directors and employees of the
Company ond s subsidianes

The forr value of the share options on the date of the gront s charged o the profit and foss aceount over the vesting penod of the share option, based on the number of aptions which ore
expecied to become exercsable A comesponding adjustment s mode to equity Af each bolonee sheet dote the compony rewises its estimates of the number of ophons that are expectad
to become exercsoble and recognees the smpact of any revsion of onginal estimates i the profir and less account

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING...
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

The expeced life used m the model hos been odsted, bosed on monggement’s best estenate, for the effects of non-onsferabfity, axercise resinchons, and behawioural considerahions
A share-hosed payment chorge of £10,310,000 was recognised for the 52 waeks ended 26 Apnl 2015 based on the Directors” best eshmate of the number of shaves that will ves!

£9,901,000 of this shore-bosed payment wos rechorged to subsidiary undertakings of the Company

2. INVESTMENTS
2015
1£/000)
As ot 27 hpril 2014 1,077,408
Z ADDITIONS-
E Listed investments 45,00
g Captal contbotion in subsdiary 511
= DISPOSALS. 45,0200
—3
=
= As af 26 Apnl 2015 1,083,119
! Mone of the Company’s investements o5 26 Apnl 2015 are fisted
E The Company s the princypol holding company of the Group The pracipal subsidiary undertakings of the Compony are set out i note 34 to the Group Finanagl Statements
E Dunng the yeor the company ocquued end dsposed of €45,020,000 of shaces i Debenhams plc.
5
3. DEBTORS
2015 004
{E'000) & 000
Amounts owed by Group undertokings 318 318
Other debtors 20,891 14,512
Other toxes and souial secunty costs 125 154
o8 Prepayments 4,178
25,513 14,984
4, CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2015 o]
{000} §7000)
finda creditors 424 74)
Amounts owed o Group undertokings 111,567 112,554
hceruals 478 723
Othes taxes ond soonl secwnty cosls 21
112 488 114018
5. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
2015 214
{£000) {0000
AUTHORISED
999,500,010 ordinary shozes of 10p each 99,950 99,950
499,990 redeemable prefesence shares of 10p each 50 50
100,000 100,000
CALLED UP AND FULLY PAID
640,602 369 (2014 640,602,369) ordinary shares of 10p eoch o4 060 44 060
SHARE CAPITAL

A 27 April 2014 and 26 Aprl 2015 64,060 64,060




6. RESERVES

su.p::. Treasary shere m;% G B oy e mm.:::::

{£"060) (000} {£000)

A1 27 hpiil 204 874,300 50 101,630

Profit for the Enancial period 1,824

Share based payments 17,178

Al 26 Apil 2015 B74 300 50 120,632

The Company holds 42,137,508 ordinary shares in Fieasury

7. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT ON SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

2015

{£°000)

Openmg shoreholders’ funds $78,560

Profit for the fmoncral penod 1,824

Shaze based poyments 17178

Closing shereholders funds 991 562

8. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

No matenal post balance shees events occurred after 26 Aprl 2015 to the dare of this Annual Report

EVERYTHING 15 CHANGING ..
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CONSOLIDATED FIVE YEAR RECORD

UNAUDITED INCOME STATEMENT

52 weeks ended 52 weeks anded 53 weeks snded 57 weeks ended 57 weeks erded
26 Apel 2015 27 bl 010 26 Aged 1013 (ried)™ T id 2012 24l 2001
{£°000) {£000) (£°000) (£000) (£000)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS.
Revenve 2,832,560 2,705,958 2,185,580 1,835,756 1,599,237
Cost of snles {1,591,748) {1,551,036) (1,290,82) {1,091 480) {940,330)
Gross profir 1,240,812 115492 894,758 744,276 658,907
Selling, distribution and admensstiaive expenses (950,528) (908,643) {689,578) {594,368} (527,273)
Other operating income 8,345 8,583 7.199 3,268 5,289
Legal dispute 2,309 {3,126)
impawment ong acceleisted depreciation {13,338) (5,531)
Profit on disposal of property 10,288 1,686
Profit on disposal of mtangible asset §25 15624 874
Exceptonsl tems (3,050) (5,531) £25 5619 {2252)
Operating profit 795,581 79,131 213004 158,795 136,471
Investment mcome / {costs) 14,104 10017 1473 (5,800 {9.481)
Fmonce mcome 8,289 891 1107 6,426 2560
Finance costs (7,487) (19.853) (9,688) {8,481) {8,953)
Shere of profit of assoanted undertakings and jomt ventures 2,959 2,266 1,320 558 8
Profis before taxatien 313,446 239452 207,226 151498 118,789
Taxation {72093} (59,839) (55,569 (45,867) (35,566)
Profit for the period 241,353 179 613 151,657 105,631 83,223
Equrly holders of the Group 240,397 180,245 151,596 106,198 84,173
Hon-controlling interests 956 (632) 61 {567) {950}
Profit for the period 241,353 179,613 151,657 105,631 83,223

*Restaiement relates to the odophion of the tevised IAS 19 ‘Employes Benehis’

Notes to the consolidated ncome statement five yeor record

b All imformation s presented under IFRS

2 The five year record has been prepared on the some basis os the Finanaal Starements for the 52 weeks ended 26 Apri! 2015, as set out i note 1, basis of preparahion, of the

tonsolidated Finoncial Statemests




COMPANY DIRECTORY

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Cemputershare Investor Services plt

The Povilions

Bndgwater Rood

Bustal

BS13 BAE

COMPANY SECRETARY AND REGISTERED OFFICE
Sports Oweat International ple

Unit &, Brook Park Eost

Shrebrook

NG20 8RY

Telephone 0344 245 9700
Sports Duect International ple s registered in Englond and Wales (No 6035106)

SOLCITORS

Freshfields Bruckhous Dennger
45 Fleat Street

London

EC4Y 1HS

BROKERS

{ingroup Global Morkers Limited
Cin (entre

Canado Squore

Canary Whart

London

E1458

Espinto Santo fnvestment Bank

The Landon Stock Exchange Budding
10 Poernoster Square

London

ECAMTAL

Goldman Sachs bimited
Peterborough Court
133 Fleet Street
London

EC44 288

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Barcloys Bank ple

5 The North Colonnade
Conosy Whort

Londan

E14 488

HSBC Bank ple

B Conoda Square
London

E14 5H0

AUDITORS

Gront Thomton UK LLP
Gront Thorion House
Melton Street

Euston Square

London

NW1 2EP

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annugl Genern! Mesting of the Company will be held at 11am on Wednesday 9
September 2015 ot Sports Divect Intemanonal ple, The Auditorum, Unit D, Brook Park
Fast, Shirebrook, NG20 BRY Each shoseholder s enhitled to attend and vote of the
meeiing, the arrangements for which ore descnbed i o separate notice

RESULTS

For the yeor to 24 April 2016

Half yeor results announced 10 December 2015
Preliminary onnouncement of full year results 7 July Z016
Annuol Report creuloted July / August 2016

SHAREHOLDER HELPLINE

The Sports Direct shareholder register 1s maintained by Computershare who ore responsible
for moking dradend poyments and updating the register, mcludng defals of changes to
shoreholders’ oddresses If you have o query about your shareholding m Sports Durect, you
should contner Computershore’s Sports Direct Shareholder Helphine on 0370 707 4030
Cols ore chorged of stondard geograptuc rates, akthough network charges may vary

Address The Povilions, Brdgwater Roud, Brstol, BS99 671
Website www computershgra com

WEBSITE

The Sports Dirext websta ot www sponstirectple com provides news end detuils of the
Company’s actmabres plus mformaton for shareholders and contns real ime shore pnce
data os well os the lntest results ond announcements

UNSOLICITED MAEL

The Company 1s obhged by fow to make rfs share registes publicly avelable and 25 o
consequence some shareholders may recewve unsolicred mall, mnduding from unouthensed
investment firms

For more informanon on unouthonsed wvestmen firmns targeting UK wvestors, wisit the
website of the Financial Canduct Authonty ai www fee org uk

{f you wish to lrut the emount of unsolicrred mail you recewve confact

The Mading Preference Service
DMA Rouse

70 Margaret Street

Londan

WIW 855

Telephone 0207791 3310

Fex 0207323 4226

Email mps@dma org uk or regrster or-ime ot
www mpsonline org uk
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